
AGENDA
Committee PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date and Time 
of Meeting

WEDNESDAY, 14 OCTOBER 2015, 2.30 PM

Venue COMMITTEE ROOM 4 - COUNTY HALL

Membership Councillor Michael (Chair)
Councillors Lomax (Deputy Chair), Ali Ahmed, Manzoor Ahmed, Burfoot, 
Gordon, Hudson, Hunt, Phillips, Robson and Lynda Thorne

1  APOLOGIES  

2  MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 6)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on
 9 September 2015

3  DECLARATION OF INTEREST  

To be made at the commencement of the agenda item in question, in 
accordance with the Members Code of Conduct 

4  PETITIONS  

Petitions have been received in relation to the following applications in 
accordance
with Committee Meeting Procedural Rule 14.2.  The petitioners have been 
advised 
of their right to speak and the applicants/agents of their right to reply:

14/1656/DCO, Land adjacent to Church Road, Pontprennau/Old St Mellons – 
Page 1
15/00561/MJR, Wanderers Bungalow, 1A Stirling Road, Ely – Page 62
15/00892/MNR, 7 Thornhill Road, Rhiwbina – Page 131
15/01416/MNR, Rear of 17-19 Penlline Road, Whitchurch – Page 162 
15/1753/MJR,   Phoenix Industrial & Engineering Supplies, Clarence Road, 
Butetown 

- Main Agenda 



5  DEVELOPMENT CONTROL APPLICATIONS  (Pages 7 - 204)

The schedule of development control applications has been circulated separately 

5a  14/01656/DCO, Land Adjacent to Church Road, Pontprennau/Old St Mellons  

5b  15/00306/MJR. 5-7 Oakfield Street, Plasnewydd  

5c  15/00307/MJR, 5-7 Oakfield Street, Plasnewydd  

5d  15/00561/MJR, Wanderers Bungalow, 1A Stirling Road, Ely  

5e  15/01163/MJR, Cardiff Metropolitan University, Cyncoed Campus  

5f  15/01667/MJR, Land to the South of Forester Way and Malthouse Avenue, 
Pontprennau  

5g  15/00892/MNR, 7 Thornhill Road, Rhiwbina  

5h  15/01321/MNR, Velindre Hospital, Velindre Road, Whitchurch  

5i  15/01416/MNR, Rear of 17-19 Penlline Road, Whitchurch  

5j  15/01699/MNR, 31 Coburn Street, Cathays  

5k  15/01796/MNR, Land adjacent, 18 Avonridge, Thornhill  

6  15/1753/MJR - BUTETOWN  (Pages 205 - 224)

PHOENIX INDUSTRIAL & ENGINEERING SUPPLIES, CLARENCE ROAD, 
BUTETOWN 
Demolition of existing building, construction of 17 dwellings and associated works.

7  14/2887/MJR - BUTETOWN  (Pages 225 - 252)

FORMER SURFACE CARPARK ON TRIANGULAR SITE OFF HERBERT 
STREET 
180 1/2/3 bedroom apartments in 7/8/22 storey blocks with A3 (food and drink) B1 
(office) and A2 (finance/professional) use to ground floor with associated car 
parking and amenity space 

8  Highway at Queen Street  (Pages 253 - 254)

Application for S.116 Highways Act 1980 Stopping up of a section of Highway at 
Queen Street Station, Station Terrace, Cathays, Cardiff 

9  APPLICATIONS DECIDED BY DELEGATED POWERS  (Pages 255 - 294)

September 2015 

10  DATE OF NEXT MEETING  



11 November 2015 

Marie Rosenthal
Director Governance and Legal Services
Date:  Thursday, 8 October 2015
Contact:  Kate Rees, 029 2087 2427, k.rees@cardiff.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE

9 SEPTEMBER 2015

Present: County Councillor  (Chairperson)
County Councillors Lomax, Ali Ahmed, Manzoor Ahmed, 
Gordon, Hunt, Robson and Lynda Thorne

132 :   APOLOGIES 

Councillors Burfoot, Phillips and Michael 

133 :   MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 12 August 2015, were approved as a correct 
record. 

134 :   DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

The Chairperson reminded Members of their responsibility under the Members Code 
of Conduct to declare interests and complete ‘personal interest’ forms at the 
commencement of the item in question.

COUNCILLOR                             ITEM                                      REASON

Robson                               15/00892/MNR                              Ward Councillor 
                                                                                                 (Employer has 
                                                                                                  commented)

Robson                               15/01416/MNR                              Employer
                                                                                                 commented 

135 :   RECORDING OF THE COMMITTEE 

Members of the public were made aware that no recordings shall be made of the 
proceedings of meetings of committee’s whether audio or visual and by whatever 
method except with the express authorisation of the meeting.  If a person records the 
proceedings of any meeting (or causes such recordings to be affected) without 
authorisation then the Chairperson will order their removal from the meeting room 
and shall not permit them to be admitted to a further meeting of the committee expect 
on a written undertaking to desist from such recordings as may have been made and 
anything derived from them.

136 :   PETITIONS 

Petitions have been received in relation to the following applications in accordance 
with Committee Meeting Procedural Rule 14.2.  The petitioners have been advised of 
their right to speak and the applicant/agents of their right to reply.

(i)   Application no:15/00892/MNR, 7 Thornhill, Rhiwbina
(ii)  Application no:15/01416/MNR, Rear of 19 Penlline Road, Whitchurch
(iii) Application no:15/01863/MNR, 16 Rhyd Y Penau Road, Cyncoed

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



(iv) Application no:15/00561/MNR, Wanderers Bungalow, 1A Stirling Road, Ely

(v) Application no:15/1015/MNR, 56A & 56A Plas Mawr Road, Fairwater 

In respect of (iv) the petitioner spoke and the agent responded.  In respect of (v) the 
Chairperson ruled to suspend standing orders to allow the petitioner to speak as the 
petition was ruled out of time. 

137 :   DEVELOPMENT CONTROL APPLICATIONS 

The Committee considered the schedule of development control applications 
submitted in accordance with the Town and Country Planning Act 1990:
RESOLVED: That pursuant to this Committee’s delegated powers, the following 
development control applications be determined in accordance with the 
recommendations as set out in the reports of the Director of Strategic Planning, 
Highways, Traffic & Transportation, subject to any further amendments as detailed 
below and notification be given of the decision in accordance with Section 70 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 or Section 74 of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
& Conservation Areas Act 1990)

(A) APPLICATIONS GRANTED

15/00656/MJR – SPLOTT

ENERGY FROM WASTE FACILITY, TRIDENT INDUSTRIAL PARK, GLASS 
AVENUE
Discharge of Condition 4 (Phase 3 verification report: External works including 
landscaping) of planning permission 10/00149/E (The erection of an energy from 
waste facility to include a combined heat and power plant, pre-treatment/ recycling 
facility, incinerator bottom ash recycling and ancillary offices)

(B) APPLICATIONS GRANTED ON EXECUTION OF A 
PLANNING OBLIGATION UNDER SECTION 106 OF THE 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990:

15/01015/MNR – FAIRWATER 

56A & 56B PLAS MAWR ROAD 
Three storey building accommodating 6 no self contained flats and extension of 
existing A1 and A3 premises at ground floor level.

15/01288/MJR – CREIGAU/ ST FAGANS 
LAND OFF MICHAELSTON ROAD, MICHAELSTON ROAD
Reserved matters in respect of 10/2114/DCO.  Details concerning the access, 
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale of the proposed development. 

Subject to an amendment to the recommendation to read:

Page 2



‘Reserved matters and not planning permission be granted’

Subject to an extra Condition 7 to read:

‘Prior to the commencement of development a full planting and long-term aftercare 
specification for the landscaped areas of the site, including tree pit sections and plan 
views that demonstrate how usable soil volume will be provided for all planting 
situations, details of woodland management including ecotone creation and 
maintenance for the young woodlands, details of buffer planting management,  
details of management for retained hedgerows and a chronological matrix of 
aftercare tasks, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority and the landscaping works shall be carried out and maintained thereafter in 
accordance with the approved details. 

Subject to an amendment of paragraph 4.2 to reflect:

Deletion to reference of the Householder Designer Guide (March 2007)

(C) APPLICATIONS REFUSED

15/01373/MJR – LLANDAFF 

THE RETREAT, 56 PWLLMELIN ROAD
Variation of Condition 21 (Details of the western vehicle and pedestrian access) of 
planning application 10/00846/W so as not to prohibit the use of gates within the 
entrance feature.

REASON:

‘The introduction of gates at the entrance to the development would create the 
impression of a gated community and would be detrimental to social cohesion 
contrary to Policy 11 of the Adopted City of Cardiff Local Plan 1996, objective 9.2 of 
the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance “Residential Design Guide” 
approved March 2008, Policy 2.20 of the Deposit Cardiff Unitary Development Plan & 
guidance in Planning Policy Wales and Paragraph 5.17.6 of Technical Advice Note 
12 Design’

15/01863/MNR – CYNCOED 

16 RHYD Y PENAU ROAD
Change of use of first floor from vacant residential use to café use and use of existing 
café (part) on ground floor to community use during off-peak periods.

(D) APPLICATIONS DEFERRED 

15/00306/MJR – PLASNEWYDD 

5-7 OAKFIELD STREET

Page 3



Demolition of nos 5-5 Oakfield Street and the construction of 19 no, one bedroom 
apartments and 1 no. 2 bed duplex apartment and rear coach house with 2 no 
commercial studio/ offices with parking below together with external
 works.

REASON: In order for a site visit to this location to take place.

15/00307/MJR – PLASNEWYDD 

5-7 OAKFIELD STREET
Demolition of nos 5-7 Oakfield Street

REASON: In order for a site visit to this location to take place.

15/00561/MJR – ELY

WANDERERS BUNGALOW, 1A STIRLING ROAD
The erection of 15 (one bedroom) and 3 ( 2 bedroom) residential apartments access 
arrangements, landscaping amenity space, bicycle parking, bin store and associated 
works with demolition of existing bungalow.

REASON: In order for a site visit to this location to take place.

15/00892/MNR – RHIWBINA

7 THORNHILL ROAD
Change of use of ground floor from use class A2 (estate agents) to a pizza takeaway 
and home delivery (A3 use) with external alterations to the rear elevation including 
installation of cold storage unit and flue.

REASON: In order for a site visit to this location to take place.

15/01321/MNR – WHITCHURCH/TONGWYNLAIS

VELINDRE HOSPITAL, VELINDRE ROAD
Two storey office building in order to facilitate staff relocation requirements within 
Velindre Hospital.

REASON: In order for a site visit to this location to take place.

15/01416/MNR – WHITCHURCH/TONGYNLAIS

REAR OF 17-19 PENLLINE ROAD
Change of use from offices B1 to A3 food and drink with small area for baby/ toddler 
softplay.

REASON: In order for a site visit to this location to take place.

Page 4



138 :   APPLICATIONS DECIDED BY DELEGATED POWERS 

August 2015 

139 :   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

14 October 2015 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



PETITION AND AM OBJECTION 
 
COMMITTEE DATE: 14/10/2015 
 
APPLICATION No.   15/01753/MJR APPLICATION DATE:  20/07/2015 
 
ED:    BUTETOWN 
 
APP: TYPE:   Full Planning Permission 
 
APPLICANT:    Wales & West Housing Association 
LOCATION:   PHOENIX INDUSTRIAL & ENGINEERING SUPPLIES, 
    CLARENCE ROAD, BUTETOWN, CARDIFF, CF10 5FA 
PROPOSAL:   DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDING,   
    CONSTRUCTION OF 17 DWELLINGS AND   
    ASSOCIATED WORKS     
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDATION 1 :  That, subject to relevant parties entering into a 
binding planning obligation in agreement with the Council under SECTION 106 
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, within 6 months of the date of this 
resolution unless otherwise agreed by the Council in writing, in respect of 
matters detailed in paragraph 9.2 of this report, planning permission be 
GRANTED subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. C01 Statutory Time Limit 
 
2. No development shall take place until samples of the external finishing 

materials have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory finished appearance to the 
development. 

 
3. No development shall take place until a scheme showing the 

architectural detailing of the principal elevations has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the 
development shall not be brought into beneficial use until the approved 
scheme is implemented.  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory finished appearance to the building. 
 
4. C5A Construction of Site Enclosure 
 
5. No development shall take place until details showing the provision of 17 

no. cycle parking spaces for the apartments (residents) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved details shall be implemented prior to the 
development being put into beneficial use. Thereafter the cycle parking 
spaces shall be maintained and shall not be used for any other purpose.  

 Reason: To ensure that adequate provision is made for the secure 

Page 205

Agenda Item 6



parking of cycles. 
 
6. No development shall take place until a scheme of construction 

management has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority, to include details of site hoardings, site access and 
wheel washing facilities. Construction of the development shall be 
managed strictly in accordance with the scheme so approved.  

 Reason: In the interests of highway safety and public amenity. 
 
7. Doors and ground floor window adjacent to the highway or footway are 

to be constructed and installed in such a way as not to open outward.  
 Reason: To prevent doors and windows being opened into the path of 

oncoming vehicles and pedestrians in the interest of highway and 
pedestrian safety. 

 
8. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until a 

scheme of environmental highway improvements to Clarence Road, 
Pomeroy Street and the rear lane adjacent to the site, in accordance 
with indicative Plan 1: Proposed Public Realm Enhancements for 
Application 15/01753/MJR, has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include the 
resurfacing of footways and carriageway, the renewal or resetting or 
replacement of sunken or damaged kerbs, channels and edging, and the 
provision/ renewal of street lighting and street furniture as may be 
required as a consequence of the development. The agreed scheme 
shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority 
prior to beneficial occupation of the site.  

 Reason: To ensure the comprehensive enhancement/improvement of 
the adjacent public highway in the interests of highway and pedestrian 
safety and to facilitate access to the proposed development. 

 
9. No equipment, plant or materials shall be brought on to the site for the 

purpose of development until a scheme for the protection of the street 
trees adjacent to the site has been submitted and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority protection shall be maintained until all site 
operations are complete.  

 Reason: To protect street trees adjacent to the site that might be 
damaged by building works or related operations. 

 
10. H7G Plant Noise 
 
11. Prior to commencement of development a scheme of sound insulation 

measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority to ensure that all habitable rooms exposed to 
external road traffic noise in excess of 63 dBA Leq 16 hour [free field] 
during the day [07.00 to 23.00 hours] or 57 dBA Leq 8 hour [free field] at 
night [23.00 to 07.00 hours] achieve an internal noise level of 40 dBA 
Leq 16 hour during the day and 35 dBA Leq 8 hour at night.  The 
submitted scheme shall ensure that habitable rooms subject to sound 

Page 206



insulation measures shall be provided with acoustically treated active 
ventilation units. Each ventilation unit (with air filter in position), by itself 
or with an integral air supply duct and cowl (or grille), shall be capable of 
giving variable ventilation rates ranging from –  

 1) an upper rate of not less than 37 litres per second against a back 
pressure of 10 newtons per square metre and not less than 31 litres per 
second against a back pressure of 30 newtons per square metre, to 

 2) a lower rate of between 10 and 17 litres per second against zero back 
pressure. 

 No habitable room shall be occupied until the approved sound insulation 
and ventilation measures have been installed in that room. Any private 
open space (excepting terraces or balconies to any apartment) shall be 
designed to provide an area which is at least 50% of the area for sitting 
out where the maximum maximum day time noise level does not exceed 
55 dBA Leq 16 hour [free field].  

 Reason: To ensure that the amenities of future occupiers are protected. 
 
12. Excluding demolition and site preparation no other development shall 

commence until an assessment of the nature and extent of 
contamination is submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The report of the findings shall include a desk top 
study to identify all previous uses at the site and potential contaminants 
associated with those uses and the impacts from those contaminants on 
land and controlled waters; an intrusive investigation to assess the 
extent, scale and nature of contamination which may be present; an 
assessment of the potential risks, and an appraisal of remedial options 
and justification for the preferred remedial option(s).  

 Reason: To ensure that information provided for the assessment of the 
risks from land contamination to the future users of the land, 
neighbouring land, controlled waters, property and ecological systems is 
sufficient to enable a proper assessment in accordance with policy 2.63 
of the Cardiff Unitary Development Plan.  

 
13. Excluding demolition and site preparation no other development shall 

commence until a detailed remediation scheme and verification plan to 
bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing 
any unacceptable risks to human health, controlled waters, buildings, 
other property and the natural and historical environment, is submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme 
shall include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation 
objectives and remediation criteria, a timetable of works and site 
management procedures.  

 Reason: To ensure that any unacceptable risks from land contamination 
to the future users of the land, neighbouring land, controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems are minimised, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
policy 2.63 of the Cardiff Unitary Development Plan. 

 
 

Page 207



14. The remediation scheme as approved by the Local Planning Authority 
must be fully undertaken in accordance with its terms prior to the 
occupation of any part of the development unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority 
must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the 
remediation scheme works. Within 6 months of the completion of the 
measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification 
report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out 
must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  

 Reason: To ensure that any unacceptable risks from land contamination 
to the future users of the land, neighbouring land, controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems are minimised, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
policy 2.63 of the Cardiff Unitary Development Plan. 

 
15. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 

the approved development that was not previously identified it must be 
reported in writing within 2 days to the Local Planning Authority, all 
associated works must stop, and no further development shall take 
place unless otherwise agreed in writing until a scheme to deal with the 
contamination found has been approved.  An investigation and risk 
assessment must be undertaken and where remediation is necessary a 
remediation scheme and verification plan must be prepared and 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved 
remediation scheme a verification report must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The timescale for 
the above actions shall be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
within 2 weeks of the discovery of any unsuspected contamination.  

 Reason: To ensure that any unacceptable risks from land contamination 
to the future users of the land, neighbouring land, controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems are minimised, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
policy 2.63 of the Cardiff Unitary Development Plan 

 
16. Excluding demolition and site preparation and unless otherwise agreed 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority no other development shall 
commence until a scheme to investigate and monitor the site for the 
presence of gases being generated at the site or land adjoining thereto, 
including a plan of the area to be monitored, is submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for its approval. Following completion of the approved 
monitoring scheme and prior to commencement of any development 
works, the proposed details of any appropriate gas protection measures 
which may be required to ensure the safe and inoffensive dispersal or 
management of gases and to prevent lateral migration of gases into or 
from land surrounding the application site shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing to the Local Planning Authority. All required gas 

Page 208



protection measures shall be installed in accordance with the approved 
details and appropriately verified before occupation of any part of the 
development which has been permitted, and the approved protection 
measures shall be retained and maintained until such time as the Local 
Planning Authority agrees in writing that the measures are no longer 
required.  

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced in 
accordance with policy 2.63 of the Cardiff Unitary Development Plan 

 
17. Any aggregate  (other than virgin quarry stone) or recycled aggregate 

material to be imported shall be assessed for chemical or other potential 
contaminants in accordance with a scheme of investigation which shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
in advance of its importation. Only material approved by the Local 
Planning Authority shall be imported. All measures specified in the 
approved scheme shall be undertaken in accordance with Pollution 
Control’s Imported Materials Guidance Notes. Subject to approval of the 
above, sampling of the material received at the development site to 
verify that the imported soil is free from contamination shall be 
undertaken in accordance with a scheme and timescale to be agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Reason: To ensure that the 
safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced in accordance with policy 
2.63 of the Cardiff Unitary Development Plan. 

 
18. Any topsoil [natural  or manufactured],or subsoil, to be imported shall 

be assessed for chemical or other potential contaminants in accordance 
with a scheme of investigation to be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority in advance of its importation. Only 
material approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be imported. All 
measures specified in the approved scheme shall be undertaken in 
accordance with the relevant Code of Practice and Guidance Notes. 
Subject to approval of the above, verification sampling of the material 
received at the development site is required to verify that the imported 
soil is free from contamination and shall be undertaken in accordance 
with a scheme agreed with in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced in 
accordance with Policy 2.63 of the Cardiff Unitary Development Plan. 

 
19. Any site won recycled aggregate materials shall be assessed for 

chemical or other potential contaminants in accordance with a scheme 
of investigation which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority in advance of its reuse. Only material 
approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be reused.   

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced in 
accordance with policy 2.63 of the Cardiff Unitary Development Plan. 

 
20. C2N Drainage details 
 
21. Any site won recycled aggregate materials shall be assessed for 

chemical or other potential contaminants in accordance with a scheme 

Page 209



of investigation which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority in advance of its reuse. Only material 
approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be reused.   

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced in 
accordance with Policy 2.63 of the Cardiff Unitary Development Plan. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 2: The highway works condition and any other works to 
existing or proposed adopted public highway are to be subject to an agreement 
under Section 38 and/or Section 278 Highways Act 1980 between the 
developer and Local Highway Authority. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 3: The contamination assessments and the effects of 
unstable land are considered on the basis of the best information available to 
the Planning Authority and are not necessarily exhaustive.  The Authority 
takes due diligence when assessing these impacts, however you are minded 
that the responsibility for:  
(i)  determining the extent and effects of such constraints and; 
(ii)  ensuring that any imported materials (including, topsoils, subsoils, 

aggregates and recycled or manufactured aggregates / soils) are 
chemically suitable for the proposed end use.  Under no circumstances 
should controlled waste be imported.  It is an offence under section 33 
of the environmental Protection Act 1990 to deposit controlled waste on 
a site which does not benefit from an appropriate waste management 
license.  The following must not be imported to a development site: 
• Unprocessed / unsorted demolition wastes. 
• Any materials originating from a site confirmed as being 

contaminated or potentially contaminated by chemical or 
radioactive substances. 

• Japanese Knotweed stems, leaves and rhizome infested soils.  
In addition to section 33 above, it is also an offence under the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 to spread this invasive weed; 
and 

(iii)  the safe development and secure occupancy of the site rests with the 
developer. 

Proposals for areas of possible land instability should take due account of the 
physical and chemical constraints and may include action on land reclamation 
or other remedial action to enable beneficial use of unstable land. The Local 
Planning Authority has determined the application on the basis of the 
information available to it, but this does not mean that the land can be 
considered free from contamination. 
 

 RECOMMENDATION 4: To protect the amenities of occupiers of other 
premises in the vicinity attention is drawn to the provisions of Section 60 of the 
Control of Pollution Act 1974 in relation to the control of noise from demolition 
and construction activities. Further to this the applicant is advised that no noise 
audible outside the site boundary adjacent to the curtilage of residential 
property shall be created by construction activities in respect of the 
implementation of this consent outside the hours of 0800-1800 hours Mondays 
to Fridays and 0800 - 1300 hours on Saturdays or at any time on Sunday or 
public holidays. The applicant is also advised to seek approval for any 

Page 210



proposed piling operations. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 5: It is advised that the applicant seeks a European 
Protected Species licence from NRW under Regulation 53(2)e of The 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 before any works on 
site commence that may impact upon bats. Please note that the granting of 
planning permission does not negate the need to obtain a licence. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 6: The applicant is requested to provide future residents 
with a welcome pack upon their arrival, detailing sustainable transport options 
available in the area, to help promote sustainable transport. Leaflets and advice 
in connection with production of the packs are available from Miriam Highgate, 
Cardiff Council, County Hall, tel: 029 2087 2213. 
 

1. DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
1.1 A full application seeking approval for the demolition of the existing 2 storey 

hardware store and construction of a 5 storey apartment block comprising 17 
single bedroom affordable dwellings.  

 
1.2 The main entrance to the apartments is from Pomeroy Street. The single 

bedroom apartments range in size from 46qsm to 54sqm. Four of the 17 
apartments are single aspect with views to the north-west over Pomeroy Street 
and Clarence Road.  

 
1.3 A small area of external amenity space is provided to the rear with access to 

the rear lane. It is located next to a similar area serving the Avondale Court 
residential development and benefits from afternoon sunshine.  

 
1.4 There is no on-site car parking provided. A ground floor bike store 

accommodating 18 bikes is accessed from the rear lane.  
 
1.5 The top storey of the building is set back approximately 4m from the Pomeroy 

Street and Clarence Road frontages. At ground level an element of defensible 
space is provided by narrow front gardens and railings fronting the street. The 
roof is flat and materials are brick in two colours. Windows are full height with 
deep reveals and a strong vertical emphasis. 
 

1.6 The application is accompanied by a planning statement, a design and access 
statement, a drainage strategy report, an ecological survey report, and a flood 
consequences assessment report. 
 

1.7 Amended plans have been received addressing overlooking concerns. 
 
2. DESCRIPTION OF SITE 

 
2.1 The application site is a hardware store specialising in industrial and safety 

supplies located on the corner of Pomeroy Street and Clarence Road in 
Butetown. Immediately to the east is Avondale Court, a 4 storey pitched roof 

Page 211



residential building completed about 10 years ago. To the south-west is a rear 
lane linking Pomeroy Street and Hunter Street 

 
2.2 The building to be demolished is an early 20th century 2 storey red brick building 

with stone banding and pitched roofs and is significantly smaller than its 
immediate neighbours on Clarence Road.  

 
2.3 Pomeroy Street is a cul-de-sac and cannot be accessed directly from Clarence 

Road. There is a bus stop and some tree planting on a small area of paving at 
the head of Pomeroy Street.  

 
2.4 The area is predominantly residential characterised by brick-built 2 storey 

Victorian terraces to the south of Clarence Road, a changing mix of uses on 
Clarence Road itself, and Century Wharf apartments to the north. 

 
3. PLANNING HISTORY 

 
• There is no planning history on the site. 

 
Related planning history 
• 11/1168/DCI PP granted in March 2013 for demolition of the existing 

industrial/ warehouse building and the former Bethel Baptist church, and 
the construction of a four storey residential block comprising 19no. 
apartments. 

• 98/377/C PP granted in 1999 for demolition of existing building (Avondale 
Works) and erection of 25no. flats (Avondale Court) 

 
4. POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
4.1 Adopted City of Cardiff Local Plan 

Policy 11 Design and Aesthetic Quality 
Policy 17 Parking and Servicing Facilities 
Policy 31 Residential Open Space Requirements 
Policy 36 Alternative Use of Business, Industrial and Warehousing Land 
 

4.2 Deposit Cardiff Unitary Development Plan (2003) 
Policy 2.20 Good Design 
Policy 2.21 Change of Use or Redevelopment to Residential Use 
Policy 2.24 Residential Amenity 
 

4.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance 
Open Space Supplementary Planning Guidance (March 2008) 
Access, Circulation & Parking Standards (January 2010) 

 Safeguarding Land for Business and Industry (June 06) 
 
5. INTERNAL CONSULTEE RESPONSES 
 
5.1 Transportation: The Council’s Transportation Officer comments as follows: I 

refer to the above application and would confirm that the submission has been 

Page 212



assessed and is considered to be acceptable in principle, subject to the 
following comments, conditions and S106 contribution request. 

 
5.2 The Access, Circulation and Parking Standards SPG identifies a car parking 

requirement of zero to one space per unit for residential dwellings in the Central 
and Bay area, along with a minimum cycle parking requirement of one space 
per unit. In accordance with the SPG the proposed development should 
therefore provide between zero and 17 car parking spaces and a minimum of 
17 cycle parking spaces, and as such is considered to be policy compliant as 
submitted. 

 
5.3 It is also noted that the existing distribution/commercial use attracts a number 

and frequency of vans and other commercial vehicles, along with private cars, 
whereas the proposed use will only routinely attract private cars; 
notwithstanding that the peak parking demand is likely to occur at a different 
time of the day. It may therefore be considered that the local daily impact of 
visits to the site will be reduced and generally be of a less intrusive nature due 
to smaller quieter vehicles, more in keeping with the domestic nature of the 
surrounding residential dwellings. 
 

5.4 As identified in the application supporting documents, I must also take into 
account that the site is within easy walking distance of shops/ services/ 
employment/ school/ entertainment etc. opportunities in the adjacent district 
centre and city centre; along with good access to high frequency bus public 
transport services, rail services and Cardiff’s cycle network. The site is 
therefore considered to be in a very sustainable location in transport terms, 
reducing the reliance on private car ownership and use of the same for 
everyday trips. 
 

5.5 I would further confirm that incoming residents of the development would not be 
eligible for resident parking permits and as such will not add to parking pressure 
on existing bays. Therefore, while acknowledging that parking demand and 
timing will change as a result of the proposed development and may add to 
evening/weekend demand, a positive determination of this application will not 
itself add to pressure on existing resident permit bays. 
 

5.6 Standard cycle parking, environmental highway improvement works, no 
outward opening doors, and construction management plan conditions are 
required in order to manage the impact of the development and reinstate the 
adjacent lane following construction, along with a S106 contribution of £2,160 
towards the cost of installing cycle parking and bollards in Clarence Road 
footway in the vicinity of the site. Reason: The provision of external visitor cycle 
parking and protection of the adjacent footway from overrun and inappropriate 
parking that currently occurs, and could increase as a consequence of the 
proposed development .It is considered that the combined S106 contribution 
request is in accordance with the requirements of the CIL regulations. 
 

5.7 In conclusion, it is considered that the proposed residential use accords with 
parking policy, will generate little or no additional parking demand over the day, 
is likely to result in fewer less intrusive vehicle trips than the former commercial 

Page 213



use and given its nature (smaller units) likely to attract residents who are more 
likely not to own/use a car than otherwise might be the case. I would therefore 
conclude that any objection on parking or traffic grounds would be 
unsustainable and any reason for refusal on this basis would not withstand 
challenge. 

 
5.8 Parks Services: The Parks Officer comments as follows: Under current policy 

the proposed development is subject to Policy 31 of the Local Plan (Provision of 
open space on new residential developments), which requires the provision of 
open space for recreational activity.   

 
5.9 The Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance - Open Space requires 

provision of a satisfactory level and standard of open space on all new housing 
developments (2.43 hectares per 1000 projected population), or an off-site 
contribution towards existing open space for smaller scale developments 
where new on-site provision is not applicable. 
 

5.10 As no public open space is being provided on-site, the developers will be 
required to make a financial contribution towards the provision of open space 
off-site, or the improvement (including design and maintenance) of existing 
open space in the locality. 
 

5.11 Based on the information given, allowing for a projected population of 24.31, 
the contribution will be £26,393. Contributions towards open space provision 
are derived using a formula-based calculation which takes into account, 
amongst other things, the size of the residential development and the projected 
increase in population. 
 

5.12 If the applicant can provide evidence that the single bed apartments will be for 
adults only and no children will be allowed to reside there, then the calculation 
may be adjusted accordingly to remove the element relating to provision of 
children’s play. The request for an offsite contribution is applied consistently 
across private and affordable house developments. 
 

5.13 Demand for usage of the existing open spaces would increase in the locality as 
a result of the development and therefore the Council considers it appropriate 
that an off-site contribution is made, calculated in accordance with the 
guidelines set out in the SPG.  
 

5.14 The Public Open Space Contribution shall be used by the Council towards the 
design, improvement and/or maintenance of public open space within the 
locality of the development site. The closest recreational open spaces are 
Hamadryad Park and Canal Park. 
 

5.15 Based on the 2009 Cardiff Council Open Space Survey the Butetown Ward, in 
which the development is situated, is deficient in opens space provision by 3.96 
hectares (measured by the Fields in Trust recommended standard of 2.43 
hectares per 1000 population). The quality and facilities of existing open 
spaces also require improvement, with additional capacity to take into account 
the increased residential population resulting from the development. 

Page 214



 
5.16 The final decision on expenditure of the contribution at the time of receipt would 

be determined by the requirements for improving any individual open space in 
the locality at that time. This would involve local consultation with various 
parties and be subject to Member approval. 

 
5.17 The Parks Officer makes the following additional design comments: The 

proximity of the proposed block of 1 bed apartments to the adjacent street tree 
at the junction of Clarence road and Pomeroy street and street trees along 
Pomeroy Street causes some concern over the impact of the development on 
these trees.  Whilst the application boundary excludes the trees they will be 
close to site operations and potentially at risk from service connections and 
construction vehicles. 
 

5.18 An assessment of the impact of the development on these trees should be 
carried out and any identified tree works necessary to facilitate the construction 
agreed with the Parks arboricultural team and carried out by them prior to 
commencement of the development. Suitable protection measures will be 
required to prevent physical damage to the trees during the construction phase. 
 

5.19 Ecology: The Ecology Officer observes that the proposed mitigation measures 
are adequate and should be secured by a condition requiring that the 
development is implemented in accordance with the recommendations of the 
Ecological Survey Report submitted with the application. 

 
5.20 Housing Strategy: Housing Strategy note that Cardiff has an identified high 

housing need for affordable housing in this area of the City. The Housing 
Development Enabling team development will be working with Wales & West to 
successfully and sustainably deliver this site for affordable housing, given the 
high levels of housing need in the area. The development will comprise of 17 
units of new affordable housing for singles and couples,  which are in high 
demand.  All social rented units will meet Welsh Government Development 
Quality Requirements (DQR) & the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS). 
 

5.21 Drainage Management: No comments received. 
 
5.22 Waste Management: The Waste Strategy Officer notes that the bin storage 

area is acceptable.  
 
5.23 Pollution Control (Contaminated Land): The Contaminated Land Officer notes 

that the site has been identified as formerly commercial/industrial.  Activities 
associated with this use may have caused the land to become contaminated 
and therefore may give rise to potential risks to human health and the 
environment for the proposed end use. 
 

5.24 In addition former landfill/raise sites have been identified within 250m of the 
proposed development. Such sites are associated with the generation of landfill 
gases, within subsurface materials, which have the potential to migrate to other 
sites.   This may give rise to potential risks to human health and the 
environment for the proposed end use. 

Page 215



 
5.25 Should there be any importation of soils to develop the garden/landscaped 

areas of the development, or any site won recycled material, or materials 
imported as part of the construction of the development, then it must be 
demonstrated that they are suitable for the end use. This is to prevent the 
introduction or recycling of materials containing chemical or other potential 
contaminants which may give rise to potential risks to human health and the 
environment for the proposed end use. 
 

5.26 The Officer requests the inclusion of standard ground gas protection, 
contaminated land assessment, contaminated land remediation and 
verification plan, contaminated land remediation and verification, unforeseen 
contamination, imported soil, imported aggregates, and use of site-won 
materials conditions and informative statement in accordance with CIEH best 
practice and to ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced in 
accordance with policy 2.63 of the Cardiff Unitary Development Plan. 
 

5.27 Pollution Control (Noise & Air): The Pollution Control Officer makes the 
following comments: An acoustic report is required in order to establish the 
potential impacts of existing noise sources upon the development site. The 
acoustic report should consider the following:  
• The existing daytime and night time noise levels from the nearby roads at 

each storey of the proposed building;  
• An assessment of the expected impact the noise upon the future occupiers 

of the proposed building;  
• Details of any mitigation measures that may be required as a result of the 

impact assessment.  
 

5.28 Given that the proposal involves the placing of residential units close to 
transportation noise sources and that noise is a material consideration by 
paragraph 13.15.1 (Edition 7) of Planning Policy Wales, the Officer would 
expect the acoustic report to be submitted for consideration and approval by 
the Pollution Control team prior to the determining of the application. 

 
5.29 The PC Officer requests a plant noise condition and an additional construction 

site noise recommendation. 
 
6. EXTERNAL CONSULTEE RESPONSES 
 
6.1 DCWW: No objection subject to standard conditions on separation of foul and 

surface water, and discharge of surface and land drainage run-off to the public 
sewer. 

 
6.2 Natural Resources Wales: NRW note from the ecological survey that a 

common pipistrelle pre-maternity roost of at least 37 individuals was confirmed 
within the building to be demolished.  

 
6.3 All species of British bats are European Protected Species, legally protected 

under The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as 

Page 216



amended). Legal protection relates to the animals themselves and the places 
they use to rest and breed.  
 

6.4 Where a European Protected Species is present and development proposal is 
likely to contravene the legal protection they are afforded, the development 
may only proceed under licence issued by Natural Resources Wales, having 
satisfied the three requirements set out in the legislation. One of these requires 
that the development authorised will ‘not be detrimental to the maintenance of 
the population of the species concerned at a favourable conservation status 
(FCS) in their natural range’.  
 

6.5 These requirements are translated into planning policy through Planning Policy 
Wales (PPW) July 2014, section 5.5.11 and 5.5.12, and Technical Advice Note 
(TAN) 5, Nature Conservation and Planning (September 2009). The planning 
authority should take them into account when considering development 
proposals where a European Protected Species is present.  
 

6.6 In this instance, we do not consider it likely that the proposed development will 
result in a detriment to the maintenance of Favourable Conservation Status of 
bat species, provided that a suitably worded condition addressing the following 
is added to any permission your authority may be minded to grant:  
 

6.7 Suggested condition: Works will be carried out in accordance with the 
recommendations in Section 9 (Recommendations) of the Ecological Survey 
titled ‘Pomeroy Street, Butetown, Cardiff CF10 5FA - An Ecological Survey 
Report' prepared by Just Mammals Consultancy, dated July 2015. Reason: To 
ensure no detriment to the maintenance of favourable conservation status of 
the bat species present.  
 

6.8 European Protected Species Licence: We advise that the applicant seeks a 
European Protected Species licence from NRW under Regulation 53(2)e of 
The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 before any works 
on site commence that may impact upon bats. Please note that the granting of 
planning permission does not negate the need to obtain a licence. 
 

6.9 In conclusion the NRW do not object to the development as submitted, 
providing an appropriately worded condition requiring the implementation of 
suitable mitigation measures is attached to any planning permission your 
authority is minded to grant. This is to ensure no detriment to the maintenance 
of favourable conservation status of the bat species present.  
 

6.10 Wales & West Utilities: W&WU have provided a plan of their apparatus in the 
vicinity and a list of general conditions for prospective developers. This has 
been forwarded to the applicant. 

 
7.  REPRESENTATIONS 
 
7.1 The application was advertised on site and in the press as a major application. 

Neighbours and local members were consulted. A valid petition of objection has 
been received. Letters of objection have been received from an Assembly 

Page 217



Member and from 9 local residents. Local residents have also requested a 
committee site visit. 

 
7.2 A valid petition dated 7.8.15 and signed by 152 local residents objects on  the 

following grounds:  
• Overdevelopment of the area 
• Inadequate room for a construction site and for construction vehicles 
• Potential for damage to neighbouring properties as a result of pile driving 

 
7.3 Assembly Member Eluned Parrott objects to the application on the following 

grounds:  
• Increased level of traffic and congestion;  
• Inadequate parking provision;  
• Height of the building not in keeping with other properties in the area 
• Disruption during demolition and construction 

 
7.4 The objections from local residents are:  

• Inadequate parking provision 
• Increased level of traffic and congestion 
• Height of the building in relation to adjacent housing 
• Overlooking of Pomeroy Street houses and play area 
• Adverse impact on amenity of no. 1 Pomeroy Street 
• Loss of sunlight to Century Wharf flats 
• Presence of bats 
• Noise and disruption during construction process 
• Damage to neighbouring properties as a result of piledriving 
• Oversupply of apartments in the area 
• Inadequate consultation 
 

7.5 In summary, the main grounds for objection relate to inadequate on-site parking 
provision and increased level of traffic and congestion, excessive height in 
relation to neighbouring housing, overdevelopment of the  area, the potential 
for damage to neighbouring properties as a result of pile driving, and noise and 
disruption during the demolition/ construction process. 

 
8. ANALYSIS 
 
8.1 The main issues to assess are proposed use, parking provision, design, and 

impact on neighbours’ amenity. 
 

8.2 Land Use: The proposed site is located on land identified for business and 
industrial use in the Local Plan, and is therefore subject to Policy 36 of the City 
of Cardiff Local Plan.  Policy 36 of the Local Plan identifies a range of criteria 
against which applications for the alternative use of business and industrial 
land will be assessed.   
 

8.3 The key consideration is criterion (i) of the policy which requires such proposals 
to be assessed against the demand for, and the need to preserve a range, 

Page 218



choice and quality of sites available for business, industrial and warehousing 
development. 
 

8.4 In terms of need to preserve the site for business, industry and warehouse 
development, the site is not in a strategic location and it is surrounded by 
residential accommodation.  Consequently it would be difficult to argue that 
the application would reduce the quality of sites available for business, 
industrial and warehousing development.  
 

8.5 In addition it is considered that there is unlikely to be demand for business and 
industrial uses due to the scale and constraints of the site.  Therefore there is 
no need to preserve the site for business and industrial use. 
 

8.6 The application site is within an area where consent for residential uses has 
been granted and there is existing housing to the west, south, and east.  In 
addition Planning Policy Wales encourages the use of previously developed 
land, in preference to greenfield sites, for new residential development.   
 

8.7 Therefore the principle of residential use, on previously developed land, in 
addition to the lack of need to preserve the site for business and industrial use, 
does not raise any land use policy concerns.   
 

8.8 Design: The top storey of the five storey building is set back 4m from the 
Pomeroy Street and Clarence Road facades which significantly reduces the 
bulk of the building. The building of a similar height to Avondale Court and to 
the new block of flats over the road. The height and massing of the corner 
building and its relationship to its neighbours and to Clarence Road and 
Pomeroy Street is acceptable. 
 

8.9 Window openings are full storey height with a strong vertical emphasis, and 
materials are brickwork with a dark red brick to the lower floors and a dark 
blue-black brick to the upper floors. The composition of the principal facades 
and the choice of materials is simple and designed to sit comfortably alongside 
Avondale Court and the recently completed flats on the other side of Pomeroy 
Street. 
 

8.10 The design has a proper regard to the scale and character of the surrounding 
environment and is acceptable. Materials samples and architectural detailing 
conditions are attached. 
 

8.11 Public realm: The application site is bordered to the south by a rear lane that 
provides pedestrian/ vehicle access between Pomeroy Street/ Hunter Street 
and will be used to access/ service the proposed development. The existing 
carriageway is of a poor quality and there is a need to resurface the lane in 
order to provide a more attractive and accessible pedestrian environment than 
that which serves the site at present, particularly due to the nature of the 
proposal as a residential development where movements to and from the 
building will take place later into the day and at night. 

 

Page 219



8.12 Should the application be considered acceptable in all other respects, it is 
recommended that the applicant undertake public realm improvement works 
(as identified in Plan 1) in order to improve the quality of the pedestrian 
environment. It is requested that these works include: The resurfacing of the 
lane to the rear of the application site; Reinstatement/ making good of footway 
crossovers at Pomeroy Street and Hunter Street; Resurfacing of sections of 
footway at Clarence Road and Pomeroy Street; Replacement of existing 
lighting column at Pomeroy Street. 
 

8.13 Parking provision: The adopted Access, Circulation and Parking Standards 
SPG identifies a parking requirement of zero to one car space per residential 
unit (zero visitor) for the City Centre and Bay; which equates to zero to 17 for 
the level of development proposed in the outline application. Zero car parking 
provision is therefore policy compliant.  
 

8.14 It is considered that the proposed residential use accords with parking policy, 
will generate little or no additional parking demand over the day, is likely to 
result in fewer less intrusive vehicle trips than the former commercial use, and 
given its nature (smaller units) likely to attract residents who are more likely not 
to own/use a car than otherwise might be the case. An objection on parking or 
traffic grounds would be unsustainable and any reason for refusal on this basis 
would not withstand challenge. 

 
8.15 For information parking provision on the neighbouring Avondale Court is zero. 

Permission was granted in 1999, prior to the introduction of the current parking 
standards, and the reduced parking provision was justified on the grounds that 
the residential use is restricted to the elderly and retired persons. Parking 
provision on the neighbouring Sterling Works site (granted 2013) is for 6 on-site 
parking spaces serving 19 affordable 1B and 2B flats. It was originally resolved 
to grant planning permission subject to a legal agreement for 19 market flats 
with 7 parking spaces in 2012. This was subsequently amended to 100% 
affordable housing with 6 parking spaces.  

 
8.16 The number of cycle spaces proposed is 18, located in a secure covered store 

with easy access. Cycle storage provision is acceptable. 
 

8.17 External amenity space: The development has limited external amenity space 
in the form of a rear courtyard area with good access from the common area of 
the flats and access to the rear lane. The courtyard will receive sunlight during 
the afternoon, and although small will benefit from being located next to the 
Avondale Court external amenity area, which is well used. Given the nature of 
the affordable housing proposed (single bedroom) and the fact that the site is 
within easy reach of Hamadryad Park and Canal Park, external amenity space 
provision is acceptable. 
 

8.18 A financial contribution towards improvements to public open space in the 
vicinity will be secured through a legal agreement. 

 
8.19 Overlooking and overbearing impact: The separation distance between the 

Pomeroy Street façade windows and the windows of the houses on the 

Page 220



opposite side of the street is approximately 12m. The distance between the 
opposing windows of the terraced houses further along the street is 
approximately 15.5m which is typical of the older established terraced housing 
in the area.  
 

8.20 The Council’s SPG recommends minimum separation distance of 21m 
between opposing windows of habitable rooms. However the guidance 
recognises that in the case of infill schemes in established urban areas a 
reduction of this distance to respect existing street patterns and building lines is 
acceptable. 
 

8.21 The separation distance from the Avondale Court corridor windows at the rear 
of the development varies between 7.5m and 9.0m. The amended plans have 
repositioned the only habitable room windows in the proposed block to avoid 
any direct overlooking. 
 

8.22 Amended plans have addressed any potential overlooking of the rear yard area 
of 1 Pomeroy Street by relocating the dining room windows of apartments 4, 8, 
& 12.  
 

8.23 In relation to potential overbearing impact of the new development on 1 
Pomeroy Street the eaves height of the building is approximately 4.5m higher 
than the existing building however the footprint along the rear lane is 
significantly reduced and on balance the overall impact is likely to be similar. 
 

8.24 Road Traffic Noise: The applicant has agreed to commission a noise survey but 
the survey has yet to be undertaken. In the event the survey report is completed 
prior to determination the conclusions will be reported to committee as a late 
rep. A standard road traffic noise condition has been added. 
 

 Representations: 
 

8.25 The Councillors’ and residents’ objections on the grounds of inadequate 
parking and traffic congestion, overlooking and overbearing impact, and 
building height are addressed above.  
 

8.26 Other matters: In relation to objections on the grounds of overdevelopment of 
the area the site falls within a predominantly residential area, and is similar in 
density and scale to recently consented schemes in the immediate area. It 
should also be noted that overdevelopment of an area (as opposed to a site) is 
not strictly speaking a material planning consideration. The cumulative impact 
of this development and other recently consented/ implemented flatted 
residential developments in the immediate area is not considered harmful to the 
character or amenity of the area.  
 

8.27 Objections on the grounds of oversupply of apartments are not a material 
consideration. The site falls within a predominantly residential area and the 
proposed residential use is therefore acceptable in planning terms. 
 

Page 221



8.28 In relation to noise and disruption arising from demolition and construction a 
recommendation on construction site noise is attached and excessive noise 
and disruption, or working during hours outside those specified, would be a 
matter for Pollution Control. 
 

8.29 The potential for physical damage to neighbouring properties as a result of pile 
driving is not a material planning consideration. 

 
9. CONCLUSION  

 
9.1 In conclusion the proposals provide additional affordable housing that has 

proper regard for the scale and character of its neighbours. The loss of 
industrial land in this location is acceptable. Parking provision is policy 
compliant and is considered unlikely to result in an adverse impact on on-street 
parking and traffic movement.  
 

9.2 The gr mposed and a legal agreement (Section 106) being signed to ensure the 
delivery of 100% affordable housing on the site, and secure financial 
contributions, as follows:  
• £26,393 towards the design, improvement and/or maintenance of public 

open space within the locality of the development site. The closest 
recreational open spaces are Hamadryad Park and Canal Park. 

• £2,160 towards the cost of installing cycle parking and bollards in Clarence 
Road footway in the vicinity of the site. 

 

Page 222



Rive
r T

aff (
Afon T

af)

Issues

Graving Dock No 3

R
iver T

aff

(A
fon T

af)

Industrial

Works

Estate

Hosking

Mount Stuart
Graving Docks

SM

Sloping

El

S
lo

pi
ng

 m
as

on
ry

Slop
ing

 m
as

on
ry

Ground

Sub Sta

S
lip

w
ay

m
asonry

R
ecreation G

round

Recreation

m
as

on
ry

Slop
ing

Ramp

Slop
ing

 m
as

on
ry

Playground

Slop
ing

 m
as

on
ry

7.6m

7.9m

7.9m

8.2m

8.5m

8.5m

8.8m

8.2m

8.8m

8.5m

8.5m

7.9m

7.9m

8.2m

8.2m

8.2m

8.2m

LB

LB

Clarence Road

TCBs

TCB

Bridge

El Sub Sta

Outfall

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

Bollard
Travelling Crane

LB

LB

El Sub Sta

Landing Stages

STUART SQUARE

CLARENCE ROAD

H
U

R
M

A
N

 S
TR

E
E

T

CLOSE

CLA
RENCE E

MBANKMENT

HUNTE
R

H
A

R
R

O
W

B
Y

 L
A

N
E

ST
REE

T

BURT PLACE

ADELAIDE PLACE

CLOS Y GORLLEWIN

H
E

O
L 

TR
E

D
W

E
N

FFORDD RADCLIFFE

C
H

A
N

D
LE

R
Y

 W
A

Y

MOUNT

MOUNT STUART SQUARE

WEST

WEST CLOSE

R
O

Y
A

L 
S

TU
A

R
T 

LA
N

E

A
D

E
LA

ID
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

H
A

R
R

O
W

B
Y

 S
TR

E
E

T

JAMES STREET

TAFF EMBANKMENT

CLARENCE

NORTH B
UTETOW

N C
YCLE

 R
OUTE

ROAD

AVONDALE
 G

ARDENS S
OUTH

HARROWBY PLACE

H
A

R
R

O
W

B
Y

 L
A

N
E

D
U

D
LE

Y
 S

TR
E

E
T

C
O

U
R

T

STUART STREET / STRYD STUART

A
D

E
LA

ID
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 /

DUDLEY

HAMADRYAD ROAD

BUTE ESPLANADE

POMEROY S
TREET

H
A

R
R

O
W

B
Y

CLARENCE PLACE

HUNTER S
TR

EET

BU
R

T 
ST

R
EE

T

CLA
RENCE

EM
BANKMENT

S
T

R
E

E
T

STREET

CLA
RENCE E

MBANKM
ENT

HAMADRYAD ROAD

POMEROY

SOUDREY WAY

C
A

R
LO

T
TA

 W
A

Y

S
T

R
Y

D
 A

D
E

LA
ID

E

S
T

R
Y

D
 A

D
E

LA
ID

E

D
U

M
B

A
LL

S
 R

O
A

D

CLARENCE PLACE

POMEROY S
TREET

B
U

R
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

PL
AC

E

LO
U

IS
A

Bollard

Post

Bollard

Posts

Posts

Posts

Track

Tunnel

Path

Path

Tr
ac

k

T
rack

C
yc

le
 T

ra
ck

 a
nd

 P
at

h

51

2

74

58

13

H
o use

8

PH

11

63

2 8

35

23 20

61

Youth Centre

14

16

GVC

Community

57

Bank

Empire

Cardiff Exchange

House

262

39

66

RC Church

W
al

te
rs

65 59

62

C
ol

um
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

M
ount S

tuart

B
ui

ld
in

gs

B
os

to
n 

B
ui

ld
in

gs

PH

250

33

11

41

58

246

68

266

58

9

13

Sub

24

53

258

St Cuthbert's Court

Works

Bethel

15

Church

Buildings
Salvage

Hall

Warehouse

67

Baptist

Ocean House

14

25

R
oy

al

62

1

2

50

57 to 72

Judkin Court

149 to 164

35

14

37

44

8

11 13

1

1

264

26

6

69

26

256

64

260

54 to 57

17

5

Baltic House

72

28

254

60

53

252

47
45

25

Centre

1

33
39

73

7

55

62

46

75

5 3

48

68

1

29

88

72

El

29

71
63

S
tu

ar
t

1

D
ou

gl
as

1
B

ui
ld

in
gs

43

W
ar

eh
ou

se
s

1

70

Sta

56

17

St Cuthbert's

14

Avondale Court

15
 to

 1
7

8

31

54

19
0

77

71

19
4

218

17
8

19
2

69

76

83

67

206

Sub Sta

20
2

68

18
6

306

208

224

10

312

292

89

234
228

296

216

324

294

19
8

18
2

320

326

284

233

286

268

El

17
6

91

70

18
0

18
8

90

212

82

214

204

310

274

60

318

270

302

304

314

298

316

276

242

290

300

280

86

308

230

236

322

288

226
220

238

240

18
4

232

210

272

222

9

13

34

Clar
en

ce
 C

ou
rt

1

10

39

44

Techniquest

34

47

47

Club

8

12

Mountstuart

Ppg Sta

7

1

6

14

1 
to

 1
2

Sewage

11

16

1

10

2

21

9

46

Primary

School

Waverley Square

42

40

51

5

11

49

56

27

Baybridge Nursing Home

73

15 to 26

32

2

13

89

43

33

19

30
8

11

18

29

91

11

25

13

87

11

35 to 50

2

50

5

61

74

1

46

16

86

42

45

60

7

7

1

41

63

51

64

72

1 to 8

18

20

20

12

18
 to

 2
0

The Lofts

1 to 42

88 to 106

13
0 

to
 1

48

73 to 87

10
7 

to
 1

29

El Sub Sta

43 to 56

St James Mansions

1 to 27

Viceroy Mansions

21
 to

 5
0

37 to 61

1 
to

 3
6

89 to104

75 to 88

62 to 74

1 to 20

1 
to

 6
8

S
t S

te
ph

en
s 

M
an

si
on

s

Viceroy Court

El Sub Sta

15 to 133

4

1

5

7

1 to 46

100

45 to 69

105

21
 to

 4
4

Taliesin Court

Lynton Court

1 
to

 2
0

85

90

75

80

95

70

1

5

Geneva House

53

25

43

20

18
 to

 2
0

61

31 to 60

1 to 30

61 to 83

84
 to

 1
11

Cannes House

Vienna House

11
2 

to
 1

46

30
 to

 4
4

2 to 16

62
 to

 7
6

46
 to

 6
0

Penstone Court

Porto House

14
7 

to
 1

81

182 to 242
Calais House

Clarence Mews

1 to 7

6 3  to  7 3

Multi Car PK

56

Mountstuart

54

16

248

Bank

4

52

3

7

1

5

2

6

to

10

Primary

School

37

8

278
282

244
87

20

78 to 92

The Hamadryad Centre

Centre

The Hamadryad

House1 
to

 8

The
Canal

Scale

Checked by

Drawn by

Date

Project number

A1

1 : 1250

20
/0

7/
20

15
 0

9:
38

:0
9

Site Location Plan

0267

Phoenix Saxon Residential
Development

Wales & West Housing
Association

15/06/5

FL

HJ

AS 00
1 : 1250AS 00
Site Location Plan1

P
age 223



48.96 m²

Apartment 1

53.86 m²

Apartment 3

23.77 m²

Bike Storage

46.45 m²

Apartment 2

1.91 m²

Plant

54.06 m²

External Amenity

Space

4.48 m²

Plant

18.53 m²

Bin Storage

46.76 m²

Apartment 6/10/14

53.88 m²

Apartment 7 / 11 /

15

1.91 m²

Plant

48.59 m²

Apartment 5/9/13
48.91 m²

Apartment 4/8/12

52.73 m²

Apartment 16

51.08 m²

Apartment 17

1.91 m²

Plant

CLARENCE ROAD

POM
EROY S

TREET

Scale

Checked by

Drawn by

Date

Project number

A1

As indicated

15
/0

9/
20

15
 1

1:
40

:4
0

Proposed Floor Plans

0267

Phoenix Saxon Residential
Development

Wales & West Housing
Association

15/06/5

FL

HJ

AL 00

 1 : 100AL 00
Ground Floor Plan1

 1 : 100AL 00
First, Second + Third Floor2

 1 : 100AL 00
Fourth Floor3

 1 : 200AL 00
Site Plan0

A Window positions moved in
Apartments 4/8/12.

 15/09/2015

Rev A

P
age 224



COMMITTEE DATE: 14/10/2015 
 
APPLICATION No.   14/02887/MJR APPLICATION DATE:  10/12/2014 
 
ED:    BUTETOWN 
 
APP: TYPE:   Full Planning Permission 
 
APPLICANT:   Mr J R Smart 
LOCATION:   FORMER SURFACE CARPARK ON TRIANGULAR SITE 
    OFF HERBERT STREET. 
PROPOSAL:   180 1/2/3 BEDROOM APARTMENTS IN 7/8/22 STOREY 
    BLOCKS WITH A3(FOOD AND DRINK), B1(OFFICE) 
    AND A2(FINANCE/PROFESSIONAL)USE TO GROUND 
    FLOOR WITH ASSOCIATED CAR PARKING AND  
    AMENITY SPACE     
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 RECOMMENDATION 1 :  That, subject to relevant parties entering into a 

binding planning obligation in agreement with the Council under SECTION 106 
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, within 6 months of the date of this 
resolution unless otherwise agreed by the Council in writing, in respect of 
matters detailed in paragraph 9.2 of this report, planning permission be 
GRANTED subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. C01 Statutory Time Limit 
 
2. The consent relates to the following approved plans:  

Dwg. No. Title 
PL 106A  Proposed Masterplan - Key Plan  
PL 201A  Proposed Ground Floor Plan  
PL 202A  Proposed First Floor Plan  
PL 203A  Proposed Second to Fourth Floor Plan  
PL 204A  Proposed Third & Fifth Floor Plan 
PL 205A  Proposed Sixth Floor Plan  
PL 206A  Proposed Seventh Floor Plan 
PL 207A  Proposed Eighth Floor Plan  
PL 208A  Proposed Ninth & Seventeenth Floor Plan  
PL 209A  Proposed Tenth,Twelfth & Eighteenth Floor Plan 
PL 210A  Proposed Eleventh & Thirteenth Floor Plan  
PL 211A  Proposed Fourteenth Floor Plan  
PL 212A  Proposed Fifteenth Floor Plan 
PL 213A  Proposed Sixteenth Floor Plan  
PL 214A  Proposed Nineteenth Floor Plan 
PL 215A  Proposed Twentieth to Twenty Second Floor Plan 
PL 216A  Proposed Roof Plan 
PL 250A  Proposed First Floor Plan - Flat Layouts  
PL 251A  Proposed Second & Fourth Floor Plan - Flat Layouts 
PL 252A  Proposed Third & Fifth Floor Plan - Flat Layouts 
PL 253A  Proposed Sixth Floor Plan - Flat Layouts 

Page 225

Agenda Item 7



PL 254A  Proposed Seventh Floor Plan - Flat Layouts  
PL 255A  Proposed Eighth Floor Plan - Flat Layouts 
PL 256A  Proposed Ninth & Seventeenth Floor Plan - Flat Layouts  
PL 257A  Proposed Tenth, Twelfth & Eighteenth Floor Plan - Flat 

 Layouts 
PL 258A  Proposed Twentieth to Twenty Floor Plan - Flat Layouts 
PL 259A  Proposed Twentieth to Twenty Floor Plan - Flat Layouts 
PL 301A  Proposed South (Herbert St) Context Elevation 
PL 302A  Proposed East (Canal & Capital Quarter) Context 

 Elevation 
PL 303A  Proposed West (Callaghan Square) Context Elevation  
PL 304A  Proposed North (Altolusso) Context Elevation 
PL 305A  Proposed South (Herbert St) Detail Elevation 
PL 306A  Proposed East (Canal & Capital Quarter) Detail Elevation  
PL 307A  Proposed West (Callaghan Square) Detail Elevation 
PL 308A  Proposed North (Altolusso) Detail Elevation 
PL 310A  Proposed Typical Elevation Details - South Elevation to 

 Tyndall St 
PL 311  Proposed Typical Elevation Details - Block 3 South 

 Elevation  
PL 312  Proposed Typical Elevation Details - Block 3 East 

 Elevation 
PL 313  Proposed Typical Elevation Details - Block 3 Top Levels 

 East Elev. 
PL 314  Proposed Typical Elevation Details - Block 3 Top Levels 

 West Elev. 
PL 315  Proposed Typical Elevation Details - Block 3 Top Levels 

 South Elev. 
PL 316  Proposed Typical Elevation Details - Block 3 Top Levels 

 North Elev. 
PL 401A  Proposed Section A-A 
PL 402A  Proposed Section B-B 
PL 403A  Proposed Section C-C 
PL 410A  Proposed Section F-F - Proposed Herbert Street Section  
PL 411A  Proposed Section G-G - Proposed Car Park & Podium 

 Section 
PL 412A  Proposed Section H-H - Proposed Canal Section 
PL 451A  Proposed Part Sections & Elevation Detail Sheet 1  
PL 452A  Proposed Part Sections & Elevation Detail Sheet 2 
PL 453A  Proposed Part Sections & Elevation Detail Sheet 3  
PL 510  Proposed Sections through Canal / Dock Feeder 

 Walkway 
PL 511  Proposed Sections through Herbert St & Proposed 

 Building Entrance 
PL 512  Proposed Sections through Herbert St & South Elevation 
PL 513  Proposed Sections through Rail Embankment / Car park 

 & Podium 
PL 1010  Proposed CGI Perspective A3 NTS / 
PL 1011  Proposed CGI Perspective A3 NTS / 
PL 1012  Proposed CGI Perspective A3 NTS / 

Page 226



1096 SK/01  Landscape Proposals - Planting Plan A1 1:250 / 
1096 SK/02  Landscape Proposals - Podium Planting Plan A1 1:250 / 

 
 Reason: The plans amend and form part of the application. 
 
3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning 

(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any Order amending, 
revoking, or re-enacting that Order) there shall be no permitted 
development rights for change of use from A2 (professional and financial 
services) use to A1 (shop) use.  

 Reason: To conform with Local Plan out-of-centre retail policy. 
 
4. A3 (food & drink) ground floor uses fronting Herbert Street and the Dock 

Feeder Canal (as indicated on Proposed Ground Floor dwg. no. 
PL201A) shall be restricted to café/restaurant A3 uses only.  

 Reason: To ensure that the amenities of existing neighbours and future 
occupiers are protected. 

 
5. C7X No Takeaway Sales 
 
6. No member of the public shall be admitted to or allowed to remain on any 

A3 premises between the hours of 23:00 and 08.00 hrs. on any day.  
 Reason: To ensure that the amenities of occupiers of existing 

neighbours and future occupiers are protected. 
 
7. G7W Delivery Times 
 
8. H7G Plant Noise 
 
9. A scheme of sound insulation works to the floor/ceiling and party wall 

structures between the B1/ A2/ A3 premises and the residential 
accommodation shall be submitted to and agreed by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing and implemented prior to occupation. Reason: To 
ensure that the amenities of occupiers of other premises in the vicinity 
are protected. 

 
10. F7Q Kitchen Extraction 
 
11. All habitable rooms exposed to external railway noise in excess of 66 

dBA Leq 16 hour (free field) during the day (07.00 to 23.00 hours) or 59 
dBA Leq 8 hour (free field) at night (23.00 to 07.00 hours) shall be 
subject to sound insulation measures to ensure that all such rooms 
achieve an internal noise level of 40 dBA Leq 16 hour during the day and 
35 dBA Leq 8 hour at night. The submitted scheme shall ensure that 
habitable rooms subject to sound insulation measures shall be provided 
with acoustically treated active ventilation units. Each ventilation unit 
(with air filter in position), by itself or with an integral air supply duct and 
cowl (or grille), shall be capable of giving variable ventilation rates 
ranging from –  
1)  an upper rate of not less than 37 litres per second against a back 

Page 227



pressure of 10 newtons per square metre and not less than 31 
litres per second against a back pressure of 30 newtons per 
square metre, to 

2)  a lower rate of between 10 and 17 litres per second against zero 
back pressure. 

 No habitable room shall be occupied until the approved sound insulation 
and ventilation measures have been installed in that room. Any private 
open space (excepting terraces or balconies to any apartment) shall be 
designed to provide an area which is at least 50% of the area for sitting 
out where the maximum  day time noise level does not exceed 55 dBA 
Leq 16 hour [free field]. Reason: To ensure that the amenities of future 
occupiers are protected. 

 
12. Prior to commencement of development a scheme shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority to provide that 
all habitable rooms exposed to external road traffic noise in excess of 63 
dBA Leq 16 hour [free field] during the day [07.00 to 23.00 hours] or 57 
dBA Leq 8 hour [free field] at night [23.00 to 07.00 hours] shall be subject 
to sound insulation measures to ensure that all such rooms achieve an 
internal noise level of 40 dBA Leq 16 hour during the day and 35 dBA 
Leq 8 hour at night. The submitted scheme shall ensure that habitable 
rooms subject to sound insulation measures shall be provided with 
acoustically treated active ventilation units. Each ventilation unit (with air 
filter in position), by itself or with an integral air supply duct and cowl (or 
grille), shall be capable of giving variable ventilation rates ranging from –  
1)  an upper rate of not less than 37 litres per second against a back 

pressure of 10 newtons per square metre and not less than 31 
litres per second against a back pressure of 30 newtons per 
square metre, to 

2)  a lower rate of between 10 and 17 litres per second against 
zero back pressure. 

No habitable room shall be occupied until the approved sound 
insulation and ventilation measures have been installed in that 
room. Any private open space (excepting terraces or balconies to any 
apartment) shall be designed to provide an area which is at least 50% of 
the area for sitting out where the maximum maximum day time noise 
level does not exceed 55 dBA Leq 16 hour [free field].  

 Reason: To ensure that the amenities of future occupiers are 
protected. 

 
13. No development shall take place until samples of the external finishing 

materials have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory finished appearance to the 
development. 

 
14. No development shall take place until a scheme showing the 

architectural detailing of the principal elevations has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the 

Page 228



development shall not be brought into beneficial use until the approved 
scheme is implemented.  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory finished appearance to the building. 
 
15. C3S Cycle Parking 
 
16. E3D Retain Parking Within Site 
 
17. C3O No Additional Access 
 
18. C3F Details of Access Road Junction 
 
19. Prior to commencement of development a scheme of environmental 

highway improvements to Herbert Street and Tyndall Street in the 
vicinity of the site is to have been submitted to and agreed in writing with 
the Local Planning Authority. The scheme to include as required, but not 
be limited to, extending the central island on Herbert Street and 
implementation of the revised site access as indicated in principle on 
Appendix 8 of the submitted TA; the resurfacing of the east and 
westbound carriageways of Herbert Street between the Canal Bridge 
and junction of Lloyd George Avenue; the widening to 3m and 
resurfacing of the northern footway of Herbert Street from the Canal 
Bridge to the Rail Bridge; including surfacing, kerbs, edging, drainage, 
lining and signing, street lighting, street furniture and TROs as may be 
required as a consequence of the scheme. The agreed scheme to be 
implemented to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority prior to 
beneficial occupation of the development. Reason: To facilitate safe and 
efficient access to and egress from the proposed development by the 
incoming residents; and the improvement, and reinstatement of the 
adjacent public highway in the interests of highway and pedestrian 
safety. 

 
20. Prior to commencement of development a scheme of construction 

management shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, to include details of construction traffic routes, site hoardings, 
site access, contractor parking and wheel washing facilities. 
Construction of the development shall be managed strictly in 
accordance with the scheme so approved.  

 Reason: In the interests of highway safety and public amenity. 
 
21. Prior to the commencement of the any part of the approved 

development, the proposed details of appropriate gas protection 
measures which are required to ensure the safe management of gases 
to prevent migration of gases into the buildings shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing to the Local Planning Authority. All required gas 
protection measures shall be installed and appropriately verified before 
occupation of any part of the development which has been permitted 
and the approved protection measures shall be retained and maintained 
until such time as the Local Planning Authority agrees in writing that the 
measures are no longer required.  

Page 229



 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced in 
accordance with policy 2.63 of the Cardiff Unitary Development Plan 

 
22. Prior to the commencement of the development a detailed remediation 

scheme and verification plan to bring the site to a condition suitable for 
the intended use by removing any unacceptable risks to human health, 
controlled waters, buildings, other property and the natural and historical 
environment, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include all works to be 
undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, a 
timetable of works and site management procedures.  

 Reason: To ensure that any unacceptable risks from land contamination 
to the future users of the land, neighbouring land, controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems are minimised, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
policy 2.63 of the Cardiff Unitary Development Plan 

 
23. The remediation scheme as approved by the Local Planning Authority 

must be fully undertaken in accordance with its terms prior to the 
occupation of any part of the development unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority 
must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the 
remediation scheme works. Within 6 months of the completion of the 
measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification 
report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out 
must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  

 Reason :To ensure that any unacceptable risks from land contamination 
to the future users of the land, neighbouring land, controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems are minimised, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
policy 2.63 of the Cardiff Unitary Development Plan. 

 
24. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 

the approved development that was not previously identified it must be 
reported in writing within 2 days to the Local Planning Authority, all 
associated works must stop, and no further development shall take 
place unless otherwise agreed in writing until a scheme to deal with the 
contamination found has been approved.  An investigation and risk 
assessment must be undertaken and where remediation is necessary a 
remediation scheme and verification plan must be prepared and 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved 
remediation scheme a verification report must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The timescale for 
the above actions shall be agreed with the LPA within 2 weeks of the 
discovery of any unsuspected contamination.  

 Reason: To ensure that any unacceptable risks from land contamination 

Page 230



to the future users of the land , neighbouring land, controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems are minimised, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
policy 2.63 of the Cardiff Unitary Development Plan. 

 
25. During the development an Asbestos Monitoring Plan must be must be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in 
order to ensure that appropriate measures are taken to monitor and 
mitigate against the release of any asbestos fibres which may be 
present. All works shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved 
documents. Reason: To ensure that the development can be carried out 
safely without any acceptable risks to workers, neighbours or any other 
offsite receptors in accordance with Policy 2.63 of the Cardiff Unitary 
Development Plan. 

  
26. Any topsoil [natural  or manufactured],or subsoil, to be imported shall 

be assessed for chemical or other potential contaminants in accordance 
with a scheme of investigation to be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority in advance of its importation. Only 
material approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be imported. All 
measures specified in the approved scheme shall be undertaken in 
accordance with the relevant Code of Practice and Guidance Notes. 
Subject to approval of the above, verification sampling of the material 
received at the development site is required to verify that the imported 
soil is free from contamination and shall be undertaken in accordance 
with a scheme agreed with in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced. 
 
27. Any aggregate  (other than virgin quarry stone) or recycled aggregate 

material to be imported shall be assessed for chemical or other potential 
contaminants in accordance with a scheme of investigation to be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
advance of its importation. Only material approved by the Local Planning 
Authority shall be imported. All measures specified in the approved 
scheme shall be undertaken in accordance with the relevant Code of 
Practice and Guidance Notes. Subject to approval of the above, 
verification sampling of the material received at the development site is 
required to verify that the imported aggregate is free from contamination 
and shall be undertaken in accordance with a scheme agreed with in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced. 
 
28. Any site won material including soils, aggregates, recycled materials 

shall be assessed for chemical or other potential contaminants in 
accordance with a sampling scheme which shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in advance of the 
reuse of site won materials. Only material which meets site specific 
target values approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be reused.  

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced in 

Page 231



accordance with Policy 2.63 of the Cardiff Unitary Development Plan. 
 
29. C2N Drainage details 
 
30. C7S Details of Refuse Storage 
 
31. C4P Landscaping Design & Implementation Pro 
 
32. C4R Landscaping Implementation 
 
RECOMMENDATION 2: The applicant is asked to consider entering into an 
agreement under Section 35 Highways Act A 1980, creation of walkways by 
agreement, for the secondary pedestrian routes identified on submitted M2H 
plan number PL109A. The applicant is reminded that the highway works 
condition and any other works to existing or proposed adopted public highway 
are to be subject to an agreement under Section 38 and/or Section 278 
Highways Act 1980 between the developer and Local Highway Authority. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 4: The applicant is advised of the NR requirements for 
the safe operation of the railway and the protection of NR’s adjoining land 
contained within their consultation response dated 8.1.15. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 5: To protect the amenities of occupiers of other 
premises in the vicinity attention is drawn to the provisions of Section 60 of the 
Control of Pollution Act 1974 in relation to the control of noise from demolition 
and construction activities. Further to this the applicant is advised that no noise 
audible outside the site boundary adjacent to the curtilage of residential 
property shall be created by construction activities in respect of the 
implementation of this consent outside the hours of 0800-1800 hours Mondays 
to Fridays and 0800 - 1300 hours on Saturdays or at any time on Sunday or 
public holidays. The applicant is also advised to seek approval for any 
proposed piling operations. 
 

1. DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
1.1 The detailed application proposes the construction of 180 apartments (40x1 

bed; 114x2 bed; 8x3 bed; 18x studios) in a seven/ eight/ 23 storey block on a 
triangular site bounded by Herbert Street to the south, the Dock Feeder Canal 
to the east and the railway line embankment to the north and west.  

 
1.2 The block is L-shaped with a 7 storey block fronting Herbert Street stepping up 

to an 8 storey block fronting the Dock Feeder and terminating in a 23 storey 
tower block at the northern end of the site.  
 

1.3 Vehicular access is from Herbert Street via the existing access point 
underneath the building to an undercroft parking area with 42 parking spaces. 
Access and egress from/to Herbert Street will be left turn only.  

 
1.4 A small landscaped square is located at the SE corner of the site adjacent to 

the Dock Feeder. Main front door access to the 7 and 8 storey blocks is from the 

Page 232



Square which then continues northwards as a 6m wide pedestrian/ cyclist path 
running alongside the Dock Feeder. This path gives access to the front door of 
the tower block and to a pedestrian footbridge over the Dock Feeder to link the 
site to the adjacent Tyndall Street Capital Quarter site. The capital Quarter site 
is being developed in phases by the applicant. 

 
1.5 Retail (A2 and A3) and office uses are proposed to the ground floor of the 7 

storey block fronting Herbert Street, and to approximately 60% of the ground 
floor of the 8 storey block fronting the landscaped pedestrian route and the 
Dock Feeder.  

 
1.6 To the rear of the development is a landscaped amenity podium deck 

spanning over the undercroft parking area. The podium is accessed from the 
circulation cores and measures approx. 500sqm, and at its NW boundary with 
the Network Rail land is approximately 1.5m below the level of the railway 
tracks at a minimum separation distance of 12m. The podium is in sunlight for 
all of the afternoon at the equinox. 
 

1.7 The lower buildings fronting Herbert Street and the Dock Feeder are of a similar 
scale and design to the Capital Quarter and Callaghan Square developments, 
characterised by a restrained civic style of architecture.  

 
1.8  The residential tower is of a similar scale to the tall buildings on Bute Street and 

extrudes the architecture of the lower blocks over 23 storeys. The height of the 
tower is staggered by 4 storeys at the top in order to break up the massing and 
provide more interest to the skyline, and the façade is broken up by framed bay 
elements and the introduction of balconies and winter gardens.  

 
1.9  Materials are primarily metal cladding and curtain walling with the introduction 

of some colour to the bay elements. Elevations are further enlivened by the 
introduction of balconies and winter gardens to the southern corners. 

 
1.10 Amended plans addressing the height, massing and design of the tower block 

in particular have been received and local members, neighbours and 
representators have been reconsulted. 

 
1.11 The application is supported by the following additional information: 

• Design and Access Statement 
• Transport Assessment 
• Sun Path Analysis 
• Geo-Technical and Geo-Environmental Report 
• Drainage Strategy Statement 
• Environmental Noise Survey 
• Masterplan car parking allocation plan PL120A 
• Visual Impact Assessment of tower (May 2015) 
• Herbert Street Viability Appraisal (Savills, Jan 2015 on behalf of the 

applicant) 
• Review of development viability in respect of land off Herbert Street (DVS, 

April 2015) 

Page 233



• Review of DVS draft assessment (Savills, May 2015 on behalf of the 
applicant) 

 
2. DESCRIPTION OF SITE 
 
2.1 The triangular largely flat application site is 0.35 hectares in area and has been 

cleared. It was most recently been in use as a temporary car park with access 
from Herbert Street to the south. The railway line runs on a 6m high 
embankment to the north and west, and the Dock Feeder to the east. To the 
other side of the Dock Feeder is the Capital Quarter site which has outline 
planning permission for a mixed use development and is being built out in 
phases.  

 
2.2 In terms of context: To the west is the Callaghan Square office development, 

and to the south the Atlantic Wharf new and refurbished relatively low-rise 
office/resi development. To the north of the site is the City Centre Principal 
Business Area and there are a number of high buildings on Bute Terrace, 
including the Pellet Street student housing block, the Altolusso residential 
tower, and the Radisson Blu Hotel.  

 
3. PLANNING HISTORY 

 
• 11/173/DCI Planning permission refused for application to extend 

temporary car park use. The site first got permission for temporary car park 
use (3yrs) in 1999 and the permission had been renewed annually. 

 
 Related planning history on the Capital Quarter (Tyndall St. Industrial estate) 
 site. 

• Planning permission 12/1716/DCI granted in October 2013 to vary 
condition 1C of outline consent 08/2740C to extend the period for the 
application for approval of reserved matters for a further 3 years. 

• Planning permission 11/1099/DCI granted December 2014 for a 296 
parking space multi-storey car park. Legal agreement changed by Deed of 
Variation in May 2015 varying the car park occupancy management plan to 
remove the public car parking element and include a residential parking 
element for the Herbert street site. 

• Outline planning permission 08/2740C granted in December 2009 for a 
mixed use development including offices, a hotel, a care home, student 
accommodation, an aparthotel, and A1 and A3 uses.  

 
4. POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
4.1 Adopted City of Cardiff Local Plan 

Policy 11 Design and Aesthetic Quality 
Policy 17 Parking and Servicing Facilities 
Policy 31 Residential Open Space Requirements 
Policy 36 Alternative Use of Business, Industrial and Warehousing Land 
 

4.2 Deposit Cardiff Unitary Development Plan (2003) 
Policy 2.20 Good Design 

Page 234



Policy 2.24 Residential Amenity 
 

4.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance 
Open Space Supplementary Planning Guidance (2008) 
Community Facilities and Residential Development (2007) 
Affordable Housing (2007) 
Affordable Housing Delivery Statement (2010) 
Tall Buildings Design Guide (2009) 
Safeguarding Land for Business and Industry (2006) 
Access, Circulation & Parking Standards (2010) 
Developer Contributions for School Facilities (2007) 
Residential Design Guide (2008) 
Restaurants, Takeaways, & other Food & Drink Uses (1996) 

 Eating, Drinking and Entertainment in the City Centre (2000) 
 
5. INTERNAL CONSULTEE RESPONSES 
 
5.1 Land Use Policy:  The vacant site (0.35ha) is located within the City Centre 

Principal Business Area (PBA), of the adopted City of Cardiff Local Plan. As 
such, the main land use planning policy issues relate to: 

 
5.2 Whether the loss of Business, Industrial and Warehousing land is acceptable: 

Policy 36 of the Local Plan sets out criteria against which proposals for the 
alternative use of business, industrial and warehousing land will be assessed. 
This requires an evaluation of the demand for such a use and the need to 
secure a range and choice of quality sites available for business development. 
 

5.3 Located at the junction of Lloyd George Avenue and Tyndall Street, the site is 
bounded by the Cardiff Bay railway to the north / west and the Dock Feeder 
Canal to the east. The site has remained vacant since the adoption of the 
Local Plan in 1996 (having been cleared of previous uses) and has most 
recently been used as a surface car park.  
 

5.4 The site is located immediately adjacent to the former Tyndall Street Industrial 
Estate, which is currently being redeveloped as a mixed use scheme 
comprising office and residential uses (application 08/02740/C). A pedestrian 
footbridge linking the two sites is proposed. 
 

5.5 Taking into consideration that the site has remained vacant for circa 20 years, 
the established mix of business (office) and residential uses within the 
surrounding area of Tyndall Street / Lloyd George Avenue and the proposed 
integration with the adjoining mixed use (Capital Quarter) development, the 
loss of business, industrial and warehousing land could be considered 
acceptable in this instance.  
 

5.6 Whether the proposed C3 (Residential) use is acceptable at this location: 
National Planning guidance seek the redevelopment of vacant sites and the 
use of Brownfield sites within urban areas for housing to help meet city-wide 
housing needs and to promote urban regeneration. The principle of residential 
development is well established within the surrounding area and the central 

Page 235



location of this site is suited to residential use as it is well served by transport 
links and is close to local amenities. 
 

5.7 Whether the proposed A2 (Financial and Professional Services) or B1 (Office) 
uses are acceptable at this location: The site is located within the City Centre 
Principal Business Area and as such, the proposed A2 and B1 uses are 
considered acceptable in this instance. There would however be a concern 
regarding the potential for a Permitted Change from Class A2 to a Class A1 
(shop) use. 
 

5.8 The proposal lies outside the Principal Shopping Area (PSA) identified by the 
Local Plan and as such, and in accordance with Planning Policy Wales, any 
proposal for Class A1 (shop) use would need to satisfy the three tests of 
out-of-centre retail policy, namely:  whether there is a need for the 
development;  whether there are sites available to accommodate this need 
within or on the edge of the PSA (i.e. the “sequential test”); and  whether the 
proposal would have any harmful impacts on existing centres or retail 
strategies. To overcome this issue, conditions could be imposed restricting a 
permitted change of use to Class A1. 
 

5.9 Whether the proposed A3 (Food and Drink) use is acceptable at this location: 
The Premises for Eating, Drinking and Entertainment in the City Centre SPG 
identifies the Principal Business Area as an appropriate location for food and 
drink (A3) uses, subject to detailed considerations.  
 

5.10 The SPG does however state that food and drink uses are unlikely to be 
acceptable where residents live immediately above or next door. Given that 
the application proposes 180 residential units which are located directly above 
in upper floors, then the applicant will be expected to demonstrate how their 
proposal can address concerns over the potential impact of a ground floor A3 
use upon the amenity of residential occupiers.  
 

5.11 This could be achieved through the applicant accepting a restricted use 
condition, limiting any use to a café / restaurant where their primary function is 
the sale and consumption of food within the premises rather than alcohol or hot 
food takeaways, in order to safeguard future amenity and through controlled 
hours of opening to minimise disturbance to residents caused by noise at quiet 
times. 
 

5.12 Strategic Planning (Policy) Advice: For the above reasons, the proposal is, on 
balance, considered acceptable in land use policy terms, subject to detailed 
design and amenity considerations. As referred to above, it is requested that 
conditions be imposed restricting permitted change of use from Class A2 to A1 
and limitations on the type and associated opening hours of any Class A3 unit. 

 
5.13 Transportation: The Council’s Transportation Officer confirms that the 

submission has been assessed and is considered to be acceptable in principle, 
subject to the following comments, and parking and access-related conditions: 

 

Page 236



5.14 The TA submitted in support of the application considers the impact of the 
proposed development and confirms that there is little or no difference between 
the surveyed traffic generated by the former use as a car park, and the 
calculated impact of the proposed development. In reaching its conclusions the 
assessment compares the 2008 surveyed use of the former surface car park 
(while it was still operational) with the calculated traffic generation of the 
proposed development, based on the capacity of the car park and TRICS 
derived trip generation; the results of which confirm that the proposals will 
generate two additional AM two-way trips and a decrease of three PM two-way 
trips. 
 

5.15 The traffic assessment also confirms that the predicted level of traffic 
associated with the new access on Tyndall Street has increased since it was 
originally tested in 2008, as result of various detailed, approved applications. 
As such use of the Tyndall Street junction is expected to increase by 7% to 11% 
when compared to the last time it was assessed. In order to provide a robust 
assessment the junction has been tested in relation to the revised projected 
flows, the results of which show the junction will retain a reserve capacity of 
29%. 
 

5.16 It is therefore considered that the proposed development will have no impact on 
the operation of Tyndall Street and as such the submission is considered 
acceptable in this respect. 
 

5.17 The submission identifies the provision of 120 car parking spaces for the 
proposed 180 flats, split 42 on site and 78 in the adjacent Capital Quarter car 
park, allocated on the basis of one space per two/three bed apartments and 
zero for one bed apartments. The adopted Access, Circulation and Parking 
Standards SPG identifies a range of zero to one space per unit for all residential 
development in the Central Area, and as such the proposed car parking is 
considered to be acceptable.  
 

5.18 It is noted that the proposed cycle parking provision of 60 residential spaces 
and 7 visitor spaces is below the level identified in the SPG. However the 
application confirms that additional cycle parking can be accommodated within 
the on site car park should demand exceeds the proposed provision. I would 
therefore expect any details submitted in discharge of the requested cycle 
parking condition to detail how this will be assessed and provided as required. 
 

5.19 It is also noted that the site is in a central location, within an area of 
employment, leisure, shopping, as well as close to both rail and bus public 
transport services. The site is therefore considered to be very sustainably 
located and entirely appropriate for the proposed development. 

 
5.20 Parks Services: Under current policy the proposed development is subject to 

Policy 31 of the Local Plan (Provision of open space on new residential 
developments), which requires the provision of open space for recreational 
activity.   

 

Page 237



5.21 The Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance - Open Space requires 
provision of a satisfactory level and standard of open space on all new housing 
developments (2.43 hectares per 1000 projected population), or an off-site 
contribution towards existing open space for smaller scale developments 
where new on-site provision is not applicable. 

 
5.22 As no public open space is being provided on-site, the developers will be 

required to make a financial contribution towards the provision of open space 
off-site, or the improvement (including design and maintenance) of existing 
open space in the locality. 

 
5.23 Based on the information given, allowing for an occupancy rate of 258.92, the 

contribution will be £254,210. Contributions towards open space provision are 
derived using a formula-based calculation which takes into account, amongst 
other things, the size of the residential development and the projected increase 
in population. 

 
5.24 Demand for usage of the existing open spaces would increase in the locality as 

a result of the development and therefore the Council considers it appropriate 
that an off-site contribution is made, calculated in accordance with the 
guidelines set out in the SPG.  

 
5.25 The Public Open Space Contribution shall be used by the Council towards the 

design, improvement and/or maintenance of public open space within the 
locality of the development site. Further details will be provided. 

  
5.26 The Parks Officer makes the following additional comments:  

 
5.27 The dock feeder is the key environmental asset of the site offering the most 

potential for recreation. On the other side of Herbert Street it forms a major 
connecting feature between developments and is important for public amenity 
and is visually attractive. Parks’ view is that the design does not make good 
use of this feature, with the building too close. Although the walkway is shown 
as 5.5-6m in width, the gap between the building line and edge of the dock 
feeder is a maximum of 4m which leaves very limited room tree planting 
without conflict with the building and given that the underground root spread of 
the tree will be severely limited by the need to protect the dock feeder wall. 
This lack of space can partly be compensated by having a wide landscape 
element on the opposite side but creating an attractive and usable walkway on 
the Herbert street site is crucial to the success of the scheme.  
 

5.28 The tree planting along the frontage of Herbert Street is welcomed as a 
positive feature and the opportunity exists to plant a substantial size tree in the 
paved area at the front of the site. However the planting details shown are 
completely inadequate – see comments below.  
 

5.29 The proposed bridge across the dock feeder is welcome but this needs to link 
properly to the footpaths and proposed courtyard / open space areas on the 
main site. In order to assess the scheme properly a revised masterplan (with 
the involvement of a landscape architect) needs to be drawn up to ensure that 

Page 238



the site is designed in an integrated way, rather than piecemeal. The current 
proposals do not provide sufficient good quality outdoor space for residents 
and office workers likely to be based at the site and Parks would like to see a 
bigger public open space area to be designed on the other side of the canal. 
 

5.30 Creating a link along the east edge of the dock feeder, to connect to the 
existing road crossing is important in allowing residents/employees to access 
the dock feeder/walkway for recreation, and this looks to be included in the 
masterplan design proposals. I’m unable to determine from the plan whether 
it’s possible to extend access northwards along the dock feeder beneath the 
railway or whether this is cost prohibitive. 
 

5.31 The proposed design of the ‘Podium’ area is extremely poor and offers an 
environment of primarily slab and block paving which is likely to feel harsh and 
exposed and is unlikely to provide the type of environment residents would feel 
comfortable using.  
 

5.32 Aside from the overall quality of design there are three other concerns with this 
area:  
a) The first is how the ‘landscaped’ area will be screened from the railway line 
in order to make it a sheltered and welcoming environment for residents to 
use.  
b) Secondly a detailed sun path analysis is needed for the podium area. 
Without access to sun for a significant amount of the day the podium area is 
unlikely to be used by residents. Shading and also wind turbulence produced 
by the buildings needs to be analysed in the design process. 
c) The third concern is how the podium landscape will be constructed and 
maintained. Although vehicles can access close to the area at ground level 
there needs to be access to the podium for machinery and materials, which is 
particularly important in terms of health and safety legislation regarding lifting 
etc. The maintenance operation will also have a major impact on the design 
process, although given that there is only minimal soft landscape within 
planters this may not be an issue, although these will require regular watering. 
 

5.33 The planted areas at the edge of the car park, under the podium will not be 
feasible due to lack of water and shading caused by the overlying roof. 
 

5.34 Having a planted area at the back of the site is reasonable but maintenance 
access is a problem, particularly with regard to trees. Vehicle access will be 
required for maintenance if trees are present. Regulations relating to trees 
adjacent to Network Rail land would also need to be considered. I would need 
clarification on what a receptor area is in order to comment on this aspect. 
 

5.35 The tree pits shown on the drawing are far too small and poorly designed. 
These need to be completely redesigned to create larger rooting area in line 
with the principles expressed by Ed Baker. Including tree planting within the 
scheme, particularly along the frontage and dock feeder is welcome and 
important given a relatively hard paved environment and adjacent road, but 
this needs to be designed to allow long term growth of trees both in terms of 
canopy and below ground rooting. The choice of Tilia cordata ‘Streetwise’ is 

Page 239



fine, but I’m aware that Ed Baker has some reservations about use of Pyrus 
‘Chanticleer’ as it is being very widely used in many schemes leading to 
potential long term problems with disease resistance. 
 

5.36 The drainage from the site needs to be carefully considered given the amount 
of paving. If the dock feeder was to be used for drainage this would need to be 
discussed with the Council’s Drainage Section, although it may be intended to 
drain the site via the standard below ground pipe system rather than SuDS. 
 

5.37 Parks consider that the podium area and narrow walkway along the dock 
feeder do not constitute public open space and have therefore calculated an 
off-site contribution – see below. If the walkway had been more substantial and 
connected through to the City Centre, encouraging public access beyond the 
site, then this would have been taken into account, but with the current design I 
can not see this is achievable.  
 

5.38 Given the nature of the Capital Quarter scheme I would suggest maintenance 
by a management company. Parks would not be interested in adopting the 
open spaces within the wider scheme for maintenance.  

 
5.39 Neighbourhood Regeneration: The officer makes the following observations: 

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) on Community Facilities and 
Residential Development states that ‘the Council will seek a financial 
contribution for improvements to existing community facilities or the provision of 
additional community facilities on all significant developments because the 
increased population will result in increased demand for local community 
facilities’. If no onsite provision is proposed, a financial contribution is sought on 
residential developments containing 25 or more new dwellings where it has 
been identified that investment in community facilities will be required to meet 
the needs of the new population. The formula in the SPG is based on the 
number of habitable rooms per dwellings. In summary a contribution of 
£106,266 is requested. 

 
5.40 The SPG for ‘Community Facilities and Residential Development’ was formally 

adopted by Council on 22nd March 2007. The SPG was adopted to provide 
guidance on national and local planning policy which highlights the importance 
of the planning system in ensuring that the infrastructure on which communities 
depend is adequate to accommodate proposed development. Policy 21 of the 
City of Cardiff Local Plan (adopted January 1996) supports the provision of 
community facilities as part of new residential developments.  

 
5.41 It is also in accord with Planning Policy Wales which supports the negotiation of 

planning obligations and states “Contributions from developers may be used to 
offset negative consequences of development, to help meet local needs, or to 
secure benefits which will make development more sustainable”. A 
development proposing a significant increase in population, such as this, would 
create pressures on existing local facilities that need to be offset via a financial 
contribution. It would be unacceptable to grant planning consent in the absence 
of such provision.  

 

Page 240



5.42 Several community facilities are located within proximity to the site and are 
likely to experience an added pressure as a result of the new population. It is 
envisaged that a forthcoming community facilities contribution would be 
directed towards one of the many local community facilities, which could 
include:  
• Butetown Community Centre – a financial contribution could be spent on 

adaptations to this facility, and equipment to accommodate increased 
and changing uses.  

• Butetown Youth Pavilion – community facility funding could be spent on 
adaptations and equipment to accommodate increased use.  

• Channel View Leisure Centre – As the nearest leisure centre to the 
development, this is likely to be used by residents of the new 
development.  A financial contribution could be spent on adaptions and 
equipment to accommodate increased use.  

• Local shops on Bute Street and James Street – the improvement of local 
and neighbourhood shopping centres is included in the definition of 
community facilities. Improvements to the shopping centre could include 
environmental regeneration. 

 
5.43 Education: The Education officer makes the following observations:  

 
5.44 The Council has assessed the supply of and demand for places in the local 

area. The calculated land contribution required to accommodate the combined 
yield of primary and secondary school pupils that cannot be accommodated in 
existing provision, totals 0.0671 hectares. Land contributions, or financial 
contributions towards the costs of land, will not be sought as it expected that the 
additional demand for English-medium primary, Welsh-medium primary and 
English-medium secondary school places will be provided on existing school 
sites and/ or other Council owned sites. 

 
5.45 A total contribution of £153,710 is requested towards the provision of additional 

English-medium and Welsh-medium primary, secondary and sixth-form school 
places.  

 
5.46 The contribution is calculated in accordance with the Council SPG Developer 

Contributions for School Facilities (2007) and is based on the capacity of local 
schools, the pupil yield from the proposed development, and 2007 DfES figures 
for the cost of providing additional school places. 

 
5.47 Land contributions, or financial contributions towards the costs of land, may 

also be sought as it will not be possible to accommodate the additional demand 
for school places on existing school sites. 

 
5.48 Housing Strategy: The Housing strategy Officer makes the following 

comments: 
 

5.49 In line with the emerging LDP, an affordable housing contribution of 20% of the 
180 units (36 units) is sought on this brown-field site.  
 

Page 241



5.50 Our priority is to deliver on-site affordable housing, in the form of affordable 
rented accommodation, built to Welsh Government Development Quality 
Requirements (DQR) & the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) for 
purchase by a nominated Registered Social Landlord partner. 
 

5.51 However, given the proposed design of the scheme, the unknown proposed 
future tenure of the units, the likely service charges for this type of residential 
development and the mixture of commercial and residential, all of the above 
could affect the affordability as well as the practicality of managing and 
maintaining affordable housing on-site for a Registered Social Landlord. 
 

5.52 As an alternative to on-site provision at Herbert Street, we would be willing to 
accept the provision of affordable rented housing as: 

 
(a) Off-site on another site in the vicinity. The site must deliver the equivalent 

number of units (36 units); or if a site cannot deliver the full 36 units then we 
would be willing to accept a combination of affordable rented housing units 
and a financial contribution to make up for any shortfall in units. The site 
must come forward within the same timescales as the Herbert Street site. 
 
For information, any affordable housing scheme should be appraised on a 
NIL Social Housing Grant (SHG) basis, and, the indicative amounts that a 
Registered Social Landlord (RSL) would pay for the units is based on an 
intermediate rent level and is specified below: 
• 24 x 1 bed apartments (at an RSL purchase price of £60,000) 
• 12 x 2 bed apartments (at an RSL purchase price of £77,548) 

 
Please note that the above price relates to the properties only and any 
additional service charges for unadopted roads, public open space, public 
realm etc will not be due by any future residents of the affordable housing 
units. OR 

 
(b) As a financial contribution in lieu of the on-site affordable housing provision. 

On that basis we would seek a financial contribution of £2,206,320 (in lieu of 
36 units) which is calculated in accordance with the formula in the 
Affordable Housing – Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) (2007). 

 
5.53 Please note that in respect of financial viability, the District Valuer Report (April 

2015) advised that the above level of affordable housing contribution was 
financially viable.   

 
5.54 Drainage Management: The Drainage Engineer has not provided a response. 
 
5.55 Waste Management: The Sustainable Planning Officer makes the following 

observations:  
 

5.56 The refuse storage areas have been noted, however I don’t believe they are big 
enough for 180 apartments. The following provisions are recommended: Dry 
Recyclables: 18 x 1100 litre bulk bins; Compostable waste: 18 x 240 litre bins; 

Page 242



General waste: 18 x 1100 litre bulk bins. Additional space should also be 
provided to account for bulky item reuse/recycling/disposal. 
 

5.57 The agent should be made aware that we would be looking to secure the 
funding below to provide recycling and refuse arrangements for residents. This 
funding (£15,000) is sought under S106 Town and Country Planning Act. 
 

5.58 The developer should also confirm where the bins will be presented on 
collection day – access to the site appears limited. If a reuse vehicle is to enter 
the site to make collections, there needs to be enough headroom and an area 
to turn the vehicle so that it can drive off site in a forward gear. The developer is 
advised; as bulk containers are specified for this development, access paths to 
the kerbside for collection should be at least 1.5 metres wide, clear of 
obstruction, of a smooth surface with no steps. Dropped kerbs should also be 
provided to ensure safe handling of bulk bins to the collection vehicle.  
 

5.59 Waste Management will not carry keys or access codes for bin storage areas; 
so waste must either be presented at the entrance to the development for 
collection, or the access gates to the site must be left open. 
 

5.60 The refuse storage areas identified for the commercial units are acceptable. 
 

5.61 Refuse storage, once implemented, must be retained for future use 
 

5.62 Please refer the agent/architect to the Waste Collection and Storage Facilities 
Supplementary Planning Guidance for further relevant information.  

 
5.63 Pollution Control (Contaminated Land):  The Contaminated Land Officer 

makes the following observations:  
 

5.64 The report has identified a number of potential contamination issues at the site 
that will require remediation in order to ensure that the site can be developed on 
a suitable for use basis. As such Pollution Control requests a standard suite of 
contaminated land and ground gas conditions. 
 

5.65 An area of the site will require remediation to remove asbestos impacted soils, 
and therefore the remediation scheme must ensure that appropriate asbestos 
control measures are implemented and requests an additional non-standard 
condition. 
 

5.66 Pollution Control (Noise & Air): No objection subject to the following standard 
conditions: road traffic noise; railway noise; sound insulation between 
commercial and residential uses; opening hours; delivery times; plant noise; 
future kitchen extraction; and a construction noise recommendation. 

 
5.67 Trees: See Parks response above. 
 
  

Page 243



6. EXTERNAL CONSULTEE RESPONSES 
 
6.1 Glamorgan Gwent Archaeological Trust (GGAT): No comments have been 

received. 
 
6.2 DCWW: No objection subject to standard conditions on separation of foul and 

surface water, and discharge of surface and land drainage run-off to the public 
sewer, provision of a grease trap, and submission of a comprehensive drainage 
scheme for approval by the LPA. 

 
6.3  Natural Resources Wales (NRW): NRW have no comments on the proposal. 
 
6.4 Network Rail (NR): NR have no objection in principle to the proposal subject to 

maintaining access to the NR retaining wall. The response lists a number of 
requirements for the safe operation of the railway and the protection of NR’s 
adjoining land. These have been forwarded to the applicant and are referred to 
in an additional recommendation. 

  
6.5 Civil Aviation Authority (CAA): Note that the tower is less than 300’ in height and 

offer general advice in relation to aerodrome safeguarding, aviation warning 
lighting, and aviation notification (only required for structure over 300’ in 
height). 
 

6.6  Cardiff Bus: No comments have been received.  
 
7.  REPRESENTATIONS 
 
7.1 The application was advertised on site and in the press as a major application. 

Neighbours and local members were consulted on the original application and 
on amended plans. 3 representations have been received: 

 
7.2  One from a local resident on Lloyd George Ave supports the application but 

raises some concerns over the public realm and landscaping elements of the 
scheme, in particular the public Herbert Street and Dock Feeder frontages.  
 

7.3  The other two representations are from a local resident of Edward England 
Wharf. The first representation raises concerns over the potential traffic safety 
implications of right turns into or out of the site, and proposing a new primary 
access to the site from the Capital Quarter site via a new bridge over the Dock 
Feeder canal. A restriction on the hours within which driven piling can take 
place is also requested.  
 

7.4  The second representation formally objects to the access arrangements, 
specifically the impact on traffic movements and highway safety of vehicles 
turning right into or out of the development. Primary vehicular access from the 
Capital Quarter site via a new bridge over the Dock Feeder is again proposed. 

 
  

Page 244



8. ANALYSIS 
 
8.1  The main issues to assess are the principle of residential use on the site, the 

design of the tall building in particular, the amenity of the future occupiers, and 
the nature and extent of the planning obligations. 

 
8.2  The vacant site (0.35ha) is located within the City Centre Principal Business 

Area (PBA), of the adopted City of Cardiff Local Plan. As such, the main land 
use planning policy issues relate to:  
 

8.3  Whether the loss of Business, Industrial and Warehousing land is acceptable: 
Policy 36 of the Local Plan sets out criteria against which proposals for the 
alternative use of business, industrial and warehousing land will be assessed. 
This requires an evaluation of the demand for such a use and the need to 
secure a range and choice of quality sites available for business development. 
 

8.4  Located at the junction of Lloyd George Avenue and Tyndall Street, the site is 
bounded by the Cardiff Bay railway to the north / west and the Dock Feeder 
Canal to the east. The site has remained vacant since the adoption of the 
Local Plan in 1996 (having been cleared of previous uses) and has most 
recently been used as a surface car park.  
 

8.5  The site is located immediately adjacent to the former Tyndall Street Industrial 
Estate, which is currently being redeveloped by the same applicant  as a 
mixed use scheme comprising office and residential uses and MSCP (outline 
permission 08/02740/C and subsequent detailed applications for different parts 
of the site). A pedestrian footbridge linking the two sites is proposed. 
 

8.6  Taking into consideration that the site has remained vacant for circa 20 years, 
the established mix of business (office) and residential uses within the 
surrounding area of Tyndall Street / Lloyd George Avenue and the proposed 
integration with the adjoining mixed use (Capital Quarter) development, the 
loss of business, industrial and warehousing land could be considered 
acceptable in this instance. 
 

8.7  Whether the proposed C3 (Residential) use is acceptable at this location: 
National Planning guidance seeks the redevelopment of vacant sites and the 
use of Brownfield sites within urban areas for housing to help meet city-wide 
housing needs and to promote urban regeneration. The principle of residential 
development is well established within the surrounding area and the central 
location of this site is suited to residential use as it is well served by transport 
links and is close to local amenities. 
 

8.8  Whether the proposed A2 (Financial and Professional Services) or B1 (Office) 
uses are acceptable at this location: The site is located within the City Centre 
Principal Business Area and as such, the proposed A2 and B1 uses are 
considered acceptable in this instance. There would however be a concern 
regarding the potential for a Permitted Change from Class A2 to a Class A1 
(shop) use. 
 

Page 245



8.9  The proposal lies outside the Principal Shopping Area (PSA) identified by the 
Local Plan and as such, and in accordance with Planning Policy Wales, any 
proposal for Class A1 (shop) use would need to satisfy the three tests of 
out-of-centre retail policy, namely:  
• whether there is a need for the development;  
• whether there are sites available to accommodate this need within or on the 

edge of the PSA (i.e. the “sequential test”); and   
• whether the proposal would have any harmful impacts on existing centres or 

retail strategies.  
 

8.10 To overcome this issue, conditions could be imposed restricting a permitted 
change of use to Class A1. 
 

8.11 Whether the proposed A3 (Food and Drink) use is acceptable at this location: 
The Premises for Eating, Drinking and Entertainment in the City Centre SPG 
identifies the Principal Business Area as an appropriate location for food and 
drink (A3) uses, subject to detailed considerations.  
 

8.12 The SPG does however state that food and drink uses are unlikely to be 
acceptable where residents live immediately above or next door. Given that 
the application proposes 180 residential units which are located directly above 
in upper floors, then the applicant will be expected to demonstrate how their 
proposal can address concerns over the potential impact of a ground floor A3 
use upon the amenity of residential occupiers. This could be achieved through 
the applicant accepting a restricted use condition, limiting any use to a café / 
restaurant where their primary function is the sale and consumption of food 
within the premises rather than alcohol or hot food takeaways, in order to 
safeguard future amenity and through controlled hours of opening to minimise 
disturbance to residents caused by noise at quiet times. 
 

8.13 For the above reasons, the proposal is, on balance, considered acceptable in 
land use policy terms, subject to detailed design and amenity considerations. 
As referred to above, it is requested that conditions be imposed restricting 
permitted change of use from Class A2 to A1 and limitations on the type and 
associated opening hours of any Class A3 unit. 
 

8.14 Scale and Design: The scale and civic nature of the lower ‘L-shaped’ block 
fronting Herbert Street and the Dock Feeder is in keeping with the Capital 
Quarter development. The elevations are enlivened by a mix of commercial 
uses to the ground floor and a setback upper floor treatment. Materials include 
stone and metal cladding 
 

8.15 The residential tower has been sited to the back of the site where it 
complements 5he tall buildings to the north of the railway line. Its design has 
been subject to an extensive pre-application process to address height, 
massing, architecture and materials.  
 

8.16 The resulting form is staggered in height with a splayed corner to the north and 
vertical framed glazing elements articulated by balconies and winter gardens to 
the southern corners. The design has sufficient slenderness and depth and 

Page 246



articulation in the façade design to avoid the bulky blandness of the 
neighbouring tall buildings to the north of the railway line. 
 

8.17 Subject to conditions controlling type and quality of cladding materials and 
architectural detailing the design meets the requirements of the Tall Buildings 
SPG and is considered acceptable. 
 

8.18 Amenity of future occupiers: A landscaped podium above the on-site parking 
provides an acceptable external private amenity space for the future occupiers. 
In addition the landscaped pedestrian route alongside the Dock Feeder linking 
the Capital Quarter development via a foot bridge to a small square fronting 
Herbert Street provides additional public amenity space. Outlook is acceptable 
for all residents. There are a significant number of single aspect flats however 
aspect, orientation and design is acceptable. Good quality access is provided 
from Herbert Street to both circulation cores  

 
8.19 Access and Parking provision: The TA assesses the traffic impact of the 

proposed development on Tyndall Street and concludes that there will be little 
or no difference between the traffic generated by the former use as a car park 
and the proposed use.  
 

8.20 The site already benefits from an existing ‘all movements’ vehicular access 
which serviced the previous temporary car park. The existing access from 
Herbert Street will be redesigned to prevent right turns into or out of the site by 
extending the kerbed central refuge from Lloyd George Avenue junction to the 
Tyndall Street pedestrian crossing. The MSCP (which does not form part of 
this application) will be served via the existing access road which has been 
constructed to serve Phase 2 of the Capital Quarter development. 
 

8.21 The adopted Access, Circulation and Parking Standards SPG identifies a 
parking requirement of zero to one car space per residential unit (zero visitor) 
for the City Centre and Bay; and a minimum cycle parking requirement of 1 
space per unit for flats/apartments. The proposed development (180 
apartments) has 42 car parking spaces on site and a further 78 identified in the 
adjacent Capital Quarter MSCP which is under construction. It is therefore 
policy compliant.  
 

8.22 The proposed cycle parking provision (60 spaces and 7 visitor spaces) is 
below the SPG standard. However the application confirms that additional 
cycle parking can be accommodated within the car park should demand 
exceed provision. A cycle parking condition requiring details of how this would 
be achieved is attached.  
 

8.23 Representations: The objection to the proposed access arrangements, namely 
the impact on traffic movements and highway safety of vehicles turning right 
into or out of the development, is addressed by the proposed alterations to the 
access and to the highway to prevent right turns into or out of the site. See 
Access and Parking section above. Concerns over the public realm treatment 
and landscaping will be addressed through conditions. A construction site 
noise recommendation is attached. 

Page 247



 
8.24 Section 106 obligations: The total s106 requirement calculated in accordance 

with Council policy and guidance is £2,870,506. The breakdown is as follows:  
• 20% affordable housing (36 units) or equivalent £2,206,320 financial 

contribution 
• £153,710 for educational facilities  
• £254,210 for public open space  
• £106,266 for community facilities  
• £150,000 for highway alterations and improvements 
 

8.25 The applicant provided a viability appraisal, prepared by Savills and dated 
January 2015, which concludes that any 106 requirements to provide 
affordable housing or other 106 contributions in excess of the £150,000 offered 
towards highway alterations/ improvements will have a negative impact on the 
viability of the scheme. 
 

8.26 In accordance with the established practice of obtaining an independent 
assessment of viability appraisals presented in support of planning 
applications the Council commissioned the District Valuer (DV) to prepare an 
assessment of Savill’s viability appraisal. The DV’s amended draft report dated 
21.9.15 concluded that the level of Section 106 obligations sought by the 
Council rendered the scheme unviable. 
 

8.27 Following discussions with the applicant on the nature and extent of the 
abnormal costs identified in the draft DV report, in particular the design 
enhancement costs identified by the applicant, and in order to progress the 
application, the applicant has formally offered the sum of £625,000 to mitigate 
the effects of the development in respect of community facilities, open space 
provision, education and the provision of affordable housing.  
 

8.28 The offer is made on the following terms:  
• That the Council endeavour to present the application to October Planning 

Committee;  
• That the contributions become payable within 12 months of the 

implementation of the scheme;  
• That the internal distribution of the financial sum is a matter for the Council;  
• That the legal agreement takes the form of a unilateral undertaking (UU) 

which the applicant will draft and execute following a resolution to grant 
planning permission.  

 
8.29 Finally it is the applicant’s intention that the UU would not contain provisions 

enabling the viability of the scheme to be reviewed at a later date. 
 

8.30 Having considered the contents and conclusion of the DV’s draft report, and in 
the interests of progressing the application, it is considered that the sum 
offered and the terms are acceptable. However in drawing up the UU the 
omission of standard provisions enabling the viability of the scheme to be 
reviewed at a later date would have to be conditional on the scheme being 
progressed within an agreed time period, such period to commence on the 
signing of the 106. 

Page 248



 
8.31 It is proposed that the sum of £625,000 be allocated to the various service 

areas on a pro-rata basis, as follows:  
• £510,000 for off-site affordable housing  
• £36,000 for educational facilities   
• £54,000 for public open space  
• £25,000 for community facilities  
 

8.32 In addition the applicant will either make a financial contribution of £150,000 
for alterations and improvements to the adopted highway to be implemented 
by the Council, or carry out the necessary alteration and improvement works 
under a section 278 agreement.  

 
9. CONCLUSION 
 
9.1  In conclusion the proposals redevelop a vacant plot and provide 180 new 

dwellings in a highly sustainable location. The principle of residential 
development, the location, height, massing, form and architecture of the tall 
building, the access arrangements and parking provision, and the amenity of 
future occupiers is all acceptable. 

9.2  The granting of planning permission is recommended subject to conditions 
being imposed and a legal agreement (Section 106) being signed to secure the 
following  financial contributions:  

• £510,000 for the provision of affordable housing offsite in the vicinity of the 
development site; 

• £54,000 towards the design, improvement and/or maintenance of public 
open space within the vicinity of the development site. The closest area of 
recreational open space is Craiglee Drive Open Space; 

• £25,000 towards the improvement of community facilities in the vicinity eg. 
Butetown Community Centre, Butetown Youth Pavilion, Channel View 
Leisure Centre, Local shops on Bute Street and James Street, and local 
community venues run by the voluntary sector in the ward;  

• £36,000 towards the provision of English and Welsh medium primary school 
provision and English medium secondary/ sixth form provision in the 
vicinity;  

• £150,000 for implementing transport and highway-related improvements to 
improve access from Herbert Street, including public realm improvements 
adjacent to the site; or carry out the necessary alteration and improvement 
works to the access and adjacent highway under a section 35 and 278 
agreement.   

 
 

Page 249



P
age 250



S
e

cu
re

 t
w

o
 t
ie

r
cy

cl
e
 s

to
ra

g
e

WPD
substation

G
e

n
e

ra
to

r

Plant

Switch
Room

Group meter room

Cafe/office/estate agent

Residential
Bin Store

Security

Cafe Bin
Store

Car Park
42 Spaces

Office

Office Bin
   Store

A3/B1/A2

DR
Inlet

 Security

Residential
Entrance

Residential
  Entance

G-08G-06G-05

G-01

G-03G-04

G
-0

7

G-10

FFL +9.500

F
F

L
 +

9
.5

0
0

+8.656

+9.350

1:40

Pavement +9.350

Road
Position

Pavement +9.350

Road +9.200
+8.806

+9.350
(ffl-694)

Collonade
C

o
llo

n
a
d
e

VOID

Duct
Above

FF
Lift

Lift

 Gates

DR

FF
Lift

Residential
Bin Store

DR
Inlet

A
3

/B
1
/A

2
C

a
fe

/o
ff
ic

e
/e

st
a
te

 a
g
e
n
t

G
-0

2

Group meter
room

Lift

PODIUM OVER

G-09

Car Park
Entrance

R
e
si

d
e
n
tia

l
E

n
tr

a
n
ce

C
A

N
A

L

R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 B
R

ID
G

E

RAIL
W

AY B
RID

G
E

Bus stop

HERBERT STREET
TYNDALL STREET

Block I

EAST / WEST PEDESTRIAN ROUTE

JOHN STREET

Block M

WESTERN
COURTYARD

Block K

Block J

Proposed
Pedestrian

 Bridge

E
xi
st

in
g 

R
ai

l L
in

e

REVISIONS

No Description Date

* THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT
* ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE
* ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED TO THE ARCHITECT
* DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING

By

Tel:(029) 2044 7520 Fax: (029) 2045 1813

Client

Drawing Title

Drawn Checked Original

Project

Date

Drawing Number Revision StatusJob Number

Scale

Herbert Street, Cardiff

JR Smart Ltd

Proposed Ground Floor

Level 0

BE ARM 1:500 A3

PL A

Scale:1:250 @ A1
1:500 @ A3

Proposed Ground Floor Plan (Level 0)

Future Western
Courtyard

Development

Amenity
Space

Multi Storey Car Park

A   DG    2015 revised planning scheme - Submitted May May 2015

Page 251



P
age 252



CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF  
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE: 
 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER,CITY OPERATIONS. 
 
APPLICATION FOR S.116 Highways Act 1980 Stopping Up of a section of 
Highway at Queen Street Station, Station Terrace,Cathays,Cardiff. 
 
Background 
 
A request has been received from Network Rail pursuant to Section 117 
Highways Act 1980 to " Stop Up" a section of Highway at Queen Street Station. 
 
The stopping up is required because the Station has been improved as an 
amenity and for disabled access which required a change of use of the highway. 
 
Issues 
 
The renovation of Queen Street Station has progressed and therefore it is 
necessary to Stop Up highway which has been incorporated into the new 
complex. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
None 
 
Recommendation 
 
The recommended decision is : 
 
To stop up the highway which has already been absorbed into the new 
development. 
 
The reason for the recommended decision is : The highway is no longer 
necessary. 
 
Background Papers 
 
Copy of plan of area to be stopped up. 
Letter of agreement to pay costs. 
Copy of ODR. 
 

Page 253

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LATE REPRESENTATIONS SCHEDULE 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE – 14TH OCTOBER 2015 
 
 

Page 255

Agenda Item 9



MAIN AGENDA 
ITEM  

APPLICATION NO. 14/02887/MJR 

ADDRESS: FORMER SURFACE CARPARK ON TRIANGULAR SITE 
OFF HERBERT STREET 

  
FROM: Head of Planning. 
  
SUMMARY: In response to an email dated 12.10.15 from the applicant 

the wording of the recommendation (and those paragraphs 
of the report relating to the mechanism for securing the 106 
contributions) is to be amended as follows: 
 
(a) Replace Recommendation 1 at the beginning of the 
report with the following wording: 
 
RECOMMENDATION 1: That, subject to the applicant 
executing a valid Section 106 Unilateral Undertaking, within 
6 months of the date of this resolution unless otherwise 
agreed by the Council in writing, in respect of matters 
detailed in paragraph 8.31 of this report, planning 
permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 
(b)  Para 8.32 of the report to be amended to read:  
 
8.32 In addition the applicant will carry out the necessary 
highway alteration and improvement works detailed in 
condition 19 under Section 278 and Section 35 agreements. 
 
(c)  Replace the following wording in paragraph 9.2 of the 
committee report: ‘..and a legal agreement (section 106) 
being signed to secure the following financial contributions:’  
 
With: ‘..and a valid Section 106 unilateral undertaking being 
executed by the applicant to secure the following financial 
contributions:’ 
 
(d) The final bullet point of para 9.2 to be omitted.    
 

REMARKS: The amendments are required to take account of the letter 
from the applicant dated 25.9.15 formally offering the 
Section 106 financial contributions outlined in para 8.31 of 
the report in the form of a unilateral undertaking (UU) which 
the applicant will draft and execute once the Council has 
resolved to grant planning permission.  
The applicant has confirmed that the associated highway 
works will be carried out as part of the building works under 
the appropriate Section 278 and Section 35 agreements. A 
Section 106 financial contribution of £150,000 for this 
purpose is not therefore required. 
 

Page 256



 
 
PAGE NO.  1 APPLICATION NO.       14/01656/MJR 
 Land Adj Church Road 
FROM: Neighbour 
  
SUMMARY: Has sent a number of photos illustrating existing 

congestion on Church Road. 
 

  
REMARKS: Noted  

  
 
PAGE NO.  21 APPLICATION NO.       15/00306/MJR 
ADDRESS: 5-7 Oakfield Street 
  
FROM: Applicant 
  
SUMMARY: Further to Planning Committee’s site visit to 5-7 Oakfield 

Street on 7th Oct further amended plans have been received 
 
Taking on board the concern expressed by the 
immediate neighbour in respect of the position of the 
side access, and observations made at the meeting, the 
Plans now indicate that the principal entrance to the 
development will now be from the front of the property, 
(with the resultant loss of one apartment), and that the 
entrance to the side of No 5 Oakfield Street will be 
retained as a secondary access to the rear 
garden/amenity area only. 
 
In respect of precedent, the applicant advises that the 
properties at 39-41 Oakfield Street were demolished 
and rebuilt utilising salvaged stonework Circa 1993. 
 

  
REMARKS: Noted, If Planning Committee are minded to approve the 

development then Condition 2 will need to modified with the 
updated plan references. 
 
Planning and building control records confirm that 
permissions were granted for such works.  
 

 
  

Page 257



 
PAGE NO.  21 APPLICATION NO.       15/00306/MJR 
 5-7 Oakfield Street 
  
FROM: Neighbour at 62 Oakfield Street 
  
SUMMARY: Comments that at such short notice he is unable to open the 

new plans, which require computer programs. 
 
He gathers from the consultation however that  there will be 
one real front entrance, and one dummy front entrance; and 
suggests that there should be two real front doors. 
 

  
REMARKS: Noted.  

 
Access arrangements, which are as the neighbour suggests 
will be considered at committee 
 

 
PAGE NO.  21 APPLICATION NO.       15/00306/MJR 
 5-7 Oakfield Street 
  
FROM: Applicant  
  
SUMMARY: Applicant would like it noted that Careful consideration was 

taken to maximize the light shining into the rear of number 3 
and number 9. The demolition of the outhouses 
immediately adjacent to number 3 and the position of the 
annex and the roof pitch of the proposed development help 
to facilitate sunlight well into evening. Close scrutiny of the 
light chart will show this. The removal of the office building 
at number 7 will INCREASE the light into the garden of 
number 9. 

 
  
REMARKS: The submitted shadow path diagram indicates that there 

would be no shadow path intrusion until around 4pm in the 
afternoon.  

 
PAGE NO.  21 APPLICATION NO.       15/00306/MJR 
 5-7 Oakfield Street 
  
FROM: Applicant and Neighbour at No. 3 Oakfield Street 
  
SUMMARY: Neighbour at the site visit inferred that the applicant had 

not responded to the Comments of SW Police. 
 
Applicant advises that he had not seen a copy of the 

Page 258



Police Comments in order to respond.  
 
Neighbour now retracts his comment. 
 
Both parties would like it noted that the latest revised 
plans seek to remove concerns relating to potential 
security issues of a principal side entrance. 
 

  
REMARKS: The Design and Access statement submitted with the 

application states that the development would seek to 
achieve ‘Secured by Design accreditation’ from South Wales 
Police; and it would seem more likely that the development 
would be able to achieve such certification with an entrance 
in the front elevation.  

 
PAGE NO.  62 APPLICATION NO.       15/00561/MJR 
ADDRESS :  WANDERERS BUNGALOW, 1A STIRLING ROAD, ELY, 

CARDIFF 
  
FROM: Mrs B Jones 
  
SUMMARY: In respect of the Committee site visit of 7th October 2015: 

Concerns raised regarding the adherence to Council’s ‘Site 
Visit Code of Practice’, in respect of request to view site 
from a particular location (the rear garden of 33 Stirling 
Road). 
 
In respect of the application proposals: 
Committee’s attention is drawn to the Council’s adopted 
planning policy on open space and Supplementary Planning 
Guidance on Infill Sites in relation to the site. 
 

  
REMARKS: The Head of Planning has responded separately in respect 

of the concerns regarding the Committee site visit stating the 
request was considered but it was decided that the site 
could be adequately observed from the vantage points that 
were available and therefore the offer to view the site from 
the property was not considered necessary.  
 
The impact of the development proposals in respect of open 
space policy and infill sites guidance is discussed in the 
report to Committee. 
  

 
  

Page 259



 
PAGE NO.  62 APPLICATION NO.       15/00561/MJR 
ADDRESS :  WANDERERS BUNGALOW, 1A STIRLING ROAD, ELY, 

CARDIFF 
  
FROM: Beverley Jones 
  
SUMMARY: Thank you for your prompt  response which is noted . While 

it is very late I should appreciate it if you could also  add to 
the Late Representations Schedule a request that if this 
inappropriate  development is granted planning permission, 
the permission may be conditioned  along the following lines 
to limit the impact  of the development on Mrs Lang's tiny 
rear garden which she loves and  uses daily for health and  
relaxation . 
. 
1.   No trees should be planted along the boundary with 

No 33 Stirling Road. 
 Reason:To prevent damage from roots to the 

bungalow's foundations. 
 
2.  The fencing along the boundary with 33 Stirling Road 

should be no higher than permitted development 
rights . 

 Reason:  To minimize the loss of light and amenity to 
the rear garden and rooms of No 33 Stirling Road. 

 
REMARKS: Comments are noted.  It is also noted that details of 

enclosure and landscaping are conditioned. 
 

 
PAGE NO.  86 APPLICATION NO.  15/01163/MJR 
ADDRESS: CARDIFF METROPOLITAN UNIVERSITY CYNCOED 

CAMPUS, CYNCOED ROAD, CYNCOED 
  
FROM: Head of Planning 
  
SUMMARY: Condition 2 & 3 as shown on the report are duplicates. 

 
REMARKS: Replace condition 3 to read: 

 
 
3. Prior to the commencement of development a 

scheme of construction management to include (but 
not be limited to) any; site hoardings, site access, 
wheel washing facilities, HGV movements and 
management of all activities affecting the highway 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority. The development shall be 

Page 260



carried out in accordance with the approved scheme.  
Reason: in the interests of highway safety and public 

 amenity. 
 
PAGE NO.  101 APPLICATION NO.  15/01667/MJR 
ADDRESS: LANDTO THE SOUTH OF FORESTER WAY AND 

MALTHOUSE AVENUE, PONTPRENNAU 
  
FROM: BNP Paribas Real Estate (On behalf of Molson Coors 

Brewing Co. Ltd. Cardiff Gate Business Park) 
 

  
SUMMARY: Object to the application on the following grounds: 

 
1 It is an application for 150 homes on land that has not 

been allocated for residential use. 
2 It is outside the settlement boundary. 
3 If permitted, it would increase dependency on car usage 

and would not concur with the Council’s stated policy of 
50:50 modal shift from car usage to public transport. 

4 It would increase pressure on road access which is one 
route in and out of the area. 

 
The application is contrary to the local plan 1996 Unitary 
Development Plan and the emerging LDP which is on 
deposit and awaiting the Inspector’s final decision. 
 

REMARKS: The points raised are noted and have been addressed in the 
report. 
 

 
PAGE NO.  101 APPLICATION NO.  15/01667/MJR 
ADDRESS: LANDTO THE SOUTH OF FORESTER WAY AND 

MALTHOUSE AVENUE, PONTPRENNAU 
  
FROM: Mark Roberts, Barton Willmore 
  
SUMMARY: The agent has requested that the application be withdrawn. 

 
REMARKS: The application has been withdrawn. 

 
 
  

Page 261



 
PAGE NO.  131 APPLICATION NO.  15/00892/MNR 
ADDRESS: 7 THORNHILL ROAD 
  
FROM: The Occupiers, 7 Pen Y Groes Road 
  
SUMMARY: State the following concerns : 

 
1. It is stated that most of the orders are taken before 

9pm so why the extra hour of opening on Friday and 
Saturday?  Obviously the Company expect it 
worthwhile to open whilst paying wages and 
electricity costs thus causing noise and 
inconvenience to residents right up until midnight.  
11pm closing during the working week is far too late 
for this quiet residential area. 

2. Where will the delivery vehicles be parked when not 
in use?  Will they always be parked in this very tiny 
parking area – do drivers take vehicles home 
overnight?  Are the vehicles identifiable as Papa 
John’s? It is already increasingly difficult to park when 
using the shops, dentist, optician etc.  A maximum of 
6 extra vehicles, together with customer cars, will 
cause major disruption. 

3. It is highly likely these premises will attract groups of 
youths late at night as there is no similar facility open 
as late in the area. 

4. If allowed, once a precedent has been set, what is in 
place to stop the small row of shops being turned 
systematically into another area like Birchgrove? 

5. As an A3 Covenant is in place for this row of shops, 
how could Papa Johns operate? 

 
REMARKS: Refer to Officer report. The agent has advised that delivery 

drivers use their own cars.  The application has to be 
determined on its planning merits. 

 
PAGE NO.  173 APPLICATION NO.  15/01699/MNR 
ADDRESS: 31 COBURN STREET, CATHAYS, CARDIFF 
  
FROM: Councillors Weaver, Merry & Knight 
  
SUMMARY: We wish to object to the planning application to convert 31 

Coburn Street to a 8 bed HMO for the following reasons: 
 
1. The proposal will result in an unacceptable cumulative 
adverse impact on the amenities of the area by virtue of: 
 

I. a higher proportion of transient residents leading towards 
a less community cohesion and undermining the 

Page 262



objectives of securing a sustainable mixed use 
community, contrary to Policy 2.22 of the City of Cardiff 
Unitary Development Plan (October 2003) and Paragraph 
9.3.3 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 7 2014) 

II. an increase of cumulative demands on social, community 
and physical infrastructure, contrary to Policy 2.22 of the 
City of Cardiff Unitary Development Plan (October 2003) 
and Paragraph 9.3.3 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 7 
2014) 

III. the proliferation of vacant properties in the summer 
months, contrary to Policy 2.22 of the City of Cardiff 
Unitary Development Plan (October 2003) and Paragraph 
9.3.3 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 7 2014). 

 
2. The proposal represents an over-intensive form of 
development which fails to provide an adequate outdoor 
amenity area for an 8 bedroom House in Multiple 
Occupation (HMO) due to the necessity to accommodate 
cycle parking and refuse storage facilities, contrary to the 
provisions of Policy 28 of the City of Cardiff Local Plan 1996 
Policies 2.22 & 2.24 of the Deposit Cardiff Unitary 
Development Plan (October 2003) and Paragraph 9.3.3 of 
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 7 2014). 
 
We note the particularly high number of HMO’s in the 
immediate vicinity: for those who do not know these houses 
these were small terraced houses and were not intended for 
the kind of dense housing that is developing in the area. 
 
We believe there is clear policy underpinning a rejection of 
this application.  
 

REMARKS: Noted 
 
  

Page 263



 
PAGE NO.  173 APPLICATION NO.       15/1699/MJR 
ADDRESS: 31 COBURN STREET, CATHAYS, CARDIFF 
  
FROM: John Pinn 
  
SUMMARY: Please find following my statement following the report you have 

before you in relation to the above application which I ask that you take 
into account. 

 
We are aware there is a political pressure to examine HMO's in the 
ward and that there are current consultations out and being drafted, 
but note that this  applications  should  be considered on its own merits 
and using current planning policy. 

 
Cumulative Adverse Impact of Amenities of the area 
The planning officer has rightly highlighted the numerous successful 
appeals against the council where the small increase in the numbers of 
coming and going by the occupiers of the HMO are unlikely to affect 
the amenity of character of the area. 

 
Whilst citation of the 2003 UDP is noted, there has been no evidence 
offered to evidence how the extra two occupants to be allowed (as six 
occupiers have been permitted) would cause harm to the area. Indeed, 
it is noted from the map that there is a high concentration of HMO's in 
the area, but this provides no evidence whatsoever that the extra two 
occupants would cause any additional harm. 

 
The planning officers own notes in section 8.4 that the council does 
not possess such a HMO SPG in relation to percentage thresholds. 
The council in their representations of  what properties are in the 
locality are HMO's in misleading, at this shows licensable HMO's 
rather than HMO's that have been granted permission for change of 
use and this information has not been presented to the council and 
therefore no evidence has been submitted showing the concentration of 
HMO's under current planning policy. 

 
Therefore it is likely that a cost award would be made against the 
council if this application was refused and went to appeal. 
 
External Amenity Area 
Whilst planning use classifications and Private Sector Housing 
Requirements are separate, it should be noted that Private Sector 
Housing have confirmed that they will grant a licence for eight 
persons and consider the property suitable for the number of 
occupants. 

 
There are also no objections on waste or transport grounds. 

 
The council has already granted permission for six occupants with the 
current amenity area and therefore the only consideration if there is 
any material reason why the current amenity area is not suitable for 
the additional two persons. 
 
It is noted that the report includes no evidence or report on the 
current amenity area and that the appeal decisions cited are 
misleading. 
 

Page 264



66 Connaught Road -This appeal refusal was for five apartments. The 
Residential Development Guide for five apartments would seek 75m2, 
and the development nor appeal decision is not at all relevant. 
 
45 Merthyr Street - Whilst the retention of the HMO is relevant the 
amenity area is not. The amenity area in this appeal decision was 
15m2 where as evidence was submitted to  the planning officer on the 
8th September showing the total external area was actually 25.4m2 
(actual onsite measurement taken). I have included a copy of this 
plan.  Whilst  the  area includes the area to the side of the house, the 
walkway has been measured at 550mm. It is worth noting that there 
is no minimum width for garden paths and with private staircases 
commonly at 700mm, this reduction of 150mm is marginal for any 
consideration to be excluded from the amenity area (for storage, 
clothes drying etc). 

 
Indeed, the Landscaping Network (an independent resource in the 
residential landscaping industry for finding reliable information about 
every aspect of landscaping) states that the minimum path width 
would be 457mm with a functional width being 609mm so we can 
clearly show that this area is indeed accessible. 

 
What is further misleading, is that 45 Merthyr Street was granted 
permission for a 7 bedroom HMO for seven occupants 
(11/02067/DCI) and that the appeal was for eight occupants and 
therefore the council has previously concluded that 15m2 is suitable 
for seven tenants. Therefore, with such a large increase in area 
from for the single additional occupant at 31 Coburn Street, it 
would seem insurmountable to conclude that this amenity area 
was not suitable for eight occupants when using the councils own 
example cited in this committee report. 

 
Notwithstanding the above that the development does indeed 
meet the Residential Development Guide SPG for 25m2, the area 
just to the rear of the property is 22m2 only 3m2 short of the 25m2. 
As planning permission has been already granted for six persons, the 
report gives no evidence that the increase in two occupants would 
cause any harm to the amenities of the property. Furthermore there 
is no planning policy in force that requires additional space where 
undertaking this change of use from C3 to HMO sui generis. 
 
I would conclude that the Councillors have been presented with no 
evidence to support that a refusal of this permission is justified and 
that this application is fully compliant with all current planning policy, 
and as such I would urge Councillors to allow permission and to 
avoid the prospect of defending an application of costs. 

 
  
REMARKS: Noted 

  
 

Page 265



P
age 266



Applications decided by Delegated Powers between 01/09/2015 and 30/09/2015 

Total Count of Applications: 219

ADAM

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01649/MNR 13/08/2015  42 TrueUK & European 

Investments

24/09/2015INSTALLATION OF NEW FIRE EXIT 

DOORS TO AN EXISTING RETAIL 

UNIT

UNIT 5, CITY LINK, 

NEWPORT ROAD, 

ADAMSDOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF24 1PQ

Permission 

be granted

15/01650/MNR 13/08/2015  42 TrueUK & European 

Investments

24/09/2015INSTALLATION OF NEW FIRE EXIT 

DOORS TO AN EXISTING RETAIL 

UNIT

UNIT 6, CITY LINK, 

NEWPORT ROAD, 

ADAMSDOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF24 1PQ

Permission 

be granted

15/01651/MNR 13/08/2015  42 TrueUK & European 

Investments

24/09/2015INSTALLATION OF NEW FIRE EXIT 

DOORS TO AN EXISTING RETAIL 

UNIT

UNIT 4, CITY LINK, 

NEWPORT ROAD, 

ADAMSDOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF24 1PQ

Permission 

be granted

15/01784/MNR 16/07/2015  57 FalseBlue Coast Cardiff LLP 11/09/2015EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS AND 

IMPROVEMENTS TO UNIT 3C

UNIT 3C, CITY LINK, 

NEWPORT ROAD, 

ADAMSDOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF24 1PQ

Permission 

be granted

15/01791/MNR 27/07/2015  51 TrueBlue Coast Cardiff LLP 16/09/2015VARIATION OF CONDITION 1 OF 

PLANNING APPLICATION 

14/02935/MNR

HARVEYS FURNISHING 

GROUP LTD UNIT 3C, CITY 

LINK, NEWPORT ROAD, 

ADAMSDOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF24 1PQ

Permission 

be granted

A/15/00164/MNR 12/08/2015  34 TrueBestway Group 15/09/20151 X EXTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 

HERITAGE FASCIA 1 X NON 

ILLUMINATED ACM FASCIA 1 X 

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 

PROJECTOR 4 X WINDOW VINYL 

GRAPHICS

CO-OPERATIVE 

PHARMACY, 1-2 UPPER 

CLIFTON STREET, 

CLIFTON STREET, 

ADAMSDOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF24 1PU

Permission 

be granted

15/02016/MNR 10/08/2015  38 TrueMoghal 17/09/2015CONVERSION OF SHOP AND FLAT 

TO SHOP AND 2 FLATS

 113 CLIFTON STREET, 

ADAMSDOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF24 1LW

Permission 

be granted

P
age 267

A
genda Item

 10



BUTE

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01700/MJR 03/07/2015  76 FalseSMART 17/09/2015REMOVAL OF CONDITIONS 11,12 

AND 14 OF PLANNING APPLICATION 

11/01099/DCI DUE TO REMOVAL OF 

PUBLIC PARKING ELEMENT

BLOCK K, CAPITAL 

QUARTER, CARDIFF, CF10 

48Z

Permission 

be granted

15/01176/MJR 15/05/2015  133 FalseBDP 25/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 23 

(IMPORTED AGGREGATES) OF 

PLANNING APPLICATION 

13/00648/DCI

CANAL PARADE, 

DUMBALLS ROAD, 

BUTETOWN, CARDIFF

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/01739/MJR 09/07/2015  78 FalseIgloo Regeneration 25/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 27 (Gas 

Monitoring), 28(Gas Scheme), 

29(Ground Contamination), 53 (Ground 

Contamination Mitigation), 72 (Ground 

Contamination Options) AND 73 

(Ground Contamination Mitigation 

Verification) OF PLANNING 

APPLICATION 09/01672/C

Plot L, Porth Teigr, 

Butetown, CF10 4GA

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/01736/MJR 09/07/2015  56 TrueIgloo Regeneration 03/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 55 

(MAINTENANCE OF FLOOD 

CAPACITY OF CARDIFF BAY) OF 

OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION 

09/01672/C

PLOT L, HEOL PORTH 

TEIGR, BUTETOWN, 

CARDIFF, CF10 4GA

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/01999/MJR 10/08/2015  36 TrueBritish Airways Pensions 15/09/2015CHANGE OF USE CLASSIFICATION 

FROM D2 (LESIURE) TO A3 (FOOD 

AND DRINK) AND INSTALLATION OF 

EXTERNAL PLANT DECK

UNIT 9B, RED DRAGON 

CENTRE, HEMINGWAY 

ROAD, ATLANTIC WHARF, 

CARDIFF, CF10 4JY

Permission 

be granted

15/02141/MJR 27/08/2015  7 TrueBoyes Rees Architects 03/09/2015NON MATERIAL AMENDMENT TO 

PLANNING APPLICATION 

13/01239/DCI - INCORPORATION OF 

PHOTO VOLTAIC PANELS LOCATED 

ONTO THE FLAT ROOF

FORMER SITE OF 

HANNAH STREET UNITED 

REFORMED CHURCH, 

HANNAH STREET, 

BUTETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF10 5LA

Permission 

be granted

P
age 268



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

H/15/00001/MNR 02/07/2015  69 FalsePrax Terminals Ltd 09/09/2015STORAGE OF HAZARDOUS 

SUBSTANCES (NEW CONSENT 

WHILST RETAINING EXISTING 

CONSENTS)

PRAX PETROLEUM, 

LONGSHIPS ROAD, 

CARDIFF BAY, CARDIFF, 

CF10 4RP

Permission 

be granted

A/15/00138/MNR 27/07/2015  51 TrueBestway Group 16/09/20153 X INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 

FASCIA 1 X INTERNALLY 

ILLUMINATED 3 X WINDOW VINYL 

GRAPHICS

THE CO-OPERATIVE 

PHARMACY, 213 BUTE 

STREET, BUTETOWN, 

CARDIFF, CF10 5HR

Permission 

be granted

15/02305/MNR 18/09/2015  5 TrueTasci 23/09/2015NON MATERIAL AMENDMENT TO 

CHANGE THE LOCATION OF 

WINDOWS AND DOORS OF THE 

FRONT AND SIDE ELEVATION 

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED UNDER 

14/01733/DCI

UNITS 1, 2 AND 3, 

THOMAS HOSKING & 

SONS, HOSKING 

INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, 

DUMBALLS ROAD, 

BUTETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF10 5FG

Permission 

be granted

CAER

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01860/MJR 23/07/2015  55 TrueJehu Project Services 16/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 6 

(REFUSE STORAGE) OF PLANNING 

APPLICATION 13/01275/DCO

FORMER ELY FARM, 

DYFRIG ROAD, CAERAU, 

CARDIFF, CF5 5AD

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01679/MNR 26/08/2015  29 TrueB & Q 24/09/2015INSTALLATION OF NEW FIRE EXIT 

DOORS TO AN EXISTING RETAIL 

UNIT

B & Q WAREHOUSE, 499 

COWBRIDGE ROAD 

WEST, CAERAU, 

CARDIFF, CF5 5TG

Permission 

be granted

P
age 269



CANT

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01399/DCH 23/06/2015  86 FalseHussain 17/09/2015(1) CONSTRUCTION OF REAR 

DORMER CONTAINING BEDROOM 

AND EN SUITE WITH ASSOCIATED 

STAIRCASE, (2) CONSTRUCTION OF 

SINGLE STOREY REAR/SIDE 

EXTENSION CONTAINING EXTENDED 

KITCHEN BREAKFAST ROOM, 

SITTING ROOM AND SHOWER/WC, 

(3) MINOR INTERNAL ALTERATIONS

54 BRUNSWICK STREET, 

CANTON, CARDIFF, CF5 

1LJ

Permission 

be granted

15/01836/DCH 21/07/2015  51 TrueKahn 10/09/2015FIRST FLOOR REAR AND SIDE 

EXTENSIONS WITH SECOND FLOOR 

LOFT CONVERSION AND 

ASSOCIATED REAR FLAT ROOF 

DORMER. APPLICATION TO INCLUDE 

FRONT PORCH GROUND FLOOR 

EXTENSION

3 DUNRAVEN ROAD, 

CANTON, CARDIFF, CF11 

8AN

Permission 

be granted

15/01513/DCH 28/07/2015  55 TruePatel 21/09/2015Rear Extension and Rebuild New 

Garage

49 BROADHAVEN, 

CANTON, CARDIFF, CF11 

8DA

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/02263/MJR 08/09/2015  3 TrueTaff Housing 

Association

11/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 16 

(MATERIALS) OF 14/02798/MJR

FORMER SACRED HEART 

CHURCH, BROAD 

STREET, CANTON, 

CARDIFF, CF11 8BY

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

P
age 270



15/00415/MNR 18/02/2015  224 FalseEly Bridge Developemnt 

Company

30/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 10 

(CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 

PLAN) OF 14/00774/DCO

OLD MILL BUSINESS 

PARK, SANATORIUM 

ROAD, CANTON, 

CARDIFF, CF11 8DS

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/00416/MNR 18/02/2015  224 FalseEly Bridge Development 

Company

30/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 17 

(CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 

PLAN) OF 14/00772/DCO

OLD MILL BUSINESS 

PARK, SANATORIUM 

ROAD, CANTON, 

CARDIFF, CF11 8DS

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/01554/MNR 10/07/2015  70 FalseLe Masurier 18/09/2015CHANGE OF USE FROM HARDWARE 

STORE TO BAKERY AND SHOP

595 COWBRIDGE ROAD 

EAST, CANTON, CARDIFF, 

CF5 1BE

Permission 

be granted

CATH

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01977/DCH 05/08/2015  42 TrueKHAN 16/09/2015CHANGE HIP ROOF TO A GABLE, THE 

MAIN ROOF WITH REAR DORMER 

EXTENSION AND SIDE STAIRWAY 

ENCLOSURE.

91 WYEVERNE ROAD, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4BG

Permission 

be granted

15/01191/DCH 04/08/2015  56 TrueMorris 29/09/2015SINGLE STOREY AND FIRST FLOOR 

EXTENSION TO THE REAR OF THE 

PROPERTY

54 COBURN STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4BS

Permission 

be granted

15/01874/DCH 27/07/2015  56 TrueNiaz 21/09/2015PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY REAR 

EXTENSION; PART SIDE RETURN 

EXTENSION; AND REAR ROOF 

EXTENSION (DORMER WINDOW).

27 RICHARDS STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4DA

Permission 

be granted

15/01891/DCH 28/07/2015  45 TrueMcquade 11/09/2015PROPOSED TWO STOREY REAR 

EXTENSION

51 LLANTRISANT STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4JD

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

15/02164/DCH 26/08/2015  27 TrueAhmed 22/09/2015LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT 

CERTIFICATE IN RESPECT TO THE 

CONVERSION OF THE ROOFSPACE 

INTO A HABITABLE ROOM HIP TO 

GABLE AND REAR DORMER  ROOF 

EXTENSIONS AND THE INSERTION 

OF A ROOF LIGHT TO FRONT.

174 COLUM ROAD, 

CATHAYS PARK, CARDIFF, 

CF10 3EL

Permission 

be granted

P
age 271



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01912/MJR 31/07/2015  54 TrueRepresentative Body of 

the Church in Wales

23/09/2015CHANGE OF USE FROM 

GARDENERS HUT TO A3 USE

HUT IN ST JOHN'S 

GARDENS, WORKING 

STREET, CITY CENTRE

Permission 

be granted

15/01590/MJR 23/06/2015  87 FalseSimba Properties Ltd 18/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 4, 5, 6, 

7, 8 AND 10 OF 14/01153/DCI

NATWEST, 26 PARK 

PLACE, CATHAYS PARK, 

CARDIFF, CF10 3QH

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/01443/MJR 23/07/2015  68 FalseOptima Healthcare RBS 

and Grillstock Ltd

29/09/2015CHANGE OF USE FROM SHOP (USE 

CLASS A1) TO RESTAURANT (USE 

CLASS A3) AND THE PROVISION OF 

VENTILATION AND EXTRACTION 

EQUIPMENT TO REAR AND A NEW 

SHOPFRONT

47-48 ST MARY STREET, 

CITY CENTRE, CARDIFF, 

CF10 1AD

Permission 

be granted

15/01770/MJR 21/07/2015  65 FalseTrustees of MCF Cardiff 

Est Unit Trust

24/09/2015CHANGE OF USE TO RESIDENTIAL 

AND OR COMMERCIAL (OFFICE) USE 

[ALLOWING PERMITTED CHANGE BY 

VIRTUE OF CLASS E PART 3 IN 

SCHEDULE 2 OF THE TOWN AND 

COUNTRY PLANNING GENERAL 

PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT ORDER 

1995 AS AMENDED]

2 & 3 ARCADE CHAMBERS 

(FLOORS ABOVE 11,12,13 

DUKE STREET) , DUKE 

STREET, CITY CENTRE, 

CARDIFF, CF10 1BA

Permission 

be granted

15/01263/MJR 26/05/2015  108 FalseMinistry of Justice 

Estates 

Directorate-Wales

11/09/2015WITNESS PROTECTION SCREENS: 

INSTALLATION OF SCREENING 

CURTAINS AND SUPPORTING 

FRAMES TO PROTECT VULNERABLE 

WITNESS IDENTITY TO EXISTING 

WITNESS STANDS IN COURTROOMS 

1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7 AND 8 AT CARDIFF 

CROWN COURT

LAW COURTS, KING 

EDWARD VII AVENUE, 

CATHAYS PARK, CARDIFF, 

CF10 3NL

Permission 

be granted

15/02001/MJR 10/08/2015  38 TrueSt David's Partnership 17/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 2 

(EXTRACTION SYSTEM) OF 

15/00894/MJR

G STAR JEANS, 86-88 ST 

DAVID'S DEWI SANT, 

GRAND ARCADE, CITY 

CENTRE, CARDIFF, CF10 

2EL

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

P
age 272



15/01936/MJR 04/08/2015  30 TrueSoho Coffee 03/09/2015CHANGE OF USE FROM CLASS A1 

TO CLASS A3 FLOORSPACE

3 TOWN WALL SOUTH, 

CITY CENTRE, CARDIFF, 

CF10 2EW

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01557/MNR 22/07/2015  51 TrueTortilla Mexican Grill 11/09/2015REPLACEMENT OF EXISTING SHOP 

FRONT WITH NEW FOLDING SLIDING 

SHOP FRONT, INCLUDING NEW 

FASCIA PANELS

PIPI'S LTD, 30-32 

CAROLINE STREET, CITY 

CENTRE, CARDIFF, CF10 

1FF

Permission 

be granted

15/01628/MNR 23/07/2015  54 TrueRausa Mumford Ltd 15/09/2015REPLACEMENT OF GROUND FLOOR 

AND FIRST FLOOR WINDOWS TO 

FRONT FACADE

RAUSA MUMFORD 

SOLICITORS, 35 PARK 

PLACE, CATHAYS PARK, 

CARDIFF, CF10 3RL

Permission 

be granted

A/15/00149/MNR 05/08/2015  42 TrueS A Brain and Company 

Ltd

16/09/2015PROPOSED 2 NO. VINYL MESH 

ADVERTISEMENT DISPLAYS TO BE 

ERECTED ON THE UPPER FLOOR OF 

THE OLD ARCADE PUBLIC HOUSE IN 

CARDIFF CITY CENTRE. THE 

ADVERTISEMENT DISPLAYS ARE 

FOR A TEMPORARY PERIOD (8TH 

AUGUST 2015 - 31ST OCTOBER 2015) 

TO COINCIDE WITH THE DOVE MEN 

TESTS AND THE RUGBY WORLD 

CUP.

THE OLD ARCADE, 14-15 

CHURCH STREET, CITY 

CENTRE, CARDIFF, CF10 

1BG

Permission 

be granted

15/01849/MNR 30/07/2015  48 TrueHussain 16/09/2015SINGLE AND TWO STOREY REAR 

EXTENSIONS AND LOFT 

CONVERSIONS WITH REAR 

DORMERS TO CREATE 7 SELF 

CONTAINED FLATS AND INCREASE 

RESTAURANT FACILITIES AT 

GROUND FLOOR LEVEL WITH 

EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS

THE BALTI CUISINE, 

103-105 WOODVILLE 

ROAD, CATHAYS, 

CARDIFF, CF24 4DY

Permission 

be granted

P
age 273



15/01911/MNR 06/08/2015  41 TruePizza Express 16/09/2015REPLACE THE EXISTING EXTERNAL 

SHOP FRONT AND LOBBY AND 

REPLACE WITH A NEW SHOPFRONT 

CONSISTING OF A FIXED HALF 

HEIGHT STALL RISER, PARTIALLY 

BI-FOLDING HALF HEIGHT GLAZED 

UPPER SHOP FRONT AND A NEW 

LOBBY.

PIZZA EXPRESS, 29-30 

HIGH STREET, CITY 

CENTRE, CARDIFF, CF10 

1PU

Permission 

be granted

A/15/00146/MNR 31/07/2015  47 TrueThe Royal Bank of 

Scotland Group Plc

16/09/2015REPLACEMENT OF EXISTING 

EXTERNAL ATM SURROUNDS WITH 

NEW UPDATED NATWEST 

SURROUNDS. ATM SURROUNDS TO 

BE INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED. NEW 

WELSH DRAGON VINYLS AND 

LIFESTYLE POSTERS TO BE APPLIED 

TO WINDOWS.

NATIONAL WESTMINSTER 

BANK PLC, 94-96 QUEEN 

STREET, CITY CENTRE, 

CARDIFF, CF10 2GR

Permission 

be granted

15/01687/MJR 08/07/2015  55 TrueClwb Ifor Bach 01/09/2015WRAPPING OF EXTERNAL 

ELEVATIONS OF BUILDING WITH 

CANVAS TO PROVIDE NEW FACADE 

SURFACES FOR APPLICATION OF 

DECORATIVE ARTWORK

CLWB IFOR BACH, 9-11 

WOMANBY STREET, CITY 

CENTRE, CARDIFF, CF10 

1BR

Permission 

be granted

A/15/00117/MNR 22/07/2015  49 TrueTortilla Mexican Grill 09/09/2015BRAND SIGNAGE.  REPLACEMENT 

OF PROJECTING SIGNS AND 

CANOPIES.

2 NO. INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 

FASCIA SIGNS TO SHOPFRONT TO 

REPLACE EXISTING SIGNAGE 2 NO. 

PROJECTING SIGN TO RIGHT HAND 

SIDE OF SHOP FRONT 2 NO. 

GROUND FLOOR WINDOWS WITH 

TORTILLA GRAPHICS APPLIED TO 

INTERNAL FACE OF GLAZING 1 NO. 

PAINTED GRAPHIC ABOVE 

RESTAURANT ENTRANCE 2 NO. 

RETRACTABLE CANOPIES WITH 

BRANDING ON VALANCE BREEZE 

FREE SCREENS WITH TORTILLA 

BRANDING 1 NO. INTERNALLY 

ILLUMINATED MENU BOX

PIPI'S LTD, 30-32 

CAROLINE STREET, CITY 

CENTRE, CARDIFF, CF10 

1FF

Permission 

be granted

P
age 274



15/01625/MNR 26/06/2015  90 FalsePIZZA EXPRESS 24/09/2015INSTALLATION OF SIGNAGE 

COMPRISING OF:- 1 SET OF HALO 

ILLUMINATED TEXT AND LIGHT LINE 

TO REPLACE EXISTING 1 

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 

PROJECTION SIGN TO REPLACE 

EXISTING 1 INTERNALLY 

ILLUMINATED MENU TO REPLACE 

EXISTING 1 INTERNALLY 

ILLUMINATED POSTER BOX TO 

REPLACE EXISTING 1 INTERNALLY 

ILLUMINATED TAKE AWAY SIGN TO 

REPLACE EXISTING PAINTING OF 

THE SHOP FRONT IN FARROW & 

BALL RAILINGS.

PIZZA EXPRESS, 29-30 

HIGH STREET, CITY 

CENTRE, CARDIFF, CF10 

1PU

Permission 

be granted

15/01901/MNR 29/07/2015  57 FalseWPI ESTATES 24/09/2015PROPOSED CONVERSION AND 

CHANGE OF USE OF EXISTING 

OFFICES TO FORM 4 RESIDENTIAL 

UNITS FOR STUDENT 

ACCOMMODATION, ON SITE 

PARKING, REFUSE, CYCLE STORAGE 

AND AMENITY FACILITIES.

LIBRARY COURT, 

FAIROAK ROAD, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4PX

Permission 

be granted

15/01448/MNR 18/06/2015  98 FalseQuin & Co Ltd 24/09/2015SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION, 

REAR DORMER ROOF EXTENSION, 

INSERTION OF 2 NO. ROOFLIGHTS 

TO FRONT ROOF AND ASSOCIATED 

INTERNAL ALTERATIONS

16 RHYMNEY TERRACE, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4DE

Permission 

be granted

15/01591/MNR 23/06/2015  87 FalseSimba Properties Ltd 18/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 4, 11 

AND 12 OF 14/02979/MNR

NATWEST, 26 PARK 

PLACE, CATHAYS PARK, 

CARDIFF, CF10 3QH

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

A/15/00153/MNR 06/08/2015  41 TrueS A Brain and Company 

Ltd

16/09/2015PROPOSED VINYL MESH 

ADVERTISEMENT DISPLAY TO BE 

ERECTED ON THE UPPER FLOOR OF 

THE YARD PUBLIC HOUSE IN 

CARDIFF CITY CENTRE. THE 

ADVERTISEMENT DISPLAYS ARE 

FOR A TEMPORARY PERIOD (18TH 

SEPTEMBER 2015 - 31ST OCTOBER 

2015) TO COINCIDE WITH THE 

RUGBY WORLD CUP.

THE YARD, 42-43 ST MARY 

STREET, CITY CENTRE, 

CARDIFF, CF10 1AD

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

P
age 275



A/15/00148/MNR 05/08/2015  42 TrueS A Brain and Company 

Ltd

16/09/2015PROPOSED VINYL MESH 

ADVERTISEMENT DISPLAY TO BE 

ERECTED ON THE UPPER FLOOR OF 

THE CITY ARMS PUBLIC HOUSE IN 

CARDIFF CITY CENTRE. THE 

ADVERTISEMENT DISPLAYS ARE 

FOR A TEMPORARY PERIOD (8TH 

AUGUST 2015 - 31ST OCTOBER 2015) 

TO COINCIDE WITH THE DOVE MEN 

TESTS AND THE RUGBY WORLD 

CUP.

CITY ARMS, 10-12 QUAY 

STREET, CITY CENTRE, 

CARDIFF, CF10 1EA

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

A/15/00143/MNR 28/08/2015  20 TrueOasis 17/09/2015THE PROPOSALS ARE TO REPLACE 

THE EXISTING CORPORATE 

SIGNAGE WITH NEW, SUCH 

ELEMENTS CONSIST OF: NEW 

LETTERING AND A GRAPHIC VINYL 

TO BE APPLIED TO REAR GLAZING.

PLOT LG33, ST DAVID'S 

DEWI SANT, GRAND 

ARCADE, CITY CENTRE, 

CARDIFF, CF10 2ER

Permission 

be granted

A/15/00154/MNR 21/08/2015  26 TrueS A Brain and Company 

Ltd

16/09/2015PROPOSED VINYL MESH 

ADVERTISEMENT DISPLAY TO BE 

ERECTED ON THE UPPER FLOOR OF 

DEMPSEYS PUBLIC HOUSE IN 

CARDIFF CITY CENTRE. THE 

ADVERTISEMENT DISPLAYS ARE 

FOR A TEMPORARY PERIOD (18TH 

SEPTEMBER 2015 - 31ST OCTOBER 

2015) TO COINCIDE WITH THE 

RUGBY WORLD CUP.

DEMPSEYS INN, 15 

CASTLE STREET, CITY 

CENTRE, CARDIFF, CF10 

1BS

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

P
age 276



A/15/00155/MNR 12/08/2015  37 TrueSt David's Partnership 18/09/2015NEW SIGNAGE TO MARK THE 

ENTRANCE TO THE ST DAVID'S 

CENTRE FROM QUEEN STREET (TO 

CATHEDRAL WALK), COMPRISING 

THE CENTRE NAME - 'ST DAVID'S 

DEWI SANT' AND THE CENTRE 'D' 

LOGO. THE SIGNS ARE DESCRIBED 

AS FOLLOWS: 1) INTERNALLY 

ILLUMINATED FLEX FACE SIGN BOX 

WITH INTERNALLY AND HALO 

ILLUMINATED TEXT 2) STAINLESS 

STEEL LETTERING 

(NON-ILLUMINATED) ATTACHED 

WITH TWO FIXING RAILS 3) FOUR 

VINYL SIDE PANELS 

(NON-ILLUMINATED) APPLIED TO 

EXISTING FINS.

ST DAVID'S ENTRANCE, 

QUEEN STREET, 

CATHEDRAL WALK, CITY 

CENTRE

Permission 

be granted

15/02039/MNR 13/08/2015  36 TrueStevenson 18/09/2015INSTALLATION OF NEW UNDER 

SOFFIT LIGHTING AND PANELING, 

AND SIGNAGE TO THE WEST AND 

EAST FACADE OF THE TREDEGAR 

STREET BRIDGE LINK

ST DAVIDS CENTRE, 

TREDEGAR STREET, CITY 

CENTRE

Permission 

be granted

A/15/00160/MNR 13/08/2015  36 TrueStevenson 18/09/20152 X TOUGHENED GLASS PANEL 

WITH APPLIED TRANSLUCENT VINYL 

COLOUR WITH INTERNALLY 

ILLUMINATED FABRICATED 

STAINLESS STEEL LETTERS WITH 

OPAL ACRYLIC FACE AND LED 

ILLUMINATION

ST DAVIDS CENTRE, 

TREDEGAR STREET, CITY 

CENTRE

Permission 

be granted

A/15/00161/MNR 13/08/2015  36 TrueLounge Dining UK Ltd 18/09/2015INSTALLATION OF FASCIA SIGNAGE 86-88 ST DAVID'S DEWI 

SANT, GRAND ARCADE, 

CITY CENTRE, CARDIFF, 

CF10 2EL

Permission 

be granted

CRE

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

P
age 277



15/01906/DCH 29/07/2015  44 TrueCardiff Archaeology 11/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 1 

(PHOTOGRAPHIC SURVEY) AND 2 

(PROGRAMME OF 

ARCHAEOLOGICAL WORK) OF 

CONSERVATION AREA CONSENT 

15/01133/DCH

THE COTTAGE, 

CROFFT-Y-GENAU ROAD, 

ST FAGANS, CARDIFF, 

CF5 6DU

Partial 

Discharge 

of Condition 

(s)

15/01411/DCH 23/06/2015  97 FalseOWEN 28/09/2015REAR AND SIDE SINGLE STOREY 

AND TWO STOREY EXTENSIONS

COURT COTTAGE, 

MICHAELSTON ROAD, ST 

FAGANS, CARDIFF, CF5 

6DW

Permission 

be granted

15/01749/DCH 10/07/2015  55 TrueTremlett 03/09/2015REAR FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION THE GABLES, STATION 

ROAD, CREIGIAU, 

CARDIFF, CF15 9NT

Permission 

be granted

15/01790/DCH 15/07/2015  49 TrueWilliams 02/09/2015DEMOLTION OF CONSERVATORY, 

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR 

EXTENSION TO FORM KITCHEN AND 

FAMILY ROOM. PROPOSED 

TERRACE TO FIRST FLOOR AND 

ROOF DORMERS TO REAR TO FORM 

ADDITIONAL BEDROOM AND EN 

SUITE

BEDWELLTY, 35 CARDIFF 

ROAD, CREIGIAU, 

CARDIFF, CF15 9NL

Permission 

be granted

15/02254/DCH 02/09/2015  14 TrueBouadana 16/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 3 OF 

15/1397/DCH

TREVANION, HEOL 

PANT-Y-GORED, 

CREIGIAU, CARDIFF, CF15 

9NF

Partial 

Discharge 

of Condition 

(s)

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01271/MJR 09/06/2015  100 FalseCharles Church East 

Wales

17/09/2015VARIATION OF CONDITION 1 

(SCHEDULE OF PLANS) OF 

12/01810/DCO FOR APPROVAL OF 

RESERVED MATTERS FOR OUTLINE 

APPLICATION 10/02114/DCO FOR 

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AND 

STRATEGIC OPEN SPACE

LAND OFF MICHAELSTON 

ROAD, MICHAELSTON 

ROAD, ST FAGANS, 

CARDIFF, CF5 6DW

Permission 

be granted

CYNC

P
age 278



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01914/DCH 04/08/2015  43 Truen/a 16/09/2015REAR DORMER ROOF EXTENSION 

AND ALTERTION TO ROOF LINE

70 LLANDENNIS AVENUE, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6JJ

Permission 

be granted

15/01145/DCH 13/05/2015  126 FalseMILLER 16/09/2015TWO STOREY REAR SIDE 

EXTENSION.

6 ALLTMAWR ROAD, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6NQ

Permission 

be granted

15/01799/DCH 16/07/2015  56 TrueZaman 10/09/2015DEMOLITION OF OUTHOUSES AND 

CONSERVATORY. PROPOSED 

GROUND FLOOR REAR EXTENSION. 

PROPOSED, SMALLER FIRST FLOOR 

REAR EXTENSION.

7 LAKE ROAD NORTH, 

ROATH PARK, CARDIFF, 

CF23 5QN

Permission 

be granted

15/01746/DCH 15/07/2015  56 TrueEdmunds 09/09/2015GROUND FLOOR FRONT 

EXTENSION/GARAGE CONVERSION

10 DUFFRYN AVENUE, 

LAKESIDE, CARDIFF, CF23 

6LF

Permission 

be granted

15/01562/DCH 30/06/2015  71 FalseThomas 09/09/2015TWO STOREY SIDE EXTENSION 

WITH SIDE DORMER TO ROOF, AND 

HIP TO GABLE LIFT CONVERSION 

WITH REAR DORMER INCLUDING 

JULIET BALCONY TO EXISTING 

ROOF

41 LLANDENNIS ROAD, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6EE

Permission 

be granted

15/01801/DCH 16/07/2015  74 FalseWellbeloved 28/09/2015SINGLE AND TWO STOREY FRONT, 

SIDE AND REAR EXTENSION 

INCLUDING A DORMER IN THE 

FRONT ELEVATION; DEMOLITION OF 

EXISTING DETACHED GARAGE.

13 GWERN RHUDDI 

ROAD, CYNCOED, 

CARDIFF, CF23 6PR

Permission 

be granted

15/01960/DCH 05/08/2015  56 TrueCLARKE 30/09/2015SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO 

FRONT PITCH ROOF OVER SINGLE 

STOREY EXTENSION AT REAR AND 

ALSO PITCH ROOF OVER PORCH

66 CELYN AVENUE, 

LAKESIDE, CARDIFF, CF23 

6EP

Permission 

be granted

15/00385/DCH 23/03/2015  183 FalsePesticcio 22/09/2015RETENTION OF EXTERNAL 

GROUNDWORKS TO REAR 

GARDEN,PROVISION OF ON-SITE 

CAR PARKING TO FRONT OF 

PROPERTY, TOGETHER WITH 

RETENTION OF GROUND FLOOR 

SIDE BEDROOM (ORIGINALLY 

APPROVED AS GARAGE).

18 HOLLYBUSH RISE, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6TG

Permission 

be granted

P
age 279



15/01927/DCH 04/08/2015  56 TrueBrown 29/09/2015CONSTRUCTION OF NEW DORMER 

TO REAR ELEVATION

6 LLANDENNIS AVENUE, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6JG

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

15/01262/DCH 02/06/2015  118 FalseASEELY 28/09/2015SINGLE STOREY REAR & FRONT AND 

SIDE EXTENSIONS AND 

ALTERATIONS WITH FRONT & REAR 

DORMERS TO CREATE DORMER 

BUNGALOW

110A RHYD Y PENAU 

ROAD, CYNCOED, 

CARDIFF, CF23 6PW

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01748/MNR 10/07/2015  56 TrueCROWLEY 04/09/2015PROPOSED 3 BEDROOM DETACHED 

DWELLING TO THE REAR OF 194 

LAKE ROAD EAST.

PART OF LAND AT 194 

LAKE ROAD EAST, 

LAKESIDE, CARDIFF, CF23 

5NR

Permission 

be granted

15/01201/MNR 16/06/2015  93 FalseROSEN 17/09/2015RENEWAL OF PLANNING 

PERMISSION 10/00890/E (TO BUILD 2 

STOREY HOUSE IN GARDEN)

PART OF LAND AT 45 

HOLLYBUSH ROAD, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6TZ

Permission 

be granted

15/00972/MNR 23/04/2015  147 FalseCARDIFF GOLF CLUB 17/09/2015CONSTRUCTION OF 2 NO. 

RESIDENTIAL APARTMENTS.

CARDIFF GOLF CLUB, 

SHERBORNE AVENUE, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6SJ

Permission 

be granted

FAIR

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01635/DCH 29/06/2015  74 FalseOwen 11/09/2015PROPOSED GARDEN 

SHED/OUTBUILDING TO SIDE OF 

DWELLING SET BACK FROM 

PRINCIPAL ELEVATION

14 VISTA RISE, 

FAIRWATER, CARDIFF, 

CF5 2SD

Permission 

be granted

15/02047/DCH 13/08/2015  46 TrueMr & Mrs J Forward 28/09/2015DOUBLE STOREY EXTENSION TO 

THE REAR OF THE EXISTING 

PROPERTY

215 BWLCH ROAD, 

FAIRWATER, CARDIFF, 

CF5 3EE

Permission 

be granted

P
age 280



15/01902/DCH 29/07/2015  51 TrueWilliams 18/09/2015LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT 

CERTIFICATE IN RESPECT TO A 

SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION

14 WHITLAND CLOSE, 

FAIRWATER, CARDIFF, 

CF5 3NB

Permission 

be granted

15/02080/DCH 20/08/2015  32 TrueReynolds 21/09/2015CERTIFICATE OF LAWFUL 

DEVELOPMENT IN RESPECT TO A 

SINGLE STOREY  REAR EXTENSION

29 BWLCH ROAD, 

FAIRWATER, CARDIFF, 

CF5 3BX

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01723/MNR 07/07/2015  65 FalseCity of Cardiff Council 10/09/2015PROPOSALS INCLUDE THE 

CONVERSION OF THE EXISTING 

FAIRWATER LIBRARY INTO A 

COMMUNITY HUB FACILITY FOR THE 

LOCAL COMMUNITY WITH NEW 

ENTRANCE LOBBY EXTENSION, 

MODIFICATION TO THE EXTERNAL 

APPEARANCE AND INTERNAL 

ALTERATIONS TO ACCOMMODATE 

HUB FACILITIES.

FAIRWATER LIBRARY, 

DOYLE AVENUE, 

FAIRWATER, CARDIFF, 

CF5 3HU

Permission 

be granted

GABA

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01961/MNR 07/08/2015  41 TrueWilliams and Paterson 17/09/2015CONVERSION OF VACANT FIRST 

AND SECOND FLOOR OFFICES TO 

RESIDENTIAL (3 FLATS)

FIRST FLOOR, 43 

WHITCHURCH ROAD, 

GABALFA, CARDIFF, CF14 

3JN

Permission 

be granted

GRAN

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

P
age 281



15/01005/MJR 28/04/2015  133 FalseCMB HOUSE OF 

SPORT LTD

08/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 18 

(ACCESS) OF PLANNING 

APPLICATION 15/00085/MJR

HOUSE OF SPORT, CLOS 

PARC MORGANNWG, 

LECKWITH, CARDIFF, 

CF11 8AW

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/02135/MJR 18/08/2015  28 TrueCMB HOUSE OF 

SPORT LTD

15/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 15 

(EXTERNAL LIGHTING SCHEME) OF 

PLANNING APPLICATION 

15/00085/MJR

HOUSE OF SPORT, CLOS 

PARC MORGANNWG, 

LECKWITH, CARDIFF, 

CF11 8AW

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01177/MNR 15/05/2015  125 FalseMichael 17/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 4 

(SOUND INSULATION) AND 6 (FUME 

EXTRACTION) OF PLANNING 

APPLICATION 10/02221/DCI

43 CORPORATION ROAD, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 7AP

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/01793/MNR 31/07/2015  42 TrueV&D Enterprises Ltd 11/09/2015CHANGE OF USE FROM A1 SHOP TO 

D2 GYMNASIUM

UNIT 4, DUNLEAVY DRIVE, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 0SR

Permission 

be granted

A/15/00136/MNR 23/07/2015  42 TrueBestway Group 03/09/20153 X INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 

FASCIA 1 X INTERNALLY 

ILLUMINATED PROJECTOR

THE CO-OPERATIVE 

PHARMACY, GROUND 

FLOOR, 100 HOLMESDALE 

STREET, GRANGETOWN, 

CARDIFF, CF11 7BW

Permission 

be granted

15/00853/MNR 05/05/2015  146 FalseASDA Stores Ltd 28/09/2015INSTALLATION OF CLICK AND 

COLLECT LOCKERS

SERVICE STATION, 235 

CORPORATION ROAD, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 7AS

Permission 

be granted

A/15/00056/MNR 14/04/2015  167 FalseASDA Stores Ltd 28/09/2015CLICK AND COLLECT LOCKERS 

ASSOCIATED SIGNAGE.

VINYL GRAPHICS APPLIED TO 

LOCKER ELEVATIONS - SIDE 

ELEVATION - FRONT ELEVATION 

CLICK AND COLLECT SIGNAGE - 

FRONT ELEVATION GRAPHICS 1 - 

FRONT ELEVATION GRAPHICS 2

SERVICE STATION, 235 

CORPORATION ROAD, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 7AS

Permission 

be granted

P
age 282



15/01762/MNR 10/08/2015  37 TrueYang 16/09/2015CHANGE OF USE OF GROUND 

FLOOR REAR TO MANAGERS 

APARTMENT

170 PENARTH ROAD, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 6NL

Permission 

be granted

A/15/00159/MNR 10/08/2015  36 TrueBestway Group 15/09/20152 X INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 

FASCIA 1 X NON ILLUMINATED 

FASCIA 1 X INTERNALLY 

ILLUMINATED PROJECTOR 3 X 

WINDOW VINYL GRAPHICS

CO-OP PHARMACY, 178 

CLARE ROAD, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 6YG

Permission 

be granted

15/01595/MNR 26/08/2015  29 TrueRailways Pension 

Nominees Ltd

24/09/2015INSTALLATION OF NEW FIRE EXIT 

DOORS TO AN EXISTING RETAIL 

UNIT

UNIT L, CARDIFF BAY 

RETAIL PARK, FERRY 

ROAD, GRANGETOWN, 

CARDIFF, CF11 0JR

Permission 

be granted

15/01596/MNR 26/08/2015  29 TrueRailways Pension 

Nominees Ltd

24/09/2015INSTALLATION OF NEW FIRE EXIT 

DOORS TO AN EXISTING RETAIL 

UNIT

FORMER STAPLES UNIT J, 

CARDIFF BAY RETAIL 

PARK, FERRY ROAD, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 0JR

Permission 

be granted

15/01597/MNR 26/08/2015  29 TrueRailways Pension 

Nominees Ltd

24/09/2015INSTALLATION OF NEW FIRE EXIT 

DOORS TO AN EXISTING RETAIL 

UNIT

BRANTANO UNIT 2A, 

CARDIFF BAY RETAIL 

PARK, FERRY ROAD, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 0JR

Permission 

be granted

15/01598/MNR 26/08/2015  29 TrueRailways Pension 

Nominees Ltd

24/09/2015INSTALLATION OF NEW FIRE EXIT 

DOORS TO AN EXISTING RETAIL 

UNIT

PETS AT HOME UNIT C, 

CARDIFF BAY RETAIL 

PARK, FERRY ROAD, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 0JR

Permission 

be granted

HEAT

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01185/DCH 06/07/2015  57 FalseMr N Butt 01/09/2015TO CONSTRUCT A SINGLE STOREY 

ORANGERY WITH WHITE UPVC 

ROOF LANTERN ALSO TO CONVERT 

THE EXISTING GARAGE TO A 

HABITABLE ROOM

154 MANOR WAY, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1RN

Permission 

be granted

P
age 283



15/01989/DCH 06/08/2015  53 TrueReese 28/09/2015TWO STOREY REAR/SIDE 

EXTENSION

148 MANOR WAY, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1RN

Permission 

be granted

15/01447/DCH 17/06/2015  85 FalseKeenan 10/09/2015TWO STOREY REAR AND SIDE 

EXTENSION WITH INTERNAL 

ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING HOUSE 

PLUS REPLACEMENT OF DETACHED 

GARAGE (RECENTLY DEMOLISHED) 

WITH A GARDEN ROOM (GYM)

39 HEATH PARK AVENUE, 

HEATH, CARDIFF, CF14 

3RF

Permission 

be granted

15/01959/DCH 04/08/2015  48 TruePAYNE 21/09/2015SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO 

REAR

62 PANTBACH ROAD, 

BIRCHGROVE, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1UB

Permission 

be granted

LISV

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/00443/MNR 23/02/2015  197 FalseShire Hall Properties Ltd 08/09/2015CHANGE THE USE OF THE LODGE 

FROM COMMERCIAL TO 

RESIDENTIAL INCLUDING 

ALTERATIONS AND EXTENSION, 

PROVIDE A NEW ACCESS TO THE 

ADOPTED HIGHWAY AND INCLUDE 

NEW CAR PARKING, BLOCK UP AN 

EXISTING ACCESS TO THE MAIN 

HOUSE PRIVATE DRIVE, PROVIDE A 

NEW DWELLING

TY GWYN, LISVANE 

ROAD, LISVANE, CARDIFF, 

CF14 0SG

Permission 

be granted

LLAN

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01824/DCH 23/07/2015  43 TrueBallisat 04/09/2015SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION, 

CONVERSION AND ALTERATION TO 

EXISTING GARAGE, LOFT 

CONVERSION AND DORMER 

EXTENSION.

6 WEST RISE, LLANISHEN, 

CARDIFF, CF14 0RE

Permission 

be granted

P
age 284



15/01954/DCH 06/08/2015  53 TrueGuidi 28/09/2015NEW CONSERVATORY TYPE 

EXTENSION AT THE REAR OF THE 

DWELLING

21 ORCHARD CASTLE, 

THORNHILL, CARDIFF, 

CF14 9BA

Permission 

be granted

15/01777/DCH 27/07/2015  46 TrueDando 11/09/2015LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT 

CERTIFICATE IN RESPECT TO A 

DETACHED GARAGE

4-4A TEMPLETON 

AVENUE, LLANISHEN, 

CARDIFF, CF14 5JN

Permission 

be granted

15/01393/DCH 05/06/2015  104 FalseKnight 17/09/2015PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY AND 

TWO STOREY REAR EXTENSIONS 

TO INCLUDE NEW ATTIC (DORMER 

ROOF) CONVERSION

& REPLACEMENT GARAGE

32 THORNHILL ROAD, 

LLANISHEN, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6PF

Permission 

be granted

15/01930/DCH 31/07/2015  47 TrueGodwin 16/09/2015CHANGE OF USE OF SINGLE 

STOREY GARAGE TO SINGLE 

STOREY LIVING SPACE.

21 MOSTYN SQUARE, 

LLANISHEN, CARDIFF, 

CF14 5FE

Permission 

be granted

15/01853/DCH 28/07/2015  52 TrueReynolds 18/09/2015INTERNAL REFURBISHMENT. LOFT 

CONVERSION WITH FRONT AND 

REAR ELEVATION DORMERS. SIDE 

ELEVATION SINGLE STOREY 

EXTENSION

36 BRIARMEADOW DRIVE, 

THORNHILL, CARDIFF, 

CF14 9FB

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01830/MNR 20/07/2015  50 TrueJAMES 08/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 8, 11 

AND 13 (CONSTRUCTION 

MANAGEMENT PLAN, FOOTWAY 

CROSSOVER & LANDSCAPING 

DESIGN) OF 14/02001/DCO

157 TY GLAS ROAD, 

LLANISHEN, CARDIFF, 

CF14 5EF

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/01693/MNR 03/08/2015  52 TrueKATCHI 24/09/2015TWO STOREY DETACHED 

PROPERTY COMPRISING OF TWO 

FLATS

127 LLANGRANOG ROAD, 

LLANISHEN, CARDIFF, 

CF14 5BN

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

15/01981/MNR 13/08/2015  35 TrueNorth Cardiff 

Orthodontic Centre

17/09/2015REPLACEMENT OF EXISTING SINGLE 

ENTRANCE DOORS WITH DOUBLE 

ENTRANCE DOORS

6- 7 CWRT Y PARC, 

EARLSWOOD ROAD, 

LLANISHEN, CARDIFF, 

CF14 5GH

Permission 

be granted

P
age 285



LLDF

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01818/DCH 17/07/2015  69 FalseDuncan 24/09/2015SINGLE STOREY REAR AND SIDE 

ELEVATION EXTENSION, RETAINING 

WALL AND RAISED TERRACED AREA 

TO ENABLE DISABLED ACCESS.

19 BUCKLEY CLOSE, 

DANESCOURT, CARDIFF, 

CF5 2DF

Permission 

be granted

15/01395/DCH 09/06/2015  101 FalseCharles 18/09/2015ONE AND TWO STOREY EXTENSION 

TO REAR OF EXISTING HOUSE AND 

TWO STOREY EXTENSION TO SIDE 

OF EXISTING HOUSE.

28 ST MICHAEL'S ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2AP

Permission 

be granted

15/02260/DCH 08/09/2015  21 TrueIngram 29/09/2015NON MATERIAL AMENDMENT TO 

REDUCE NEW ACCOMODATION TO 

EXCLUDE SIDE EXTENSION AND 

AVOID DISRUPTION OF EXISTING 

WELSH WATER SEWER APPROVED 

UNDER 14/02628/DCH

1 LLOYD AVENUE, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2BX

Permission 

be granted

15/01931/DCH 31/07/2015  34 TrueHUGHES 03/09/2015TWO STOREY SIDE EXTENSION. 23 FAIRWATER ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2LF

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/02051/MJR 12/08/2015  43 TrueChurchills Hotel 

Development Ltd

24/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 5 

(METHODOLOGY AND 

SPECIFICATION OF MATERIALS) OF 

PLANNING APPLICATION 

15/00329/MJR

CHURCHILLS HOTEL, 3 

LLANDAFF PLACE, 

CARDIFF ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2AE

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/01945/MJR 03/08/2015  53 TrueDOUBLET HOLDINGS 25/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 4 (HARD 

AND SOFT LANDSCAPING) OF 

PLANNING APPLIACTION 10/00846/W

THE RETREAT, 56 

PWLLMELIN ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2NL

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

P
age 286



15/01946/MJR 03/08/2015  53 TrueDOUBLET HOLDINGS 25/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 14 (BIN 

STORE) OF PLANNING APPLICATION 

10/00846/W

THE RETREAT, 56 

PWLLMELIN ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2NL

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/01948/MJR 03/08/2015  53 TrueDOUBLET HOLDINGS 25/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 20 

(PROPOSED FLOOR LEVELS) OF 

PLANNING APPLICATION 10/00846/W

THE RETREAT, 56 

PWLLMELIN ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2NL

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/01336/MJR 04/06/2015  91 FalseDoublet Holdings Ltd 03/09/2015NON MATERIAL AMENDMENT TO 

10/00846/W TO ALLOW THE 

FOLLOWING:

AMENDMENTS TO BLOCK 1

• BI-FOLD DOORS ADDED TO FLATS 3 

AND 4 AT GROUND FLOOR ON 

WESTERN SIDE OF BLOCK

• AMENDMENTS TO/ENLARGING OF 

BALCONIES TO FLATS 7, 8 & 9 ON 

FIRST FLOOR

• AMENDMENTS TO/ENLARGING OF 

BALCONIES TO FLATS 11 & 12 ON 

SECOND FLOOR

• N.B. PLEASE ALSO NOTE THAT AN 

ADDITIONAL DORMER IS SHOWN – 

THOUGH THIS SHOULD HAVE BEEN 

SHOWN ON THE ORIGINALLY 

SUBMITTED PLANS SO THIS 

ALTERATION IS PURELY SHOWN TO

RECTIFY AN OMISSION RATHER 

THAN AS A NEW PROPOSAL.

AMENDMENTS TO BLOCK 2

• EXTENDED PRIVATE GARDEN 

AREAS TO GROUND FLOOR FLATS 

NUMBERED 13, 14 & 15 ON 

WESTERN SIDE OF BLOCK 2

• BI-FOLD DOORS ADDED TO FLATS 

13 AND 14 AT GROUND FLOOR ON 

WESTERN SIDE OF BLOCK 2

• AMENDMENTS TO/ENLARGING OF 

BALCONIES ON FIRST FLOOR OF 

BLOCK 2 – FLATS 16, 17 & 18

THE RETREAT, 

PWLLMELIN ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2NL

Permission 

be granted

P
age 287



15/02109/MJR 20/08/2015  35 TrueChurchills Hotel 

Development Ltd

24/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 15 

(ARCHITECTURAL DETAILING) OF 

PLANNING APPLICATION 

15/00328/MJR

CHURCHILLS HOTEL, 3 

LLANDAFF PLACE, 

CARDIFF ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2AE

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/02147/MJR 12/08/2015  30 TrueWebster 11/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 5 

(MATERIALS) OF PLANNING 

APPLICATION 14/02332/DCH

BISHOPS GATE, 130 

CARDIFF ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2AJ

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01423/MNR 26/06/2015  83 FalseABEDI 17/09/2015PROPOSED SEATING TERRACE TO 

REAR

22 HIGH STREET, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2DZ

Permission 

be granted

15/02019/MNR 10/08/2015  43 TrueLLANDAFF 

DEVELOPMENTS LTD

22/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 3 

(EXTERNAL MATERIALS), 10 

(PRIVACY SCREENS AND 11 (SITE 

LEVELS) OF 15/00468/MNR

LAND BETWEEN 3 AND 5, 

THE AVENUE, LLANDAFF, 

CARDIFF

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/02318/MNR 11/09/2015  6 TrueCathedral School 17/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 2 

(PHOTOGRAPHIC SURVEY) OF 

15/00555/MNR

THE CATHEDRAL 

SCHOOL, CARDIFF ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2YH

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

LLDN

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01992/DCH 07/08/2015  52 TrueGOODWIN 28/09/2015CONSTRUCTION OF DETACHED 

GARAGE.

18 TY-MAWR ROAD, 

LLANDAFF NORTH, 

CARDIFF, CF14 2FN

Permission 

be granted

P
age 288



15/02073/DCH 14/08/2015  35 TruePEARCE 18/09/2015SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 35 COLLEGE ROAD, 

LLANDAFF NORTH, 

CARDIFF, CF14 2HZ

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01888/MNR 22/07/2015  58 FalseAxford 18/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 2 

(MEANS OF ENCLOSURE) OF 

PLANNING APPLICATION 

15/01088/MNR

28 ABERDORE ROAD, 

GABALFA, CARDIFF, CF14 

2SR

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

LLRU

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01755/DCH 13/07/2015  53 TrueSummers 04/09/2015DEMOLITION OF DETACHED 

GARAGE AND CONSTRUCTION OF 

SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION

17 LYNTON TERRACE, 

LLANRUMNEY, CARDIFF, 

CF3 4BR

Permission 

be granted

PENT

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01400/DCH 08/06/2015  88 FalseHeenan 04/09/2015SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

AND REAR DORMER EXTENSION TO 

ROOF

90 AEL-Y-BRYN, 

LLANEDEYRN, CARDIFF, 

CF23 9LL

Permission 

be granted

15/01958/DCH 04/08/2015  38 TrueMcCarthy 11/09/2015LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT 

CERTIFICATE IN RESPECT TO A 

SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION

119-120 PENNSYLVANIA, 

LLANEDEYRN, CARDIFF, 

CF23 9LQ

Permission 

be granted

P
age 289



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/02038/MJR 11/08/2015  34 TrueLidl UK GmbH 14/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 9 

(CONSTRUCTION DETAILS OF THE 

FOOTWAY IMPROVEMENT WORKS 

TO THE EXISTING ACCESS AND THE 

JUNCTION OF CAXTON 

PLACE/PENTWYN ROAD) OF 

14/00064/DCO

FORMER J R INDUSTRIES, 

CAXTON PLACE, 

PENTWYN, CARDIFF, 

CF23 8XN

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01441/MNR 19/06/2015  77 FalsePatel 04/09/2015DEMOLITION OF EXISTING SHOP & 

DWELLING & ERECTION OF NEW 

DEVELOPMENT TO FORM 6 FLATS.

PENTWYN STORES, 68 

BRYN PINWYDDEN, 

PENTWYN, CARDIFF, 

CF23 7DE

Permission 

be granted

A/15/00157/MNR 07/08/2015  39 TrueBestway Group 15/09/20152 X INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 

FASCIA

CO-OPERATIVE 

PHARMACY, ST DAVIDS 

MEDICAL CENTRE, 

PENTWYN DRIVE, 

PENTWYN, CARDIFF, 

CF23 7EY

Permission 

be granted

PENY

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01847/DCH 10/08/2015  46 TrueJeakins 25/09/2015REPLACEMENT SASH WINDOWS TO 

THE FRONT ELEVATION OF 

PROPERTY.

22 SANDRINGHAM ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF23 

5BJ

Permission 

be granted

P
age 290



15/01421/DCH 30/06/2015  65 FalseNicholls & Sedgley 03/09/2015DOMER EXTENSION TO REAR TO 

ENABLE LOFT CONVERSION. 

ALTERATIONS TO KITCHEN/DINING 

ROOM AND TO EXISTING BEDROOM 

DORDORMER WINDOWS.

2 THE PADDOCK, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

5JN

Permission 

be granted

15/01778/DCH 13/08/2015  46 TrueMr R Thomas 28/09/20151-REAR 2 STOREY EXTENSION 

2-SIDE SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION 

3-REAR PATIO 4-ALTERATIONS TO 

BOUNDARY WALLS, INCREASE 

HEIGHT TO REAR GARDEN TO 

2000MM 5-INTRODUCE A NEW IN 

AND OUT DRIVE, WITH DROP KERBS 

6-RENEW WINDOWS THROUGHOUT. 

7-RE-RENDER WITH SELF COLOUR 

RENDER OVER INSULATION 

BOARDS. 8-VELUX WINDOWS TO 

LOFT CONVERSION

4 ESKDALE CLOSE, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

5LF

Permission 

be granted

15/01570/DCH 30/06/2015  80 FalseEmadi 18/09/2015NON MATERIAL AMENDMENT FOR 

ALTERATIONS TO DESIGN OF 

EXTENSION AND DORMERS 

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED UNDER 

14/02994/DCH

11 ESKDALE CLOSE, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

5LF

Permission 

be granted

15/01837/DCH 21/07/2015  56 TrueHannan 15/09/2015SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

AND SEPARATE SINGLE STOREY 

GAMES ROOM

225 ALBANY ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3NW

Permission 

be granted

15/02027/DCH 11/08/2015  37 TrueDent 17/09/2015NEW SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION 

TO REAR OF DWELLINGHOUSE.

49 DORCHESTER 

AVENUE, PENYLAN, 

CARDIFF, CF23 9BS

Permission 

be granted

15/02160/DCH 26/08/2015  28 TrueYapp 23/09/2015LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT 

CERTIFICATE FOR A GROUND 

FLOOR REAR EXTENSION

120 FFORDD NOWELL, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

9FB

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

P
age 291



A/15/00144/MNR 31/07/2015  42 TrueMarks & Spencer plc. 11/09/2015THE REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT 

OF EXISTING SIGNS WITH NEW 

FLEX FACE SIGNS, REMOTE TOTEM 

SIGNAGE, SMALL WINDOW PLAQUE 

AND A METAL PANEL DELIVERY SIGN.

MARKS & SPENCER UNIT 

4, THE AVENUE RETAIL 

PARK, NEWPORT ROAD, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

9AE

Permission 

be granted

15/01521/MNR 26/06/2015  83 FalseJK Accountancy 17/09/2015FIRST AND SECOND FLOOR 

EXTENSION. REFURBISHMENT AND 

MODERNISATION OF EXTERNAL 

FACADE

THE WELSH REFUGEE 

COUNCIL PHOENIX 

HOUSE, 389 NEWPORT 

ROAD, PENYLAN, 

CARDIFF, CF24 1TP

Permission 

be granted

PLAS

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01980/DCH 04/08/2015  43 TrueWilliams 16/09/2015REPLACE 9 NO SASH WINDOWS TO 

FRONT WITH HARDWOOD DOUBLE 

GLAZED FRAMES TO MATCH 

ORIGINAL

22 SHIRLEY ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF23 

5HN

Permission 

be granted

15/02015/DCH 10/08/2015  42 TrueKhalid 21/09/2015REAR GROUND FLOOR EXTENSION 

4000mm OR LESS DEPTH FROM 

ORIGINAL MAIN HOUSE WALL

121 ARABELLA STREET, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

4SX

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/00681/MJR 20/03/2015  189 FalseWILLIS 

CONSTRUCTION LTD

25/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 11 

(GAS MONITORING), 12 

(CONTAMINATION ASSESSMENT) 

AND 13 (DETAILS OF REMEDIATION 

SITE) OF PLANNING APPLICATION 

14/02335/MJR

130 ALBANY ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3RU

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

P
age 292



15/01854/MJR 05/08/2015  42 TrueMR M ABEDI 16/09/2015VARIATION OF CONDITION 7 (THE 

GROUND AND FIRST FLOOR 

WINDOWS ON THE SIDE ELEVATION 

SHALL BE NON OPENING BELOW A 

HEIGHT OF 1.8 METRES ABOVE 

INTERNAL FLOOR LEVEL AND 

GLAZED WITH OBSCURE GLASS AND 

THEREAFTER BE SO MAINTAINED)  

OF PLANNING APPLICATION 

02/01316/W TO REMOVE THE 

REQUIREMENT TO RELATING TO 

FIRST FLOOR WINDOWS

54-55 NINIAN ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF23 

5EJ

Permission 

be granted

15/02191/MJR 26/08/2015  19 TrueLG Urban 

Developments Ltd

14/09/2015DETAILS IN DISCHARGE OF 

CONDTIONS 10 (DOORS AND 

WINDOW DETAIL) , 11 

(ARCHITECTURAL DETAILING) & 12 

(EXTERNAL FINISHING MATERIALS) 

OF THE PLANNING APPROVAL REF 

12/00309/DCI

LAND AT OXFORD 

STREET, ROATH, 

CARDIFF, CF24 3DT

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

A/15/00147/MNR 31/07/2015  42 TrueBestway Group 11/09/20151 X INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 

FASCIA 1 X INTERNALLY 

ILLUMINATED PROJECTOR

THE CO-OPERATIVE 

PHARMACY, 180 CITY 

ROAD, ROATH, CARDIFF, 

CF24 3JF

Permission 

be granted

15/01797/MNR 23/07/2015  50 TrueGREENE 11/09/2015DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDING 

AND RECONSTRUCTION TO 

INCLUDE INSERTION OF A NEW 

FLOOR LEVEL

GARAGE AND RIFLE CLUB 

REAR OF 133-143 

MACKINTOSH PLACE, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

4RN

Permission 

be granted

15/01709/MNR 23/07/2015  50 TrueFish and Field 11/09/2015NEW SHOPFRONT AT THE PREMISES SCALINIS RESTAURANT, 1 

WEDAL ROAD, ROATH, 

CARDIFF, CF14 3QX

Permission 

be granted

15/00999/MNR 27/04/2015  135 FalseWyatt 09/09/2015CONVERSION OF MAIN BUILDING 

INTO 9 SELF CONTAINED FLATS

THE OLD CONVENT, 47 

THE WALK, ROATH, 

CARDIFF, CF24 3AG

Permission 

be granted

P
age 293



15/01357/MNR 02/06/2015  99 FalseWyatt 09/09/2015CONVERSION OF MAIN BUILDING 

INTO 9 SELF CONTAINED FLATS

THE OLD CONVENT, 47 

THE WALK, ROATH, 

CARDIFF, CF24 3AG

Permission 

be granted

15/01558/MNR 10/07/2015  53 TrueSARHAN 01/09/2015CHANGE OF USE TO A3 CAFE 

RESTAURANT

112 ALBANY ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3RU

Permission 

be granted

15/01561/MNR 10/07/2015  56 TrueMazala Bazaar 04/09/2015ALTERATIONS AT GROUND AND 

FIRST FLOOR AND CHANGE OF USE 

OF FIRST FLOOR ONLY FROM A1 

AND A3 TO C3, SIX NUMBER, ONE 

PERSON, ONE BEDROOM, FLATS

MASALA BAZAAR, 195 

RICHMOND ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3BT

Permission 

be granted

15/01781/MNR 20/07/2015  66 FalseCardiff University 

Estates Department

24/09/2015CONSTRUCTION OF A SMALL 

CANOPY AND INSTALLATION OF AN 

AIR HANDLING UNIT AND 

ASSOCIATED DUCTWORK

14 THE PARADE, ROATH, 

CARDIFF, CF24 3AA

Permission 

be granted

15/00067/MNR 13/01/2015  258 FalseKhalid 28/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 3, 4, 8 

AND 9  OF 13/01981/DCI

30 WELLFIELD ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3PB

Refuse to 

Discharge

A/15/00156/MNR 07/08/2015  39 TrueBestway Group 15/09/20151 X INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 

FASCIA 1 X INTERNALLY 

ILLUMINATED PROJECTOR 3 X 

WINDOW VINYL GRAPHICS

THE CO-OPERATIVE 

PHARMACY, 219-221 CITY 

ROAD, ROATH, CARDIFF, 

CF24 3JD

Permission 

be granted

A/15/00140/MNR 03/08/2015  39 TrueCardzone 11/09/2015INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED FASCIA 

SIGN AND PROJECTING SIGN

SPECIAL OCCASIONS 

(GREETINGS) LIMITED, 23 

WELLFIELD ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3NZ

Permission 

be granted

15/02093/MNR 18/08/2015  31 TrueParade Cardiff Ltd 18/09/2015CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW PLANT 

ROOM AND ASSOCIATED 

DEMOLITION OF EXISTING 

EXTERNAL STAIR TOWER AND 

EXTERNAL AMENDMENTS

COLEG GLAN HAFREN, 35 

THE PARADE, ROATH, 

CARDIFF, CF24 3AD

Permission 

be granted

15/01866/MNR 07/08/2015  40 TrueOgbonna 16/09/2015REAR EXTENSION & CONVERSION 

TO 4 FLATS AND DORMER

28 GORDON ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3AL

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

PON

P
age 294



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01690/DCH 04/08/2015  45 TrueKirkby 18/09/2015SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

TO EXISTING SEMI DETACHED 

DWELLING.

28 FELSTED CLOSE, 

PONTPRENNAU, 

CARDIFF, CF23 8LR

Permission 

be granted

15/01922/DCH 07/08/2015  45 TrueJONES 21/09/2015FIRST FLOOR SIDE EXTENSION 

WITH PORCH/CANOPY TO FRONT

20 BRAMSHILL DRIVE, 

PONTPRENNAU, 

CARDIFF, CF23 8NX

Permission 

be granted

15/01943/DCH 04/08/2015  48 TrueMullane 21/09/2015SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO 

REAR & ASSOCIATED WORKS TO 

PATIO

13 IDENCROFT CLOSE, 

PONTPRENNAU, 

CARDIFF, CF23 8PH

Permission 

be granted

15/01957/DCH 05/08/2015  54 TrueMaddaford 28/09/2015FIRST FLOOR DOMESTIC 

EXTENSION TO SIDE OF PROPERTY 

COMPRISING OF NEW BEDROOM, 

WALK-IN-WARDROBE AND 

ALTERATIONS TO BATHROOM.

6 HASTINGS CRESCENT, 

OLD ST MELLONS, 

CARDIFF, CF3 5ET

Permission 

be granted

15/02046/DCH 12/08/2015  47 TrueVICARS ROSIER 28/09/2015CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE 

STOREY EXTENSION TO THE REAR 

OF THE PROPERTY TO PROVIDE A 

SHOWER ROOM.

5 AMBERWOOD CLOSE, 

PONTPRENNAU, 

CARDIFF, CF23 8BZ

Permission 

be granted

15/01409/DCH 12/06/2015  97 FalseAggarwal 17/09/2015EXTENSIONS TO SIDE & REAR OF 

EXISTING DWELLING INCLUDING 

BALCONY AT FIRST FLOOR

DERWEN HOUSE, 

DRUIDSTONE ROAD, OLD 

ST MELLONS, CARDIFF, 

CF3 6XD

Permission 

be granted

15/02266/DCH 08/09/2015  14 TrueSeabrook 22/09/2015NON MATERIAL AMENDMENT TO 

CHANGE THE GLASS ROOF ON THE 

KITCHEN EXTENSION TO A TILED 

ROOF - PREVIOUSLY APPROVED 

UNDER 14/02679/DCH

8 NASEBY CLOSE, 

PONTPRENNAU, 

CARDIFF, CF23 8LS

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

P
age 295



14/02306/MJR 06/10/2014  339 FalsePersimmon Homes 

(East Wales)

10/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 5 (GAS 

MONITORING) OF 13/00578/DCO

LAND EAST OF CHURCH 

ROAD AND NORTH AND 

SOUTH OF, BRIDGE 

ROAD, OLD ST MELLONS

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/02134/MJR 24/08/2015  30 TrueCardiff Council 23/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 13 

(DETAILS OF SCHOOL SAFETY 

ZONE) OF PLANNING APPLICATION 

13/02489/DCO

PONTPRENNAU 

COMMUNITY CENTRE, 

HEOL PONTPRENNAU, 

PONTPRENNAU, 

CARDIFF, CF23 8LL

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/02077/MJR 18/08/2015  24 TrueEPT Partnership 11/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 28 

(DORMICE MONITORING SCHEME) 

OF PLANNING APPLICATION 

13/02489/DCO

PONTPRENNAU PRIMARY 

SCHOOL, HEOL 

PONTPRENNAU, 

PONTPRENNAU, 

CARDIFF, CF23 8LL

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01886/MNR 05/08/2015  42 TrueMorgan 16/09/2015DEMOLITION OF EXISTING 

CONSERVATORY AND 

CONSTRUCTION OF NEW 3 

BEDROOM DWELLING

TONYRIAN, TY'R WINCH 

ROAD, OLD ST MELLONS, 

CARDIFF, CF3 5UX

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

15/01656/MNR 13/08/2015  42 TruePraderaLtd 24/09/2015INSTALLATION OF NEW FIRE EXIT 

DOORS TO AN EXISTING RETAIL 

UNIT

DFS TRADING LTD, 3-4 

CARDIFF GATE RETAIL 

PARK, DERING ROAD, 

PONTPRENNAU, 

CARDIFF, CF23 8NL

Permission 

be granted

A/15/00163/MNR 17/08/2015  42 TrueMON MOTORS 

LIMITED

28/09/2015NEW SIGNS TO REPLACE EXISTING 

OLD STYLE SIGNS.

AUDI CARDIFF CARDIFF 

GATE BUSINESS PARK, 

WAGTAIL CLOSE, 

PONTPRENNAU, 

CARDIFF, CF23 8RT

Permission 

be granted

A/15/00165/MNR 17/08/2015  42 TrueMercedes Benz (UK 

LTD)

28/09/2015EXTERNAL CAR DEALERSHIP & 

FORECOURT SIGNAGE

MERCEDES-BENZ 

CARDIFF, CARDIFF GATE 

BUSINESS PARK, 

MULBERRY DRIVE, 

PONTPRENNAU, 

CARDIFF, CF23 8RX

Permission 

be granted

P
age 296



PYCH

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01720/DCH 13/07/2015  52 TrueDevenish 03/09/2015DEMOLISH GARAGE, 

CONSERVATORY AND UTILITY 

ERECT NEW SINGLE STOREY 

EXTENSION TO FRONT AND SIDE 

WITH INTEGRAL GARAGE AND TWO 

STOREY EXTENSION & RAISED 

PATIO AND BALCONY TO REAR

HUNTERS GATE, 

PEN-Y-WAUN, PENTYRCH, 

CARDIFF, CF15 9SJ

Permission 

be granted

RADY

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01813/DCH 27/07/2015  46 TrueWilliams 11/09/2015LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT FOR THE 

CONVERSION OF AN EXISTING 

GARAGE INTO A HABITABLE ROOM.

18 PENRHOS, RADYR, 

CARDIFF, CF15 8RJ

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

15/01279/DCH 28/05/2015  118 FalseVirgin 23/09/2015SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO 

SIDE AND PART TWO STOREY 

EXTENSION REAR

6 WINDSOR CRESCENT, 

RADYR, CARDIFF, CF15 

8AE

Permission 

be granted

15/01786/DCH 15/07/2015  65 FalseLewis-Jones 18/09/2015SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO 

REAR AND ALTERATIONS TO FRONT 

PORCH

15 BRYN CALCH, 

MORGANSTOWN, 

CARDIFF, CF15 8FD

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

A/15/00139/MNR 23/07/2015  43 TrueBestway Group 04/09/20151 X NON ILLUMINATED FASCIA 1 X 

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 

PROJECTOR

NATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE 

CHEMISTS, 12 STATION 

ROAD, RADYR, CARDIFF, 

CF15 8AA

Permission 

be granted

P
age 297



RHIW

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01994/DCH 07/08/2015  48 TruePHILLIPS 24/09/2015GROUND FLOOR AND REAR ROOF 

EXTENSION (INCLUDING JULIET 

BALCONY), GABLE EXTENSION TO 

THE FRONT ROOF SLOPE, SIDE 

ROOF EXTENSION (DORMER 

WINDOW) AND OTHER ALTERATIONS 

INCLUDING ROOF LIGHTS INTO THE 

SIDE ROOF SLOPES.

7 LON-Y-DERI, RHIWBINA, 

CARDIFF, CF14 6JN

Permission 

be granted

15/01410/DCH 21/07/2015  52 TrueJones 11/09/2015FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION 136 WENALLT ROAD, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6TQ

Permission 

be granted

15/01975/DCH 05/08/2015  47 TrueREES 21/09/2015SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION 47 HEOL TY'N Y COED, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6RB

Permission 

be granted

15/01629/DCH 01/07/2015  78 FalseGRIFFITHS 17/09/2015LOFT CONVERSION INCLUDING 

BUILDING GABLES

88 WENALLT ROAD, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6SE

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

15/02334/DCH 16/09/2015  14 TrueAbbey Building Services 30/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 6 

(MATERIALS) OF 15/00559/DCH

2 CHARLOTTE SQUARE, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6ND

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01812/MNR 17/07/2015  54 TrueRobinson 09/09/2015RETAIN ALTERATIONS & 

EXTENSIONS AS BUILT

125-127 HEOL LLANISHEN 

FACH, RHIWBINA, 

CARDIFF, CF14 6RE

Permission 

be granted

P
age 298



A/15/00137/MNR 23/07/2015  42 TrueBestway Group 03/09/20151 X INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 

FASCIA 1 X INTERNALLY 

ILLUMINATED PROJECTOR

CO-OPERATIVE 

PHARMACY, 117-119 HEOL 

LLANISHEN FACH, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6RE

Permission 

be granted

RIVE

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01754/DCH 15/07/2015  54 TrueNathoo 07/09/2015NEW FLAT ROOF OVER AN  

EXISTING SINGLE STOREY REAR 

ANNEX AND REAR DORMER ROOF 

EXTENSION

48 LLANFAIR ROAD, 

PONTCANNA, CARDIFF, 

CF11 9QB

Permission 

be granted

15/01305/DCH 29/05/2015  97 FalseBrown 03/09/2015SINGLE STOREY REAR INFILL 

EXTENSION, INSERTION OF 

ROOFLIGHTS TO THE REAR OF THE 

MAIN ROOF AND TO THE EXISTING 

REAR ANNEXE ROOF AND OTHER 

ALTERATIONS.

98 PLASTURTON AVENUE, 

PONTCANNA, CARDIFF, 

CF11 9HJ

Permission 

be granted

15/01519/DCH 17/06/2015  99 FalseWILLIAMS 24/09/2015TO REBUILD A CHIMNEY ON THE 

REAR ANNEXE AND INSTALL A FREE 

STANDING LOG BURNING STOVE IN 

THE GROUND FLOOR REAR ROOM

112 CATHEDRAL ROAD, 

RIVERSIDE, CARDIFF, 

CF11 9LP

Permission 

be granted

15/01798/DCH 20/07/2015  52 TrueAllen 10/09/2015PROPOSED RENOVATION OF 

EXISTING OUT BUILDING.

97 SEVERN GROVE, 

PONTCANNA, CARDIFF, 

CF11 9EQ

Permission 

be granted

15/01890/DCH 05/08/2015  47 TrueKnopf 21/09/2015CONSTRUCTION OF SINGLE STORY 

EXTENSION TO REAR

21 WYNDHAM ROAD, 

RIVERSIDE, CARDIFF, 

CF11 9EJ

Permission 

be granted

15/01732/DCH 11/08/2015  31 TrueRUSSELL 11/09/2015SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION, 

REAR FACING ROOF DORMER.

14 DENBIGH STREET, 

PONTCANNA, CARDIFF, 

CF11 9JQ

Permission 

be granted

P
age 299



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

14/03008/MNR 19/03/2015  189 FalseJAVID 24/09/2015CONVERSION OF 

STORE/WORKSHOPS & FLAT TO 6 

FLATS

REAR OF 8-12, NEVILLE 

STREET, RIVERSIDE, 

CARDIFF, CF11 6LR

Permission 

be granted

RUMN

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01942/DCH 03/08/2015  46 TrueColesay 18/09/2015PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY 

EXTENSION & ATTIC CONVERSION 

TO INCORPORATE 2 No. DORMERS

50 NEW ROAD, RUMNEY, 

CARDIFF, CF3 3AB

Permission 

be granted

15/01180/DCH 25/06/2015  95 FalseKNAP 28/09/2015PROPOSED FRONT AND REAR 

EXTENSION AND INSERTION OF 

ROOFLIGHTS TO REAR AND THE 

CREATION OF A HARDSTANDING TO 

THE FRONT

82 HARRIS AVENUE, 

RUMNEY, CARDIFF, CF3 

1SB

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01615/MJR 14/07/2015  72 FalseEnergy & Sustainability 24/09/2015PROPOSED HYDROGEN 

GENERATION UNIT AND 

ASSOCIATED WORKS

LAND AT, LAMBY WAY, 

WENTLOOG

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01609/MNR 03/08/2015  45 TrueRumney Hill Dental 

Surgery

17/09/2015DEMOLITION OF EXISTING STORAGE 

GARAGE AND CONSTRUCTION OF 

NEW EXTENSION

RUMNEY HILL DENTAL 

SURGERY, 776 NEWPORT 

ROAD, RUMNEY, 

CARDIFF, CF3 4FG

Permission 

be granted

P
age 300



15/01620/MNR 25/06/2015  84 FalseNawaz 17/09/2015VARIATION OF CONDITION 2 OF 

PLANNING PERMISSION NUMBER: 

94/01501/R TO PERMIT THE FISH AND 

CHIP SHOP TO BE OPEN DURING 

THE FOLLOWING HOURS:- MONDAY 

TO SATURDAY:- 10.00AM HOURS TILL 

23.00 PM HOURS AND SUNDAY: 

17.00PM HOURS TILL 23.00 PM 

HOURS

92 WENTLOOG ROAD, 

RUMNEY, CARDIFF, CF3 

3EA

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

15/01962/MNR 04/08/2015  45 TrueDEN 18/09/2015ERECTION OF PROPOSED 2 STOREY 

DETACHED DWELLING

24 MANORBIER 

CRESCENT, RUMNEY, 

CARDIFF, CF3 3ND

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

SPLO

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01638/DCH 07/07/2015  72 FalseFrassinelli 17/09/2015SMALL REAR 2 STOREY EXTENSION 6 HORWOOD CLOSE, 

SPLOTT, CARDIFF, CF24 

2LW

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01765/MJR 28/07/2015  50 TrueTHE MALTINGS LTD 16/09/2015PROPOSED NEW JULIETTE 

BALCONIES AND DOORS TO 3RD 

FLOOR WEST ELEVATION HOUSE 3, 

AND REPLACEMENT BRIDGE LINK 

FROM 4TH FLOOR HOUSE 2 TO 3RD 

FLOOR HOUSE 3.

THE MALTINGS, EAST 

TYNDALL STREET, 

SPLOTT, CARDIFF, CF24 

5EA

Permission 

be granted

15/01775/MJR 14/07/2015  64 FalseFOX 16/09/2015PROPOSED NEW JULIETTE 

BALCONIES AND DOORS TO 3RD 

FLOOR WEST ELEVATION HOUSE 3 

AND REPLACEMENT BRIDGE LINK 

FROM 4TH FLOOR HOUSE 2 TO 3RD 

FLOOR HOUSE 3.

THE MALTINGS, EAST 

TYNDALL STREET, 

SPLOTT, CARDIFF, CF24 

5EA

Permission 

be granted

P
age 301



15/01072/MJR 07/05/2015  133 FalseMR TOM JAMES 17/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 11 AND 

12 ON PLANNING APPLICATION 

13/01313/DCI

LAND TO THE SOUTH 

SIDE, MOORLAND ROAD, 

SPLOTT

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/02140/MJR 28/08/2015  18 TrueBoyes Rees Architects 15/09/2015NON MATERIAL AMENDMENT TO 

PLANNING APPLICATION 

13/02674/DCI - INCORPORATION OF 

PHOTO VOLTAIC PANELS LOCATED 

ONTO THE FLAT ROOF

LAND AT SANQUHAR 

STREET, SPLOTT, 

CARDIFF, CF24 5EF

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01680/MNR 30/07/2015  53 TrueSIG Trading Ltd 21/09/2015FORMING OF NEW OPENING TO 

INSTALL WINDOWS AND DOUBLE 

ACCESS DOORS AND THE 

INSTALLATION OF AN ACCESS DOOR 

AND WINDOWS WITHIN AN EXISTING 

ROLLER SHUTTER DOOR OPENING. 

INSTALLATION OF NEW ACCESS 

STAIRS. FORMING OF A NEW 

VEHICULAR ACCESS FROM THE 

HIGHWAY AND INSTALLATION OF 

ACCESS GATES TO MATCH 

EXISTING INCLUDING THE REMOVAL 

OF TREES, INSTALLATION OF KERB 

EDGING TO PLANTING BEDS AND 

ALL ASSOCIATED GROUND WORKS. 

FORMING OF ANCILLARY USE 

GROUND FLOOR OFFICES AND 

TRADE COUNTER AREA (8% OF THE 

OVERALL GROSS INTERNAL AREA) 

WITHIN THE EXISTING WAREHOUSE

UNIT 36, PORTMANMOOR 

ROAD INDUSTRIAL 

ESTATE, PORTMANMOOR 

ROAD, SPLOTT, CARDIFF, 

CF24 5HB

Permission 

be granted

15/01868/MNR 27/07/2015  50 TrueMEM Group 15/09/2015CONSTRUCTION OF SINGLE STOREY 

WORKSHOP WITH LIMITED 2 

STOREY OFFICE AREA, EXTERNAL 

WORKS AND ASSOCIATED 

DRAINAGE/SERVICES

EDWARD HOUSE, 

DOWLAIS ROAD, SPLOTT

Permission 

be granted

P
age 302



15/01741/MNR 20/07/2015  45 TruePGA Executive Pension 

Fund

03/09/2015CHANGE OF USE OF GROUND 

FLOOR UNITS FROM D1 (PRIVATE 

COSMETIC NON-SURGICAL CLINIC) 

TO B1 (OFFICES)

GROUND FLOOR UNITS 

15A-16A NEPTUNE 

COURT, VANGUARD WAY, 

SPLOTT, CARDIFF, CF24 

5PJ

Permission 

be granted

TROW

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01789/MJR 15/07/2015  68 FalsePentan Partnership 21/09/2015DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 13 

(EXTERNAL FINISHING MATERIALS) - 

14/00689/DCO

TROWBRIDGE HEALTH 

CENTRE, ABERGELE 

ROAD, TROWBRIDGE, 

CARDIFF, CF3 1YH

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

15/02338/MJR 16/09/2015  8 TrueHafod Housing 

Association Ltd

24/09/2015NON MATERIAL AMENDMENT TO 

ALLOW THE EXTERNAL PLANTER 

DETAIL TO BE OMITTED FROM THE 

SOUTH WEST ELEVATION AROUND 

THE STAIRWELL - PREVIOUSLY 

APPROVED UNDER 14/00689/DCO

TROWBRIDGE HEALTH 

CENTRE, ABERGELE 

ROAD, TROWBRIDGE, 

CARDIFF, CF3 1YH

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01884/MNR 28/07/2015  56 TrueVirgin Media Ltd 22/09/2015NEW AIR CONDITIONING PLANT TO 

SERVE DIGITAL MEDIA EQUIPMENT

VIRGIN MEDIA LAND ADJ 

WILLOWBROOK, 

LLANDOGO ROAD, ST 

MELLONS, CARDIFF, CF3 

0EF

Permission 

be granted

15/01951/MNR 05/08/2015  56 TrueSmith 30/09/2015PROPOSED TEMPORARY ERECTION 

DEMOUNTABLE BUILDING ON THE 

CARDIFF AND VALE SITE

CARDIFF AND VALE 

COLLEGE, TROWBRIDGE 

ROAD, TROWBRIDGE, 

CARDIFF, CF3 1QJ

Permission 

be granted

P
age 303



15/01826/MNR 21/07/2015  51 TrueStarburst 10/09/2015ERECTION OF PHASE 2 CLASS 

B1/B2/B8 DEVELOPMENT

UNIT 3, FORMER WEST 

ONE EXPRESS LIMITED, 

WENTLOOG ROAD, 

RUMNEY, CARDIFF, CF3 

1YA

Permission 

be granted

A/15/00151/MNR 04/08/2015  43 TrueBestway Group 16/09/20151 X INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 

FASCIA

NATIONAL COOPERATIVE 

CHEMISTS, 44 ABERGELE 

ROAD, TROWBRIDGE, 

CARDIFF, CF3 1RR

Permission 

be granted

WHI

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01733/DCH 13/07/2015  60 FalseGriffiths 11/09/2015DEMOLITION OF EXISTING SINGLE 

STOREY REAR EXTENSION AND 

DETACHED GARAGE TO MAKE WAY 

FOR PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY 

REAR AND SIDE EXTENSION TO THE 

EXISTING DWELLING, INCLUDING 

ENLARGED DORMER TO THE REAR, 

MINOR INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL 

WORKS

14 ALFREDA ROAD, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 2EH

Permission 

be granted

15/01985/DCH 06/08/2015  53 TrueTroake 28/09/2015TWO STOREY SIDE EXTENSION 71 HEOL GABRIEL, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1JX

Permission 

be granted

15/01861/DCH 27/07/2015  58 FalseMACE 23/09/2015PROPOSED SIDE EXTENSION 39 THE PHILOG, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1DZ

Permission 

be granted

15/02006/DCH 11/08/2015  36 TrueBasford 16/09/2015SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO 

REAR OF PROPERTY.

73 SILVER BIRCH CLOSE, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1EP

Permission 

be granted

P
age 304



15/02213/DCH 02/09/2015  27 TrueHogan 29/09/2015NON MATERIAL AMENDMENT TO 

PLANNING APPLICATION 

15/00123/DCH TO REAR DORMER 

WALLS - TO RENDER 2 SIDE WALLS 

AND REAR WALL OF NEW DORMER 

TO MATCH THE EXISTING MAIN 

WALLS AND TO PAINT WHITE - MAIN 

ROOF - TO REMOVE THE EXISTING 

TILES AND REPLACE WITH SLATES

9 MANOR RISE, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1QH

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

15/01761/MNR 22/07/2015  68 FalseWBS Ltd 28/09/2015DEMOLITION OF THE PROPERTIES 

KNOWN AS 208, 210,212 AND 214 

COLLEGE ROAD, WHITCHURCH, 

CARDIFF

208-214 COLLEGE ROAD, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 2NZ

Prior 

Approval be 

granted

A/15/00131/MNR 13/08/2015  39 TrueCo-operative Food 

Group

21/09/201511 SIGNS CO-OP, 34-38 MERTHYR 

ROAD, WHITCHURCH, 

CARDIFF, CF14 1DH

Permission 

be granted

P
age 305



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	5 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL APPLICATIONS
	6 15/1753/MJR - BUTETOWN
	7 14/2887/MJR - BUTETOWN
	8 Highway at Queen Street
	9 Late Representations
	10 APPLICATIONS DECIDED BY DELEGATED POWERS

